

# ANNUAL REPORT



UNESCO-IHE is the largest international post-graduate water education facility and research in the world. The institute confers fully accredited MSc degrees and promotes PhDs. Since 1957 the Institute has provided post-graduate education to more than 14,500 water professionals from 162 countries, the vast majority from the developing world. Just under 130 PhD fellows are currently enrolled in waterrelated research. The Institute carries out numerous research and capacity development projects throughout the world.

The Institute encourages its alumni community members to actively engage in knowledge and information exchange. Alumni reach senior positions in their home countries and become nationally and internationally recognised experts and policy makers. Many have made significant contributions to the development of the water and environmental sectors. UNESCO-IHE alumni remain part of a global network, consisting of alumni, guest lecturers, experts and renowned centres of knowledge, together providing a vast source of expertise to the sector.

UNESCO-IHE is at the centre of a vast international network of water-related institutions, and functions as an interface between knowledge networks and centres, public and private sector organisations, scientific and professional associations and other members of the international water community. Through these partnerships, the Institute broadens its knowledge base and increases its effectiveness in developing the capacities of water sector organisations and individuals worldwide.

UNESCO-IHE envisions a world in which people manage their water and environmental resources in a sustainable manner, and in which all sectors of society particularly the poor, can enjoy the benefits of basic services. The mission of UNESCO-IHE is to contribute to the education and training of professionals and to build the capacity of sector organisations, knowledge centres and other institutions active in the fields of water, the environment and infrastructure, in developing countries and countries in transition.

UNESCO-IHE centres its education, research and capacity development programmes around Water Security, Environmental Integrity, Urbanisation, Water Management and Governance, Information and Communication Systems, as well as in the emerging areas of Conflict Management and Climate Adaptation. Through each of these themes, the Institute addresses the major issues and challenges faced by many developing countries and countries in transition.

### CONTENTS

Rector's Statement	1
2010 at a Glance	2
Partnerships & Networks	4
Education	8
Research	12
Water Security	14
Urbanisation	15
Environmental Integrity	
Information & Communication Systems	17
Water Management & Governance	
Capacity Development	20
Organisational Developments	
Personnel and Organisation	27
Communication and Marketing	
Student and Educational Affairs	
IT	
Facility Management	
Financial Report	
Fellowship Trust Fund	
Annexes	34



# **RECTOR'S STATEMENT**

Water is the element that connects all the Millennium Development Goals and even offers the possibility to open up a renewed dialogue on climate change. Meeting the global challenges requires a strong foundation of knowledge to enable well-informed decision-making and improve water management practices.

Water experts of the future - independent of whether their background is in engineering, earth and natural sciences or social sciences - should be equipped with the knowledge, skills and understanding that enable them to cooperate with other disciplines.

The future education of UNESCO-IHE is to be characterised by a consistent application of innovative, learner-centred didactical approaches to produce graduates who become these water experts. Thus, the Institute aims to offer innovative, internationally appealing global water education programmes, while at the same time pursuing enhanced and effective cooperation with its partner institutions to create new international learning alliances.

This new generation of water professionals is able to explore insights into water problems from many different perspectives, and contribute to the development of creative, integrated and sustainable solutions. Thus, they have all the competencies needed to become water leaders rather than followers. Solid knowledge and understanding of one discipline as well as cognitive competencies outside that discipline blended with functional, personal, values/ ethical and meta-competencies are to be acquired by students.

UNESCO-IHE has a key task to transfer knowledge and research in achieving the world's development goals over the next decade. We must all recognise that there is a definite and strong need to develop, strengthen and maintain local and regional capacities to conduct professional training, academic education and research in water-related subjects.

With this in mind, 2010 proved to be a decisive year for UNESCO-IHE. In order to significantly increase the impact of the Institute, the 'Comprehensive Strategy for UNESCO-IHE 2010-2020' was developed. The strategy was established through a wide and transparent consultation process with the involved stakeholders, and the decade-long strategic plan was approved by the UNESCO-IHE Governing Board. The plan comprises two major elements. Firstly, the scope of the Institute will be amplifyed by establishing a global campus in Asia, Latin America and Africa. Not only do most water challenges exist in these regions, a global campus will also enable UNESCO-IHE to better understand local needs and react more swiftly to requests coming from local partners and stakeholders.Secondly, expanding the programmes that deal with Water Governance, and increasing the Social Sciences slant allows the Institute to cover all principles relating to current and future water challenges.

The Governing Board approved striving towards the goal of having lus Promovendus - the right of independently granting doctoral degrees - as soon as possible. This would allow the development of joint PhD programmes with various leading universities of the world, and increase the Institute's financial stability. It would also enable the Institute to directly involve PhD programmes in international cooperation schemes.

The Institute continued to expand its cooperative network with various institutions involved in water education. Also, six new bilateral agreements were signed with Egerton University, the Egyptian Ministry of Water Resources and Irrigation, the Deutsche Wasserhistorische Gesellschaft, Deltares, the International Water Association and Hohai University. The Institute closed the year with a positive balance and continued its refurbishment plans according to schedule.

I look forward to another year of continued collaboration in jointly undertaking the many exciting challenges ahead. It is my pleasure to present you with the 2010 Annual Report of the UNESCO-IHE Institute for Water Education.

Professor András Szöllösi-Nagy, PhD, DSc Rector

Regretfully, Professor Henk Vonhoff - Chairman of the IHE Foundation Board since 2003 when the UNESCO-IHE Institute for Water Education came into existence - passed away in July. He was a man with an engaging personality, an eloquent speaker and debater.

# 2010 AT A GLANCE

## **UNESCO-IHE IN NUMBERS**

- 161 full-time staff equivalents, 54% academic and 46% supporting staff
- 4 Water and Environment related Master's Programmes with 19 specialisations
- 176 new MSc students
- 173 MSc degrees awarded
- 129 registered PhD fellows
- 7 PhD graduations
- 307 professionals in 49 regular short courses
- 237 participants in 16 online courses
- 434 professionals in 26 tailor-made training courses
- 2 refresher seminars held for alumni

### 356 scientific publications

143 capacity development projects

Total turnover of just under € 30 million, overall positive result of € 20,000



- The University Teacher Qualification training courses for academic staff continued, 5 staff members received their UTQ, and 23 enrolled
- Joint Master programmes started in Hydroinformatics with Universidad del Valle in Colombia and Ain Shams University in Egypt.
- Joint Master programmes started in in Water Supply Engineering and Sanitary Engingeering with Universidad del Valle in Colombia and Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology in Ghana
- A Joint Master programmes started in Land and Water Development with the Asian Institute of Technology in Thailand.
- UNESCO-IHE's first Erasmus Mundus MSc programme in 'Ecohydrology' started for the first time in a consortium with the University of Algarve in Portugal as lead organisation.
- Two Erasmus Mundus programmes in 'Environmental Technology and Engineering' and 'Flood Risk Management' were prepared to start in 2011, the latter with UNESCO-IHE as lead organisation.
- The design of joint programmes with Haramaya University (Ethiopia) and HoHai University (China) moved closer to realization.
- Fifteen online course modules were under development with partner institutes.
- The Moodle open source learning environment was adopted as the Institute's virtual learning environment.

### INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENTS

- A 'Comprehensive Strategy for UNESCO-IHE 2010-2020' was developed and approved by the Governing Board. Internal changes will encourage interdisciplinary work and strengthen academic leadership. External development include the formation of a global campus, intensifying UNESCO-IHE's cooperation with academic partners.
- The refurbishment continued; the facilities for educational activities were completed, including designated areas for problem-based learning, group and individual work, and modernised classrooms with flexible furniture and electronic whiteboards.

## RESEARCH

- There was a record number of registered PhD fellows.
- A joint research group on the Governance of Large Water Works was established with the Delft University of Technology.
- A new wastewater treatment lab with state-of-the-art experimental bio-chemical wastewater treatment equipment was opened.
- The PRoACC and ACCION postdoctoral research programme had a total of 14 active post-docs.
   The internal UNESCO-IHE
- Partnership Research Fund (UPaRF) funded 7 partner-led research projects involving 13 partners with about€1.9 million.
- Within the SWITCH research project, 9 PhD and 11 MSc participants were active at UNESCO-IHE. SWITCH co-organized the conference 'Sustainable Water Management in Cities: Engaging Stakeholders for Effective Change and Action' in Zaragoza (Spain).

.....

### CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT

- The first concept note was developed for establishing a global campus in Asia, Latin America and Africa were taken, through which UNESCO-IHE will further intensify its cooperation with academic partners throughout the world.
- During the Partnership Conference on Joint Educational Programmes held in Delft, a Vision Statement on Strengthening Collaboration in Water Education, Research and Capacity Development was signed by 18 universities.
- The 'Training and capacity building for the water and wastewater sector in Iran' project ended, trained a total of over 3500 people, organised fieldtrips for close to 400 senior sector staff, and developed 100 one-week training course curricula on water supply and sanitation.
- Five NICHE projects were granted: two in South Africa, two in Mozambique and one in Yemen.
- The longer-term cooperation with HydroEx (Brazil) to develop their capacities in water education and research.



# PARTNERSHIPS AND NETWORKS

'Working in partnership' has evolved into the overarching operational principle of the Institute. It cuts across all core activities, be it education, research or capacity building. The collaborative activities take place in the framework of the UNESCO-IHE Global Partnership for Water Education and Research: a strong coalition of water sector institutes, which join forces and mutually strengthen each other to better serve the water sector. Through this partnership UNESCO-IHE will be able to further strengthen the content and relevance of its education and research agenda addressing the full range of both global and local water sector issues.

### In 2010, the Institute continued to make ample progress in developing and implementing joint education programmes with partner institutes, based on a Credit Transfer System, with students conducting part of their studies at different locations. In June 2010, the rectors and programme managers of 18 universities assembled in Delft to formulate a 'Vision Statement on Strengthening Collaboration in Water Education, Research and Capacity development',

with a strong focus on the delivery of joint educational programmes. The vision firmly establishes the need and potential for such programmes (MS, PhD, postdoc level) and recommends an operational framework for establishing the programmes.

## Joint Master's programmes started in

'Water Supply Engineering' and 'Sanitary Engingeering' with Universidad del Valle and Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology (Ghana), in 'Hydroinformatics' with Universidad del Valle (Colombia) and Ain Shams University (Egypt), and in 'Land and Water Development' with the Asian Institute of Technology (Thailand). The Erasmus Mundus programme in 'Ecohydrology' started running, and is given with a consortium of partners consisting of the University of Algarve (Portugal), University of Kiel (Germany), University of Lodz (Poland) and the University of la Plata (Argentina).

The existing joint Master's programmes with the Asian Institute of Technology (Thailand), Hohai University (China), Sriwijaya University (Indonesia), and Dundee University (UK) were continued, while the planned shared programmes with Haramaya University (Ethiopia) and Hohai University (China) moved closer to realisation. Preparations were made for two Erasmus Mundus programme to be delivered in 2011. The Erasmus Mundus Master's programme in 'Flood Risk Management' will be given in a consortium with Technical University of Dresden (Germany), Technical University of Catalonia (Spain) and the University of Ljubljana (Slovenia) and the Erasmus Mundus Master's programme in 'Environmental Technology and Engineering' will be offered in a consortium with Ghent University (Belgium) and Institute of Chemical Technology Prague (Czech Republic). The Education chapter has more information on these programmes.

In 2010, lecture material for more than fifteen new **online course modules** were being developed jointly by teams from UNESCO-IHE and partner institutes. These modules will be shared among the partners in an online educational environment. UNESCO-IHE has adopted the Moodle open source learning environment to facilitate the collaborative educational activities.

The UNESCO-IHE Partnership Research Fund (**UPaRF**) was established in 2008, with the aim of increasing the output of development-relevant research on contemporary issues in the water sector and combining the strengths of the different partner institutes. In 2010, UPaRF allocated new funding for seven small scale research projects involving a total of 13 partner institutes. The UPaRF portfolio now contains a total of 37 research projects with 70 partner institutes in 37 countries. Of the 70 partner institutes, there are 44 universities/research institutes and 11 water sector organisations from developing countries and some 15 institutes from developed countries. The Chapter on Research has more information on these programmes.

Ties with **UNESCO** continued to be intensified. The Institute developed joint activities with various water centers of UNESCO. The MSc specialisation in Water Conflict Management is given together with UNESCO-IHP's 'From Potential Conflict to Cooperation Potential' programme and UNESCO's Centre for Water Law, Policy and Science in Dundee. The Institute and the International Centre for Water Hazard and Risk Management (ICHARM, Japan) jointly gave Climate Change courses at both institutes, exchanging staff from Japan to teach at UNESCO-IHE, and vice versa. The long-term cooperation with HidroEx Institute for Applied Water Science (Brazil) was kicked-off, and a work plan for 2011 - 2014 was finalized, which will aim to strengthen the capacity of HidroEx in water education and reseach, to ultimately achieve a UNESCO Category II status. Also, a short course on the History of Water Management was jointly organized with UNESCO-IHP.

UNESCO-IHE has bilateral partnership agreements with more than 50 public and private organisations in support of shared interests in education, research and capacity building. The following Institutional Agreements were signed in 2010:

# **Bilateral Partnerships**

### Egerton University, Kenya

Signed: April 2010

Goal: Run a joint MSc programme in Limnology and Wetland Ecosystems, upgrade research facilities at Egerton University, cooperation in MSc research, PhD supervision and regional capacity development projects.

### Egyptian Ministry of Water Resources and Irrigation, Egypt

Signed: May 2010

Goal: Share information and knowledge on IWRM with people working in the water sector of Egypt, the Nile basin, and the Middle-East region. The focus is on people working with the MWRI, its research institutes, and Egyptian universities. Foreseen activities include a training needs assessment for the entire sector, curriculum development for water programmes at Egyptian universities, and staff development through UNESCO-IHE's degree and non-degree courses.

### Deutsche Wasserhistorische Gesellschaft (DWhG), Germany

Signed: June 2010

Goal: Exchange information, joint research and developing/ implementing short courses on the history of water management.

### Deltares, The Netherlands

Signed: August 2010

Goal: Joint research, guest lecturing by Deltares' staff in UNESCO-IHE's educational programmes, sharing of staff, joint acquisition of capacity development and research projects, and sponsoring of MSc and PhD research.

### International Water Association (IWA), United Kingdom

*Signed:* September 2010

Goal: Intensify participation of IWA's experts in UNESCO-IHE's online and short courses, setting-up and managing a fellowship fund to support students from developing countries in attending UNESCO-IHE's water and sanitation courses, cooperating in capacity development needs assessments, dissemination activities and benchmarking activities.

### Hohai University, China

*Signed:* November 2010

Goal: Implement three joint MSc specialisations in 'Hydroinformatics', 'Coastal Engineering and Port Development', and 'Hydrology and Water Resources'.

The last year of the second phase (2007-2010) of the MoU with the Dutch Ministry of Transport, Public Works and Water Management (V&W) was in 2010. Activities included sponsoring of research activities and special projects relevant to both UNESCO-IHE and the Ministry. Examples of such activities are sponsorship of MSc and PhD participants in coastal zone management, agricultural water management, flood management including early warning systems, to mangrove ecosystems.

Among the projects facility, it is worth mentioning the organization of a Study Tour for 20 officials from the Ministry of Water Resources of China and the organization of a joint conference on Legal and Institutional aspects of Water Management in Indonesia.

The Ministry expressed interest in a the third phase of the MoU, planned for 2011-2014, with an increased level of cooperation on topics in the Water Mondiaal program of the Dutch National Water Plan).





# MoU & Joint MSc Programme Partners

### North America

- Instituto Mexicano de Technologiadel Agua, Mexico
- The Coca-Cola Company, USA
- University of South Florida, USA
- Army Corps of Engineers, USA
- World Bank Global Development Learning Network, USA

### **South America**

- Technological University of Panama, Panama
- UNESCO-HidroEx, Minas Gerais, Brazil
- Universidade de São Paulo, Brazil
- Universidade Federal de Minas Gerais, Brazil
- University of Brasilia, Brazil

### Asia

- Asian Institute of Technology, Thailand
- Beijing Normal University, China
- China Ministry of Land and Resources, China
- China University of Geosciences, China
- Hohai University, China
- ICHARM, Japan
- International Water Management Institute, Sri Lanka
- Iran Ministry of Energy -Regional Centre on UrbanWater Management, Iran
- Korea Water Resources Corporation, Korea
- Mekong River Commission, Cambodia, Laos, Vietnam, Thailand
- Ministry of Water Resources, Nepal
- National Chiao Tung University Taiwan International Institute for Water Education, Taiwan of China
- Water Resources Bureau Taipei, Taiwan of China
- Yunnan University, China

### Еигоре

- Business Centre for Hydrology Unie van Waterschappen, The Netherlands
- Danish Hydraulic Institute, Denmark
- Delft University of Technology, The Netherlands
- Deltares, The Netherlands
- Deutsche Wasserhistorische Gesellschaft (DWhG), Germany
- International Spate Irrigation Network, The Netherlands
- International Water Association (IWA), United Kingdom
- Netherlands Environmental Assessment Agency, The Netherlands
- Netherlands Ministry of Transport, Public Works and Water Management, The Netherlands
- Politechnica University Timosoara, Romania
- SUEZ Environnement, France
- United Nations Environment Programme-Global Programme for Action, The Netherlands
- VU University Amsterdam, The Netherlands
- Wageningen University, The Netherlands
- Water Board 'Stichtse Rijnlanden', The Netherlands
- WL|Delft Hydraulics, The Netherlands
- Women for Water Partnership, The Netherlands
   World Wide Fund for Network
- World Wide Fund for Nature International, Switzerland
- World Wide Fund for Nature Netherlands, The Netherlands

### Africa

- Cap-Net, South Africa
- Egerton University, Kenya
- Egyptian Ministry of Water Resources and Irrigation, Egypt
- National University of Rwanda, Rwanda
- University of Khartoum, Sudan
- Waternet Trust, Botswana

# Partners with running joint programmes (MSc level) in 2010

- Ain Shams University, Egypt
- Asian Institute of Technology, Thailand
- Austrian Academy of Sciences, Austria
- Dundee University, School of Natural Resources, Law, Policy and Management, Scotland,
- Egerton University, Kenia
- HoHai University, China
- Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology, Ghana
- Mondsee University of Limnology, Austria
- Sriwijaya University, Indonesia
- Universidad del Valle, Colombia
- University of Algarve, Portugal \*
- University of Kiel, Germany \*
- University of la Plata, Argentina \*
- University of Lodz, Poland \*

## Partners with planned joint programmes (MSc level) in 2011

- Ghent University, Belgium \*
- Haramaya University, Ethiopia
- Institute of Chemical Technology Prague, Czech Republic \*
- Technical University of Catalonia, Spain \*
- Technical University of Dresden, Germany \*
- University of Ljubljana, Slovenia \*
- \* consortium member for Erasmus Mundus programme



# EDUCATION

UNESCO-IHE offers a wide range of accredited educational programmes for engineers, social and natural scientists and managers working in the water, environment and infrastructure sectors. Educational options at the Institute include four Master of Science programmes, with a total of nineteen specialisations, a PhD programme, a post-doctoral programme, short and online courses, and tailor-made training courses.

In 2010, **176 MSc** started their programme, which is a slight drop compared to last year. This can be attributed to the fact that 22 fewer NFP scholarships were received than in the previous year, while the number of applications increased further. The amount of students with funding from other sources remained steady. The professionals participanting in short courses rose by 39% to 307, while those in tailor-made training courses rose by 28% to 434. The effort to increase integration, efficiency and flexibility of UNESCO-IHE's MSc programmes continued in 2010. At the start of the MSc programmes in October, the Environmental Science, Municipal Water and Infrastructure and Water Management programmes integrated a lot in their first four modules, eliminating the overlap of subject matter taught in different modules in the same period.

The Institute progressed with developing and conducting educational activities in collaboration with partner institutes. This is done in the framework of making water education more accessible and affordable for increasing numbers of students, and further developing the capacity of water education worldwide.

Joint programmes that started running in 2010 were 'Hydroinformatics' with Universidad del Valle (Colombia) and Ain Shams University (Egypt), 'Water Supply Engineering' and 'Sanitary Engingeering' with Universidad del Valle (Colombia) and Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology (Ghana), and 'Land and Water Development' with the Asian Institute of Technology (Thailand). The Erasmus Mundus Master's programme 'Ecohydrology' was offered for the first time in a consortium with the University of Algarve (Portugal), University of Kiel (Germany), University of Lodz (Poland) and the University of la Plata (Argentina).

Discussions were conducted with several partner institutes to look at the feasibility of starting additional joint programmes in 2011 and beyond. Most of them concern the decentralised delivery of existing specialisations offered in Delft. This is the case for 'Agricultural Water Management for Arid and semiarid Climates' with Haramaya University (Ethiopia), Hydrology and Water Resources with Hohai University (China). Also, in 2011, the first ever Erasmus Mundus Master's programme that UNESCO-IHE will lead, namely 'Flood Risk Management' will be delivered in a consortium with Technical University of Dresden (Germany), Technical University of Catalonia (Spain) and the University of Ljubljana (Slovenia). The Erasmus Mundus programme in 'Environmental Technology and Engineering' will be offered in a consortium with Ghent University (Belgium) and Institute of Chemical Technology Prague (Czech Republic).

NUMBER OF DEGREE PARTICIPANTS





### NUMBER OF MSC PARTICIPANTS Participants | Academic period





Also, in 2010 four of UNESCO-IHE's **short courses** -Lake Ecology, Stream and River Ecology, Tropical Wetlands for Water Quality, and Fisheries and Aquaculture - were organized in collaboration with - and hosted by - Egerton University in Kenia.

Almost all of UNESCO-IHE's online courses were made available through the **Moodle** open source platform - UNESCO-IHE's virtual learning environment. Videos of (guest) lectures can be streamed to Moodle, allowing them to be incorporated into the Institute's educational products. Also, Moodle training was given to partners with whom UNESCO-IHE had collaborative educational activities in 2010.

Internal arrangements were made to start with a new Education Bureau as per January 2011. The Education Bureau will coordinate and administrate all educational programmes and provide a Quality Management framework, as well as guide the process of educational innovation including aspects of flexibility and cooperation with partners. A parttime Interim Director Academic Affairs was appointed to guide the process of establishing the Education Bureau. The position of Vice Rector Academic Affairs will follow up the Interim Director position, with the main responsibility to assure the quality of the Institute's education and research and determine their strategic directions.

In the framework of **qual**ity assurance of joint master **programmes**, a policy on human resources requirements for double degree programmes was written, containing guidelines on the quality of academic staff, student-staff ratio, competencies and training of academic staff members. Also, a policy was written on Examination Requirements for programmes which are developed in cooperation with one or several higher education institutions.

UNESCO-IHE organised two **refresher seminars** for its alumni. The seminar entitled 'Flood Based Farming as Part of River Basin Water Management' was held in Ethiopia, whilst the seminar 'Participatory Management of Flood Risk in Changing Climate' was given in Nepal.

### During the Partnership Conference on Joint Educational Programmes held at the Institute

in June, a Vision Statement on Strengthening Collaboration in Water Education, Research and Capacity Development was formulated and signed by representatives of 18 partner universities. This Vision Statement establishing the need and potential of the delivery of joint educational programmes, recommending an operational framework for establishing such programmes. UNESCO-IHE's MSc programmes are accredited by the Dutch - Flemish Accreditation Organisation (NVAO) until 2013. In view of the **re-accreditation** in 2013, the Institute opted for an institutional accreditation according to the new NVAO Accreditation Framework. The institutional accreditation allows for more flexibility in case the Institute wishes to offer more MSc programmes or to register some of the (joint) specializations independently.

REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION OF PARTICIPANTS ACADEMIC YEAR 2010-2011 Percentage



## **EDUCATION**

The Institute deployed an improved and more consistant methodology for the evaluation of course modules. This new system consists of online module surveys for the course participants and digital evaluation reports for the academic staff.

### 'Post Masters extensions'

allow former MSc student to remain at the Institute after graduation to increase the output of their research by, for example, preparing a scientific publication, writing a project proposal, or developing a case. In 2010, 32 students were accepted for - and made use of - the post Masters extensions facilities.

A novelty in 2010 was the decision that all Programme Committees will have a student representative, as per 1 January 2011. The student representative will give feedback on the structure and content of the MSc programme, and shall serve for a period of one calendar year.

### **MSc Programmes and Specialisations 2010**

### MSc PROGRAMME IN ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE

Environmental Planning and Management	Db
Environmental Science and Technology	Db
Environmental Technology for Sustainable Development	Jdd
Limnology and Wetland Ecosystems	J
Water Quality Management	Db

#### MSc PROGRAMME IN MUNICIPAL WATER AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Sanitary Engineering	Db   Jdd
Jrban Water Engineering and Management	Jdd
Water Supply Engineering	Db   Jdd

### MSc PROGRAMME IN WATER MANAGEMENT

Vater Conflict Management	Db
Vater Resources Management	Db
Vater Services Management	Db
Vater Quality Management	Db

### MSc PROGRAMME IN WATER SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

Jdd
Jem
Db
Db   J
Db   Jdd
Db   J   Jdd
Db
Jdd

**Db** Delft-based MSc specialisation

Joint programme

Jdd Joint double degree programme Jem Joint Erasmus Mundus programme

In July, the **Erasmus Mundus** Grant Committee selected UNESCO-IHE's proposal on a new Masters programme on Flood Risk Management for funding. UNESCO-IHE will be leading a consortium with the Technical University of Dresden (Germany), Technical University of Catalonia (Spain) and University of Ljubljana (Slovenia). Associated members include the European hydraulics laboratories of DHI (Denmark), Deltares (The Netherlands) and HR Wallingford (UK), and key national organisations responsible for flood management, including Rijkswaterstaat (The Netherlands) and ICHARM (Japan). All these partners bring their specific complementary expertise in flood risk management to the programme.

During the 2-year programme students start at the Technical University of Dresden, where they complete their first semester with courses on hydro-meteorological processes, global change and its impact, flood risk management and GIS. Then, the students move to UNESCO-IHE for their second semester with courses on modelling for planning, forecasting, control and decision support, hazard mapping, ICT, and fluvial flooding and urban flood disasters. Subsequently, the students move to the Technical University of Catalonia to follow the first part of their third semester with courses on hazards due to flash floods, debris flow, coastal flooding, and climate change. The last part of the third semester is hosted by the University of Ljubljana with courses on spatial planning,

and socio-economic and institutional framework of flood risk management. Each semester provides a number of electives, and there are international fieldtrips. Finally, the students carry out thesis work at one of the institutes of higher education or with an industrial partner.

Graduates will become flood risk professionals with a broad vision of the processes occurring in river basins and in coastal zones at different spatial and temporal scales. The will be able to master the links between systems, processes and natural and socio-economic constraints for all the aspects of the water cycle. Successful candidates receive MSc degrees from the Technical University of Dresden, UNESCO-IHE and the Technical University of Catalonia, Barcelona.



The research themes, and how they relate to the Institute's cores and research lines, are presented in Annex 5 | Research Themes.

A complete list of projects started, ongoing or finished in 2010 are in Annex 4 | Projects. UNESCO-IHE centers its education, research and capacity development programmes around Water Security, Environmental Integrity, Urbanisation, Water Management and Governance, Information and Communication Systems. Through each of these themes, the Institute addresses the major water issues and challenges faced by many countries around the world. To illustrate the Institute's research activities, this chapter presents a selection of projects for each theme.

In 2008, the programmatic cooperation with DGIS began. A large part of this collaboration entails research connected to capacity development, and to this end the internal UNESCO-IHE Partnership Research **Fund** (UPaRF) was founded. Besides financial resources from the DGIS collaboration, UPaRF also contains base funding from the Dutch Ministry of Education and Science. This fund stimulates interdisciplinary and cross-core research projects, and focuses on the themes of: integrated management of water supply and sanitation, sustainable management of aquatic ecosystems and land use, water allocation and decision processes in river basins and mitigation of and adaptation to climate change. In 2010 UPaRF launched a Call for Proposals for Small Size Research Projects specifically intended for partner institutes of UNESCO-IHE. This call resulted in seven proposals receiving a grant ranging from € 25,000 to € 35,000. The total requested funding for the seven projects amounts to €194,600. Seventy partner institutes from 37 countries are involved in the UPaRF's collaborative research efforts.

As a result of UPaRF funding, the Institute was able to substantially expand its research portfolio. As a consequence, the number of **registered PhD fellows increased** again in 2010. More information on the 7 PhD graduations and on the 129 registered PhD fellows can be found in Annex 3 | PhD Fellows.

Although UPaRF was a very important programme to develop research at the Institute, UNESCO-IHE remained very active in other **research programmes** as well. In 2010, the Institute's research activities were also funded by agencies including the European Commission, NWO-WOTRO, USAID, DG Water and SenterNovem. In 2010 a joint research group on the Governance of Large Water Works was established with the Delft University of Technology. This research group will study how large infrastructures are operated & managed, a currently under-researched subject of high societal and environmental relevance.

The number of scientific **publications** produced by the Institute's academic staff continued to grow. This year, the increase in the number of journal articles was especially notable, with a total of 184 in peer-reviewed journals. A complete list of publications is located in Annex 6 | Publications.





### RESEARCH OUTPUTS Outputs | Year



Water Security is about sustaining a balance between water availability and demand. It involves protection against the extremes of floods and droughts by reducing the associated hazards, promoting the wise use of water resources, and expanding access to safe and reliable water services.

# Water Security

### The Flood Resilience

**Group** - a multidisciplinary research group affiliated with both UNESCO-IHE and Delft University of Technology - published a text book on Urban Flood Management. The project 'Urban Flood Management in Dordrecht' was successfully completed with the establishment of a learning alliance, and with an endorsed design to build in the flood area. Work is continued on establishing Learning Alliances with other cities, such as Melbourne and Bombay, based on the successful Learning Alliances in Dordrecht and Rotterdam.

The new project Modeling Hydrodynamics, Sediments and Ecology in the San Fransisco Bay (CASCaDE

II), funded by the US Geological Survey, was approved. CASCaDE II refines and extends the modeling capabilities of a prior project, where a set of linked models were built to assess Delta ecosystem response to climate change, in order to develop a holistic view of the Bay-Delta-River-Watershed system. With a new stateof-the-art hydrodynamic and sediment model at its core, this project assesses possible futures of the Delta under scenarios of climate and structural change, and gives science-based information to support the goals of water supply and ecosystem protection.

### In the **Ecohydrology**

Erdos China project a research catchment was instrumented to monitor the complete hydrological cycle and its interactions with ecosystems, including groundwater & surface water interaction, and water & ecosystem interaction. The installation of a river discharge measurement gages station was completed, as well as the installation of a sap flow system to measure the water use of trees. The results will provide a scientific base for sustainable water resources management and ecosystem projection in the cold semi-arid Erdos plateau of China.

in a number of studies on climate change impacts, including the USGS-funded project on the effects of sea level rise on wave attenuation on wetlands in San Francisco Bay (Corte Madera area), and a new project on climate change effects on seasonally closing tidal inlets in Sri Lanka and Thailand in collaboration with CSIRO (Australia), Deltares (The Netherlands), AIT (Thailand), the University of Peradeniya and the University of Moratuwa (Sri Lanka, and on climate change Impacts

on Australian coasts, funded

by Australian government

(visiting postdoc research).

UNESCO-IHE was active

### Model development and validation remains

an important aspect of the Institute's coastal engineering and port development activities. The development of the open source XBeach model was tested against field data on the Ningaloo Reef in Western Australia. Work continued on modelling the long-term morphological development of estuaries and tidal inlets, such as Western Scheldt, Marsdiep and Ameland inlet in the Netherlands, the San Francisco and San Pablo bays in the US, and 2 PhD studies for the Yangtze Estuary (China). A new unstructured grid model system developed by Deltares (The Netherlands) was tested for the San Francisco Bay and Sacramento and San Joaquin Delta.



Urbanisation is concerned with the enormous political and social pressures placed on local governments to expand services and infrastructure related to water supply, treatment and distribution, wastewater collection and treatment, storm drainage and solid waste, while minimising the impact on the environment.

# **Urbanisation**

The SCUSA research project aims to develop socially, environmentally and financially sustainable sanitation systems for urban slums in Sub-Saharan Africa with partners Makerere University and the Kampala City Council, both in Uganda. In 2010, one PhD fellow was working in the project, supported by several students' MSc research. Several articles were published in peer-reviewed journals, and around twenty presentations were given. The researchers from the participating institutes will collaborate on the development of sustainable sanitation systems, and share results within the region.

A new wastewater treatment lab was established in November 2010, using mostly second hand equipment and an entrepreneurial financing model. The project is carried out under the framework of the SALINE research project and was financed by UNESCO-IHE and Prof. Ekama from the University of Cape Town, whose final co-financing made the project possible. The new lab provides ten research stations with state-of-the-art experimental bio-chemical wastewater treatment equipment for MSc, PhD and post-doc sanitary engineering students.

**UNESCO-IHE** was granted EC grants though EuropeAid to carry out two projects in Cuba on adapting to climate change and mitigating water scarcity by innovative urban water management, and on strengthening the Cuban food production and aquaculture sector through resources optimization and recovery. These projects will start and are envisaged to contribute to reduce water scarcity in Cuba, as well as to increase food security through the recovery and optimisation of resources (water, energy, nutrients) in the food processing chain. They will strengthen the expertise of Cuban water professionals and experts from the food sector by transferring the knowledge generated through the project to local graduate and post-graduate education.

The AQUASENSE project was completed in 2010, with the successful testing of the prototype of a device for the analysis of macro-physical chemical parameters and trace metals in a range of water compositions from fresh to waste water. This innovative tool developed within the project, can be used as a field device, or for remote stand-alone monitoring. Use of this tool will improve the implementation and policing of water related legislation.

On the subject of **arsenic removal**, three projects started in 2010. The AsRem Serbia research project on arsenic removal includes a field demonstration in Serbia. A pilot plant, based on UNESCO IHE's innovative arsenic removal technology became fully operational in Subotica. The project Long Term Strategy for Water Supply of Vojvodina, Serbia, started in 2010, in which UNESCO-IHE is leading a consortium. The project provides strategic advice to the government of Serbia on long-term strategies for the future water supply of the Vojvodina province, where the groundwater is heavily contaminated with arsenic. AsRem Ferritine is a lab research project on arsenic removal by adsorption on ferritin based adsorbent.



Environmental Integrity recognises the complementary needs of societal development and of the consequent quality of the aquatic environment. Core issues are the equitable allocation and use of natural resources, the prevention and control of pollution, and the sustainable use of aquatic ecosystems.

# **Environmental Integrity**

**ECOLIVE** is a research project that develops approaches for conserving papyrus wetlands so that their natural functions are protected while poor rural populations can rely on their livelihoods services. The project develops a transdisciplinary analytical framework that facilitates participation of stakeholders, and create new knowledge in an integrated framework aiding towards achieving policy goals of poverty reduction and ecosystem conservation. In 2010, three PhD fellows started their fieldwork on the hydrology, ecology and socioeconomics of Nyando wetland, Kenya. Nine MSc students were active in the project, of which six at UNESCO-IHE. Two stakeholder fora were held in Kisumu (Kenya) with stakeholders from the Nyando wetlands. Partners in the project are Egerton University (Kenya), VIRED International (an environmental NGO based in Kisumu, Kenya) and the University of Amsterdam (The Netherlands).

In the **SOWACOR** project funded by the King Abdullah University of Science and Technology, metal removal by microorganisms is studied, developing processes that can be applied for the removal and recovery of metals from contaminated groundwater or wastewater. The project identifies and describes the different mechanisms underlying metal removal by microorganisms, such as biosorption, bioaccumulation and bioprecipitation. In 2010, metal removal experiments were done with both growing and inactive microbial cells and the metal removal was optimised in 'highyield' bioreactors. The formed metal-biomass particles were characterised using XANES at the ESRF cyclotron facility in Grenoble. In addition, leaching of the bound metals was investigated in a novel anaerobic bioleaching process.

The first cohort of the Erasmus Mundus **ETECOS3** - Joint Doctorate Environmental Technologies for Contaminated Soils, Sediments and Solid Waste - started in 2010. This new EC funded program combines training though research with training though education, and results in a European PhD degree in Environmental Technology, issued jointly by University of Cassino (Italy), University Paris-Est (France) and UNESCO-IHE. The enrolled students carry out laboratory research on trace metal dosing to anaerobic reactors, anaerobic oxidation of methane coupled to sulfate reduction, biological removal of selenium from wastewaters and bioremediation of gypsyferous soils.

Throughout the year, eight talks under the **UNESCO-IHE Water Colloquium series** were held. The Water Colloquium series, established in 2008, present gems within the Institute's research projects and programmes, to enhance interdisciplinary cooperation as well as increase the integration of research by stimulating intercore and inter-department collaborations at UNESCO-IHE. Removal of Organic Micropollutants From Water During Soil Passage by Saroj Sharma

Observing the Himalayas From Satelites - Are They Melting Faster? by Shreeedhar Maskey

, Resource Recovery in Sanitation

Urban Hydroinformatics

by Mariska Ronteltap

by Zoran Vojinovic

Flood Modelling and Management by Giuliano Di Baldassarre Innovative Capacity Development for Improved Water and Sanitation Delivery in Small Towns around Lake Victoria by Maarten Blokland

Results of the SCUSA Project by Jan Willem Foppen

Quantitative Microbial Risk Assessment for Integrated Urban Water Management in Accra by Peter van der Steen

Information and Communication Systems addresses the opportunities provided by advances in information and communication technologies for monitoring and acquiring data, computer-based modelling, decision support, and knowledgebased systems for integrated water resources management. This is paralleled by the ongoing concern to enhance the corresponding knowledge base through research, and the effective sharing and transfer of knowledge.

## Information & Communication Systems

The Grant Agreements of the EC FP7 funded project Knowledgebased approach to develop a cULTUre of Risk prevention in Europe (KULTURisk) were signed in 2010. KULTURisk is a € 4.4 million collaborative project, coordinated by UNESCO-IHE, which aims to develop a culture of risk prevention through a knowledgebased approach, whereby the socio-economic benefits of risk prevention techniques are assessed and that knowledge transferred to policymakers and practitioners. To this end, KULTURisk will review state-of the-art approaches and strategies to prevent water-related risks, evaluate the costs and benefits of methodical and structured use of risk prevention options compared to traditional post-disaster recovery costs, and use the results to efficiently educate the public and train professionals in risk prevention. The actual start will be in 2011.

The Lenvis research project aims to create an innovative collaborative decision support network - integrating environmental and health issues - by connecting existing systems and services in a European-wide mesh of collaborating environmental services. User involvement is a key element of Lenvis. An environmental portal was developed for the province of Noord Brabant, on which the user can find information on bathing water quality, and give feedback on the quality at a specific site. The website was tested with Dutch users in August 2010.

The work under the **Development** of a Decision Support System (DSS) for Wastewater Decision Making project kicked off in 2010. The project develops a DSS that can be applied by water and industry professionals, as well as the Asian Development Bank officers in evaluating wastewater management options concerning pipe network systems and wastewater treatment facilities. The basic functionality of the DSS was developed; future effort will entail the enhancement of its capabilities and development of further functionality.

The EC FP7 project Merging hydrological models and EO data for reliable information on Water (MyWATER) received funding in 2010. It will implement a new information platform which integrates data from three scientific research areas – earth observation, meteorology and catchment modelling - to better access hydrological processes. It will develop and validate data-models approaches to supply access to multiple sources of data, in view of obtaining reliable information on watershed water availability and quality in different environments and with different technologic support.





# Water Management & Governance

The project In Search of Sustainable Catchments and Basin-wide Solidarities; Transboundary Water Management of the **Blue Nile** River Basin, identifies and analyzes the factors contributing to sustainable practices in upstream catchments and investigates how this knowledge can be used for integrated river basin management. Project partners are Addis Ababa University (Ethiopia), University of Khartoum (Sudan), and the International Water Management Institute. In 2010, the project has grown to ten full-time researchers. Because of additional NFP / NPT funds, the project became more balanced in terms of gender and nationality. It is notable that professional contacts between the universities and water ministries of both countries are excellent, despite the rising pressures in the region.

The risk-based operational water management for the **Incomati River Basin** project was started in 2010. South Africa's Water Research Commission provided additional funds to one of the local partner universities. The project is done in collaboration with with Eduardo Mondlane University, Komati Basin Water Authority and the University of Kwazulu-Natal, and aims at collaboration to improve water scarce rivers.

The proposal for the EC-FP7 funded project Africa at a Meso-scale: Adaptive and Integrated Tools and Strategies for Natural Resources Management (AFROMAISON) was approved. The challenge of AFROMAISON is to provide a holistic toolbox and operational framework for Integrated Natural Resource Management that can be applied in a variety of environmental and socio-economic conditions in Africa. UNESCO-IHE will work in close cooperation with partners and stakeholders on tools for spatial planning, covering tools for negotiation on alternative land uses (tradeoff analysis, multi-criteria) and spatiallyexplicit impact assessment.

The Power2Flow research project is implemented together with Eduardo Mondlane University (Mozambigue), WaterNet Trust Southern Africa (South Africa), and the Swiss Federal Institute of Technology (Switzerland). Power2Flow analyzes the reallocation of water between the hydropower sector and the environment in the Zambezi basin. In 2010, one PhD fellow started her fieldwork together with the University of Zimbabwe. An economic model - demonstrating how all the hydropower plants in the region could cooperate - was built, resulting in several publications. This basin offers an opportunity, through the existence of organized stakeholders (power authorities, power companies, and environmental NGOs) to influence both the operation of existing dams and the design of new ones.



Water Management and Governance deals with the multi-disciplinary nature of water management and addresses the need for a holistic view of the complex water-based systems that are the subject of such management. Maintaining the integrity of natural resources can only be achieved with the involvement of the natural and mathematical sciences, engineering and technology, health and medical sciences, and the social and behavioral sciences including law, politics and institutional development and management.

During the year, the work on the DUPC financed PROBE project gained momentum. Three MSc students graduated from UNESCO-IHE; a further eight MSc students - of which three at UNESCO-IHE - started their research. In addition, two PhD students, one at Universidade de São Paulo (Brazil) and one at Makerere University (Uganda) prepared their research proposals. The number of partners in the project increased from nine to 15. Additional funds were allocated, allowing the participation of two new academic partners. The project was presented during the IWA World Congress in September 2010 in Montreal, Canada.

The DUPC financed **Partnerships** project seeks to analyze the functioning of partnerships, and involves in-depth case studies of different forms of partnerships. Two MSc theses were completed within the project and a further six MSc students initiated their research at the Institute. Papers were presented at the International Water History Association Conference in Delft, the Netherlands and at the WaterNet Symposium in Victoria Falls, Zimbabwe.

### At UNESCO-IHE, post-doctoral climate change research is gaining momentum. In 2010, two large interdisciplinary research programmes with a similar set-up were active.

The interdisciplinary research Programme on Adaptation to Climate Change (**PRoACC**) with a special focus on the Mekong River Basin started with an inception workshop at UNESCO-IHE in April 2010. ProACC is a post-doctoral fellowships programme that researches the challenges of adapting to climate change from different water-related perspectives. The programme consists of eight post-docs who undertake their research under the guidance of a supervision team including a mentor from UNESCO-IHE and one from a partner institute. Partners that collaborate in this project are the Asian Institute of Technology (Thailand), Mekong River Commission, Changjiang River Scientific Research Institute and the Chinese Academy of Science (all in China), Southern Institute of Water Resources Research, the Vietnam Institute of Meteorology, Hydrology and Environment and the Water Resources University, Can Tho University (all in Vietnam). The research programme Adaptation to Climate Change Impacts on the Nile River Basin (**ACCION**) develops a probabilistic framework encompassing best practices, uncertainty analysis tools and supportive modelling facilities for adaptation strategies for water resources management in the Nile basin region. In October a mini-symposium on Global Change Modeling for the Water Resources of the Nile was held to bring together researchers working on this subject. In 2010, there were six post-doctoral researchers within the ACCION programme, guided by both UNESCO-IHE and the partner institutes. Partners collaborating in the project are Nile Basin Capacity Building Network for River Engineering (Egypt), Addis Ababa University (Ethiopia), Makerere University (Uganda), University of Dar es Sallam (Tanzania), and University of Nairobi (Kenya).



# CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT

UNESCO-IHE provides capacity development services to knowledge institutes and water sector organisations around the world. Through these operations, the Institute increases its global impact and helps to build sustainable organisations that are equipped to properly manage water resources and deliver water services to all communities. Services include institutional development projects, tailor-made training and policy advice.

In 2010, UNESCO-IHE considerably expanded its portfolio on **NICHE** capacity development projects. Five new projects were granted: two in South Africa, two in Mozambique, and one in Yemen.

The inception phase of the four-year project Enhancing Institutional Capacity in Water and Waste Water Treatment was completed, with UNESCO-IHE as the lead partner. The project will enhance the capacity at the Tshwane University of Technology (South Africa), and develop a Post Graduate Diploma Programme in Water Service Management and a Higher Certificate- and Advanced Certificate Programme in (Waste) Water Treatment Technology.

The project Capacity Building for Integrated Water Resource Management in South Africa with Cape Peninsula University of Technology and the University of the Western Cape also completed its inception phase, with Wageningen University as the lead partner. The four-year project Introduction of Water & Sanitation Curricula at the Universidade Eduardo Mondlane, Mozambique will be led by Delft University of Technology. The project will support the establishment of the Water and Sanitation programme at the communal school for rural development (ESUDER) in Vilanculos.

The University Zambeze Capacity Building Project is led by Hanze University Groningen. The objective is to Strengthen recently created public University Zambezi (Mozambique) in order to provide input for better education to deliver qualified well-trained professionals in the fields of Engineering and Health sciences. The project Strengthening the Research Capacity of the Water Sector in Yemen includes joint staff research, two PhD fellows, 20 local MSc students and 20 small pilot projects. The MSc programme in Integrated Water Resources Management at the Water and Environment Center (WEC) in Sana'a University will be upgraded, and WEC's position as the regional center of excellence for research and education in water and environment will be strengthened.

The total project turnover in 2010 was  $\leq$  13.45 million, including the internal DUPC fund - DGIS UNESCO-IHE Programmatic Cooperation. 'Institutional strengthening' and 'research' projects again represent the majority of UNESCO-IHE's projects (respectively 40% and 45%). Both 'institutional strengthening' and 'research' projects showed an increase in turnover, from  $\leq$  5.1 million in 2009 to  $\leq$  5.4 million in 2010, and from  $\leq$  4.3 million in 2009 to  $\leq$  6 million in 2010 respectively. The complete overview of projects in which UNESCO-IHE was involved in 2010 is presented in Annex 4.

### PROJECT TURNOVER Euro x 1000 | Year



# CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT

In 2010, the two-year Training and Capacity Building for the Water and Wastewater Sector in Iran **TCBWI** project ended. In collaboration with the Power and Water University of Technology in Tehran (Iran), over 100 oneweek courses were delivered in Iran for more than 3500 professionals in water and wastewater technologies, planning and management. Also, almost 400 Iranian seniors were exposed to European practices during 24 study tours for technical and financial specialists and general managers. These tours consisted of technical visits to Dutch, German, French, Belgian and Luxemburg water and wastewater companies.

In February, representatives from UNESCO-IHE travelled to Brazil to kick off the long term cooperation between UNESCO-IHE and **HidroEx**, the recently established UNESCO Category II Centre for Education, Capacity Building and Applied Research in Water. UNESCO-IHE plays a central role in strengthening the capacity of HidroEx in water education and research. Toward that goal a work plan for 2011 - 2014 was finalized when representatives from HidroEx visited the Institute toward the end of the year. The project Training and Capacity Development for Improved Water and Sanitation Delivery in Towns around the Lake Victoria Basin operating under the Lake Victoria Region Water and Sanitation Initiative was continued. The issues around poor service delivery and the related capacity deficiencies in ten towns were identified and a total of 21 capacity development interventions were prepared, of which ten by UNESCO-IHE. Training and coaching of local facilitators was carried out, and a total of 100 capacity building events are now being implemented for a targeted 3000 participants representing all stakeholder groups from the ten towns around the lake.

In the Middle East, the Small Scale Water Treatment Facilities for Domestic Use and Artificial Recharge with Surface Water (EXACT) project contributes to improved water supply. In 2010, a field demonstration pilot plant for chromium removal based on an innovative UNESCO-IHE technology was demonstrating highly efficient performance operation in Holon, Israel. Two demonstration scale plants were in operation and provided drinking water from the Al Qilt spring to more than 15.000 people in two refugee camps. Support to the upgrading of the Aqbat Jaber drinking water treatment plant in Jericho, the West Bank continued. An MSc study under the project was completed at Birzeit University.

The Capacity Building for Water Programs in Higher Education in the Caribbean **CAPCAR** project assists Caribbean universities on developing their water curricula at the BSc and MSc levels. In the framework of the staff development component, three staff members from local universities followed an MSc at UNESCO-IHE. Assessment reports on university policies, curriculum development, and the delivery of training materials were produced. Discussions began on enhancing water research in the Caribbean. Partners in the project are the University of the West Indies, University of Guyana and the College of Science, Technology and Applied Arts of Trinidad & Tobago.

The new two-year project Flood Risk Assessment for Eleven Caribbean Islands evaluates flood hazards an vulnerabilities due to inland as well as coastal flooding (flash floods, coastal storm surges, and tsunamis). The project covers data collection, modeling, GIS mapping and the development of pilot early warning systems for disaster management. The Institute has a dual role in the project: the execution of work on St. Maarten, and the review of work undertaken by other parties on the other islands. On St. Maarten, data collection was completed; NASA supported this by providing access to satellite data for bathimetry mapping.



The project Knowledge Networks for the Nile Basin, the second in a series of projects to establish and strengthen the Nile Basin Capacity Building Network **NBCBN** in the field of River Engineering, was concluded in in 2010. In November, NBCBN organized a regional conference on 'Sustainable Solutions for Strengthening the Capacity of the Nile Water Professionals' in Cairo (Egypt), to disseminate and share research outputs of the second phase, to discuss the future strategic plan of the network (2011-2015), and to extend cooperation with more partners on both regional and international levels. An important recommendation of the conference was to gradually shift the network's focus from River and Hydraulic Engineering to include other waterrelated subjects, and broaden the initial focus of applied research with education and training. As the Applied Training Programme of the Nile Basin Initiative (NBI) closed in 2009, the NBCBN currently the only Capacity Development programme in the Nile basin. Thus, a more structural cooperation will be formed between NBI and NBCBN, starting with an exploratory meeting in the beginning of 2011.





**PROJECT PER TYPE IN 2010** 

# CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT

With the successful training course on water quality monitoring and management at the National Water Resources Institute (Nigeria) in June 2010, the 3-year project Consultancy services for senior management training for water quality monitoring - Nigeria came to an end. In this project, a total of 28 senior managers from the the Nigerian Federal Ministry of Agriculture and Water Resources were trained.

The 3rd **CKNet-INA** Open Network Conference held in Jakarta in December marked the start of a new phase for the network. UNESCO-IHE's five year lead role in supporting the development of the new knowledge network of ten leading universities in Indonesia ended. The network focuses on delivering services to enhance the capacity of the water, environment and infrastructure sector in Indonesia. Twenty-one new members requested to become a member of CKNet-INA. The local consultancy firm PT IHE Indonesia will take over the coordination of the project, by hosting the CKNet-INA Network-Secretariat. UNESCO-IHE will continue to provide backstopping activities.

The **NPT Rwanda** project in Water Resources and **Environmental Management** (WREM) was successfully closed. An expected spin-off of the project is a 2nd phase starting in 2011. In 2010, activities included the graduation of the third batch of students in the locally established MSc programme. The project promoted demand-driven research and developed academic and professional expertise at the National University of Rwanda (NUR), through short courses, MSc and PhD programmes.

The NPT Ethiopia project supports emerging River Basin organisations in Ethiopia and establishes a partnership between universities and water sector organisations in the country. It develops an IRBM Masters curriculum for eight universities, and strengthens the capacity of current demand-driven research together with water sector organisations. In 2010, three proposals were developed for demand driven applied research projects together with local universities and the regional water sector. The MSc level IWRM curriculum of three universities was validated.



### In the EU-China River Basin Management Programme for high and medium level officials

nign and medium level officials four trainings including study tours were given in Europe for about 50 staff from the China Ministry of Water Resources, the Ministry of Environmental Protection and the Yellow River Conservancy Commission. Subjects covered in these trainings were integrated water resources management lessons learnt in the EU, climate change and water quality improvement.

In the World Bank sponsored project strengthening IWRM in Mongolia, UNESCO-IHE is responsible for the capacity development component. In 2010, the first training courses were conducted, and a Mongolian university team visited the Institute for a curriculum training event in July. These training courses will aid three Mongolian Universities in setting up a joint Master programme in Integrated Water Resource Management with the purpose of enabling Mongolia to train its own water professionals in the longer term.

The 4-year project 'Development of a joint Indonesian-**Dutch Water Quality Education** and Research Centre for East Indonesia' was closed with a dissemination workshop held in Manado, Sulawesi, Indonesia. In the project two groups of 20 Indonesian staff were trained on the topics of Water Treatment and Distribution, and Water Quality Management (WQM). Two students of the University Sam Ratulangi (UNSRAT) in Manado successfully completed the WQM specialisation under UNESCO-IHE's Environmental Science and Water Management MSc Programmes. These students played a key role in setting up an MSc Programme in WQM at UNSRAT.

The Mekong basin floods annually bring local benefits like fertile agricultural grounds and abundant fish. On occasion these floods can also be devastating, causing casualties and damage. Fast paced basin developments - often with transboundary dimensions further impact these risks and benefits. The Mekong Agreement 1995 and the Mekong **River Commission** (MRC) aim at providing an effective framework for transboundary cooperation. Addressing transboundary issues requires the participation of all stakeholders, including all levels of government, and interdisciplinary and interagency teams. The members of these teams often lack adequate knowledge of water management, conflict management, legal and institutional aspects, as well as technical tools to support management. UNESCO-IHE implements the programme 'Anticipating and Resolving Flood Issues, Differences and Disputes in the Lower Mekong Basin' for the Mekong River Commission (MRC) together with local and international partner institutes and programmes, including UNESCO-PCCP. After a pilot phase, the second phase of the programme started in 2010 with a group of 30 mid-level professionals from the four Lower Mekong Countries and Myanmar. Their programme consisted of three training workshops, and a pilot study: a role play of three days in which participants representing MRC institutions resolve a transboundary issue by applying the principles of the Mekong Agreement 1995. They are supported by a set of administrative and technical tools.

The first training workshop on 'Water Resources Development and Flood Management in a Transboundary Context' took place at the Water Resources University in Ho-Chi-Minh City (Vietnam) and the second training on 'Transboundary Water Conflict Management and International Water Governance' at the Mekong Institute in Khon Kaen (Thailand). A third course will be given in 2011. A test of the pilot study was carried out with staff of national universities in the Mekong region at the Royal University of Phnom Penh (Cambodia). They also attended short courses at UNESCO-IHE, preparing them to take over part of the training in later phases and further strengthening regional academic partnerships.



# ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENTS

# **Personnel and Organisation**

The Institute entered a process of reform. After a consultative process with staff members and external experts, the document 'Comprehensive Strategy for UNESCO-IHE 2010-2020'

was developed and discussed in the Governing Board in November. The implementation will kick-off in 2011, starting with the establishment of an Education Bureau, Eurther internal organisational changes are foreseen in both the academic and supporting departments, primarily to encourage interdisciplinary work and strengthen academic leadership. The most important external development will be the formation of a global campus, by which UNESCO-IHE will further intensify its cooperation with academic partners throughout the world.

In 2010, the organizational structure of the Institute changed as the IT group - formerly under the Central Services department converted into the IT department. Arrangements were made for the establishment of the Education Bureau - comprehensively supporting the development and assuring the quality of educational programmes - as per January 2011. An interim Head of the Education Bureau - to supervise its installment and manage the day-to-day activities of the Bureau - was found internally.

Prof. Stefan Uhlenbrook was appointed as part-time **Interim Director Academic Affairs** in August, to strengthen the academic leadership as a third member of the Rectorate - until the UNESCO position of Vice Rector Academic Affairs has been recruited in cooperation with UNESCO-HQ. The latter will be responsible for the quality and determination of the strategic directions of the Institute's education and research.

The Institute continued its involvement in the project team 'Expats', instituted by the Mayor of Delft. The project team advises the city on measures and investments to take to strengthen the appeal of the city for expats, and consists of larger international employers. The most prominent staff development activity in 2010 was the University Teaching Qualification (UTQ) training programmes, a certification for lecturing at the university level. Five academic staff members received their UTQ diploma, and 23 started their UTQ training programme.

On 31 December 2010, staff equalling 161 full-time equivalents (fte) were employed by UNESCO-IHE, of whom 54% were academic and 46% supporting staff. Policies in the field of **employee benefits** worked on and developed in 2010 include an SDAS staff development policy review, an international relocation policy, diversity and gender policy, and trainee policy.

# **Communication and Marketing**

A positive trend in 2010 was the tremendous **increase of applications** for UNESCO-IHE's educational offerings, with the largest increase of 142% in applications for regular short courses. There were also a 57% increase in PhD programme applications, a 30% increase in tailor made training course and a 6% increase in online course applications, illustrating a substantial demand for education in water related fields.

The MSc programme evaluations showed that most students come to know UNESCO-IHE through other alumni, their employers and by searching the Internet. The main reasons for choosing to study at UNESCO-IHE over other universities with similar programmes are the available scholarships, course content relevant to the students' needs, the social environment and international context, affiliation with UNESCO and swift responses from the admissions office.

Of the 1800 applications for MSc programmes, 95 received **fellowships** from the Netherlands Fellowship Programme (NFP). The diversification of fellowship funding is fundamental. Efforts have been redoubled to develop fellowship programmes with relevant public and private organizations . Partnering with Southern universities in the delivery of education is part of these efforts. Throughout the course of 2010 a renewed house style was developed adding a fresh look and feel to the Institute's printed materials. A website redesign was prepared to launch in early 2011, with newly integrated features to further improve interactivity, user friendliness and content. The website layout increased visibility of dynamic graphic elements and social media links. A focus of the redesign was increasing news, events and research outputs on the homepage.

The Institute continued to pro-actively interact with its stakeholders through a variety of **social media channels** including Twitter, LinkedIn, Facebook and various online communities related to water, the environment and sustainable development in general. In 2010 the Institute launched its own Facebook page where alumni, partners and new and existing participants are updated on the goings on at the Institute.

There was an increase in collaboration with **UN Water Communicators** by taking part in joint communication efforts at Stockholm Water Week and the Sustainable Water Management in Cities Conference in Zaragoza, organized by SWITCH, the UN-Water Decade Programme on Advocacy and Communication and IRC International Water and Sanitation Centre. Visits were frequently organized for high-level visitors, including those from the World Water Council, Aramco from Saudi Arabia, the UNESCO-IHP Bureau, the Malaysian Minister of Natural Resources and Environment, Iranian study tour delegations and the Dutch Association of the United Nations.

The Institute hosted several international events including many guest seminars by visiting professors and other dignitaries, the Seminar on Trends in Environmental Biotechnology and the Joint Education Conference. During the latter, 18 educational partners signed a vision statement on strengthening collaboration in water education, research and capacity development. UNESCO-IHE also took part in events in other parts of the world through various panel discussions, presentations and exhibitions, including the China Internal Education Exhibition and Fair, the Shanghai Water Forum, the Delta City of the Future competition, the African Water Association Seminar and Exhibition, IWA's World Water Congress and Exhibition, the United Nations Climate Change Conference (COP16), and Singapore International Water Week.



The textbook 'Biological Wastewater Treatment: Principles, Modelling and Design' sold more than 1.000 copies and became one of IWA Publishing's **bestsellers**. The textbook is used in UNESCO-IHE's curricula as well as elsewhere.

## Student and Educational Affairs



# Facility Management

In October 2010, a **new batch of students** in the 18-month Master of Science programme started their studies. The number of new MSc students dropped slightly as compared to 2009, in direct relationship to the decrease in NFP fellowships. The number of non-degree course participants went up by 10% as compared to last year. Notable were the increase of participants in short courses (39%) and tailor-made training courses (28%).

In 2010, a system for **online applications** was used for the first time for short courses and online courses. The first Erasmus Mundus Programme of UNESCO-IHE, in Flood Risk Management, generated a vast amount of applications which were processed efficiently with the new system.

In October 2010 the new UNESCO-IHE Library Catalogue was launched, making it accessible through the Institute's website, visible on through WorldCat, and directly linked to PiCarta, the Dutch Union Catalogue. PiCarta is the gateway to the library collections of numerous Dutch University Libraries and the Royal Library of the Netherlands. The Catalogue contains all the bibliographical data of the library collection, abstracts and pdf's of master theses and PhD dissertations.

In 2010, the Library continued to **increase its collections**. A three year license agreement with Elsevier was signed to secure access to Science Direct and Scopus, expanded its holdings from 800 to over 2100 peerreviewed journals. Scopus is the largest citation and abstracts database of peer-reviewed literature, available to staff and participants on the UNESCO-IHE network and portal. A license agreement with AGU was expanded and includes access to the complete Digital Library collection, expanding online access to additional journals. In 2010, the IT group was converted into a department, with its own representative in the Management Team.

A Moodle expert was attracted to the Institute to support the migration of all future educational activities to the Moodle open source platform - UNESCO-IHE's virtual learning environment. Moodle was used to deliver almost all the online courses in 2010. Also, videos from UNSCO-IHE's media server are now be streamed to Moodle.

All new MSc students and other participants spending time at the premises in Delft are currently provided with **laptops**. These connect to all the IT facilities via the wireless network, allowing for easier and new ways of learning.

**Smartboards** - interactive whiteboards - were introduced to the classrooms to stimulate new ways of learning. Staff members were trained in their use. The **refurbishment** of all the Institute's facilities continued in 2010. Almost all of the Westvest building - the building where educational activities such as lectures, classes and lab work take place - was renovated. Designated areas for problem-based learning, group work and individual work, a new Meditation room, as well as modernised classrooms were put into use. The classrooms have flexible furniture and electronic whiteboards, aiding in an innovative learning experience.

The new layout of academic departments allow staff and PhD fellows to be housed together. It includes **flexible workspaces** for the accommodation of guest lecturers, researchers and other temporary staff. The total process is expected to be completed at the end of 2011.



# FINANCIAL REPORT

### INCOME

The income of the Institute originates from three main sources: The base subsidy of the Ministry of Education, the tuition fees of MSc students, short course participants and PhD fellows, and project revenues. Other income sources are minor and include renting out conference facilities and student housing to third parties and the PhD graduation grant we receive from Dutch Universities.

The subsidy from the Ministry of Education was not indexed in 2010 and remained on the 2009 level due to a Dutch generic saving measure whereby all education subsidies were frozen. Since an index was foreseen in the operational budget, major adjustments had to be made to the workplan so as to secure a balanced result.

In 2010 follow up was given to:

- the refurbishment of the building, including the completion of two out of five phases, which stayed within budget;
- implementation of the IT strategy;
- the further development of about 16 joint MSc specializations (in different stages of establishment) including 3 new joint Masters' and one joint doctoral degree programme under the EC's Erasmus Mundus scheme and;
- the internal reform process leading to a new strategy for UNESCO-IHE towards 2020.
- The Institute's research programme was further strengthened by
   the increase in the number of registered PhD participants and;
   the set funding of 17 process based to be upper facility.

- the co-funding of 17 research projects through the UPaRF facility. These projects accounted for a total expenditure of  $\in$  684,000 in 2010.

The tuition fee income increased markedly  $(\pm 10\%)$  due to an increase in the intake of MSc students in the 2009-2011 batch (+10% in student years). At the same time, educationrelated expenditures increased by  $\pm 8\%$  due to the increase of the number of students and related fellowship costs.

Project income from research, non-degree courses and capacity development projects in 2010 was ±17% lower than in 2009, but direct project costs (programme expenditures) also decreased by ±22%. This resulted in a net project fee income improvement of ±2%. The top 10 largest projects accounted for just under 60% of the fee income. Some 15% was generated through projects co-funded by the programmatic cooperation agreement with DGIS, which includes contributions from various third parties and IRF. About 52% of the net project income was paid for by Dutch governmental sources (i.e. DGIS, OCW, RWS, NUFFIC, EVD, NWO, and SenterNovem), 17% from EC funds, and 30% from other national and international sources.

### **INCOME AND EXPENDITURES**





#### OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS Euro x 1000 | Academic year



UNESCO-IHE operations in 2010 showed a decrease, both in revenues and expenditures, as compared to 2009. The total turnover decreased to just under € 30 million. The overall result shows a modest surplus of € 20,000. This corresponds to an operational result against turnover of less than 1%. The main challenges remain to secure financing for fellowships and to replenish our general reserves to guarantee the continuity of our operations.

### **EXPENDITURES**

UNESCO-IHE makes a distinction between programme expenditures and non-programme expenditures. Programme expenditures relate to the direct outputs of the main activities of the Institute, while non-programme expenditures concern general items such as staff costs and indirect or overhead costs. Programme expenditures are therefore directly linked to the revenue items (education, training, projects) mentioned in the income section.

In 2010, there was a modest increase  $(\pm 2\%)$  in the nonprogramme expenditures, mainly as a consequence of the increase in staff salary costs and facility costs. There were also lower interests received and a reduced amount of general costs.

The staff and management costs increased due to a one-off payment in line with the negotiated Collective Labor Agreement (CAO) of Dutch Institutions for Higher Education, and because of an increase in the average number of staff (from 148.3 FTE in 2009 to 151.9 FTE) in 2010. The overall costs for operation and maintenance of the building increased by  $\pm 2\%$ , in line with inflation. The costs for running the facilities increased with  $\pm 5\%$  due to the costs related to the IT development and facility refurbishment activities. Educationrelated costs increased by  $\pm 3\%$  due to the purchase of laptop computers for MSc participants. There were fewer unfunded fellowships.

Acquisition and marketing costs were modestly higher  $(\pm 4\%)$  than in 2009. This was due to an unforeseen contribution to the Water History Conference and more out of pocket expenditures related to the UN integration budget item. General costs were almost 40% less due to a decrease in the management of the refurbishment and IT, and a lower contribution to the reserves for uncollectible debts.

### **BALANCE SHEET**

The balance sheet shows a ratio of 13/87 between equity and borrowed capital which corresponds to a solvency of 13%. The solvency ratio in 2010 is still far from the targeted percentage (20%). This was expected and the improved subsidy arrangement and multi-year programmatic funding contract with DGIS does give an opportunity to improve the solvency ratio in the coming years based on the expectation that the Dutch generic saving measures are a one year only measure.

The borrowed capital includes provisions and current liabilities. In the current liabilities, reservations have been made for leave hours, holiday bonuses and the cost of one term of payment for the lease of the building. The provisions include a wide array of items including jubilee payments to staff and long-term building maintenance in accordance with the lease contract. The provision reduced considerably due to finished repairs under the current refurbishment. The current ratio is at a level of 0.95 (was 1.07 in 2009), which means that in the short term the Institute remains creditworthy, although the ideal a ratio of 1 is not met. For the long-term financial sustainability of the Institute, the focus will be on increasing the financial reserves as foreseen in the current business plan.





# FINANCIAL REPORT

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND I	EXPENDITOR	ES (amounts in	€000s)	
	2010		2009	
Income				
Subsidy from the Ministry of Education	11,012		11,012	
Tuition fee	8,696		7,901	
Projects	9,738		11,746	
Others	378		222	
Total income		29,824		30,881
Programme expenditures				
Tuition fee (stipends, guest lecture, etc.)	5,632		5,213	
Projects	6,128		7,896	
Total programme expenditures		11,760		13,109
Non-programme expenditures				
Staff and management	11,774		11,313	
Buildings	2,499		2,440	
Facilities	1,321		1,264	
Education-related costs	1,452		1,403	
Acquisition and marketing	363		348	
General costs	765		1,218	
Interest	-122		-289	
Total non-programme expenditures		18,052		17,697
Operating result		12		75
Extraordinary charges/Appropriations from F	Fellowship Trust F	und 8		106
Overall result		20		181

BALANCE SHEET (amounts in €000s)						
	31 DECEMBER 2010		31 DECEMBER 2009			
Assets						
Fixed assets	2,680		2,045			
Accounts receivable	3,431		3,004			
Cash and banks	8,930		14,559			
Total		15,041		19,608		
Equity and liabilities						
Equity	1,631		1,611			
Fellowship Trust Fund	255		264			
Provision	113		1,333			
Current liabilities	13,042		16,400			
Total		15,041		19,608		

# FELLOWSHIP TRUST FUND

The UNESCO-IHE Fellowship Trust Fund (FTF) was created to raise funds from private and public organisations, companies, alumni and other (individual) benefactors for partial or full sponsorship of an individual's studies at UNESCO-IHE. This support enables water professionals who possess the intellectual stamina and ability, but lack the proper funding to receive post-graduate education at UNESCO-IHE. Every contribution is directed towards its equivalent value in terms of output.

In 2010, the FTF provided financial support to four students; the names and countries of origin of the students are listed in the adjoining Financial Statement. All four students were enrolled in MSc studies; one of them graduated in 2010, and three will continue their studies in 2011.

SUEZ Environnement continued to donate to the FTF. A small contribution was received through the library, who donated the penalty fees for books returned too late.

### FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FELLOWSHIP TRUST FUND (amounts in €)

Fund on 1 January 2010		263,984
Gifts		
SUEZ, France	80,560	
Contribution Library (from penalty fees)	431	
Interest	4,532	
Total		85,523
MSc Fellowships		
Gashaw Abuhay Damtaw, 2009/2011, Ethiopia	12,747	
Ina Krüger, 2008/2010, Germany	917	
Erizaldy Azwar, 2009/2011, Indonesia	40,280	
Juniferanne Natalina Brahmana, 2009/2011, Indonesia	40,280	
Total		94,224
Fund on 31 December 2010		255,283



# ANNEXES

## ANNEX 1 | EDUCATIONAL STATISTICS

# 

REGISTERED DEGREE PROGR	CAIVIIVIE	: PARTICIP/	ANTS FOR	THE AC	ADEIVIT	J YEAR 20	10-2011				
	SOUR	CE OF FUNDIN	١G	REGION	REGION OF ORIGIN				GENDER		
	Full NFP	Co-financed NFP	Other	Africa	Asia	Latin America	Middle East	Other	Female	Male	
MSc programmes 2009-2011	116	2	83	97	41	16	9	38	82	119	201
- Water Science and Engineering	35	1	40	27	25	7	6	11	25	51	76
- Water Management	20	0	8	14	7	2	0	5	14	14	28
- Environmental Science	39	1	15	35	4	5	1	10	29	26	55
- Municipal Water and Infrastructure	22	0	20	21	5	2	2	12	14	28	42
MSc programmes 2010-2012	95	0	81	77	49	15	8	27	65	111	176
- Water Science and Engineering	30	0	42	22	34	5	1	10	17	55	72
- Water Management	20	0	14	18	9	1	1	5	18	16	34
- Environmental Science	25	0	13	24	4	3	1	6	19	19	38
- Municipal Water and Infrastructure	20	0	12	13	2	6	5	6	11	21	32
PhD programmes 2010	26	1	102	56	32	16	6	19	38	91	129
Total	237	3	266	230	122	47	23	84	185	321	506
Percentage	46,8	0,6	52,6	45,5	24,1	9,3	4,5	16,6	36,6	63,4	

## ANNEX 2 | SHORT COURSES

# 

# 

REGULAR SHORT COURSES		
COURSE	DATE	TOTAL PARTICIPANTS
Coastal Systems	11/01/10-29/01/10	1
Conventional Surface Water Treatment	08/02/10-26/02/10	4
Water Quality Assessment	08/02/10-26/02/10	11
Negotiation and Mediation for Water Conflict Management I	08/02/10-26/02/10	6
Coastal and Port Structures II	01/03/10-19/03/10	1
Constructed Wetlands for Wastewater Treatment	01/03/10-19/03/10	7
Environmental Engineering	01/03/10-19/03/10	6
Environmental Policy Making	01/03/10-19/03/10	1
Groundwater Resources and Treatment	01/03/10-19/03/10	3
Negotiation and Mediation for Water Conflict Management II	01/03/10-19/03/10	10
Advanced Water Treatment Technology	06/04/10-23/04/10	4
Environmental Monitoring and Modelling	06/04/10-23/04/10	4
Environmental Planning and Implementation	06/04/10-23/04/10	4
Financial Management of Water Organisations	06/04/10-23/04/10	7
Groundwater Exploration and Monitoring	06/04/10-23/04/10	3
Hydrological Data Collection and Processing	06/04/10-23/04/10	6
Integrated Asset Management Systems	06/04/10-23/04/10	3
River Basin Modelling	06/04/10-23/04/10	8
Service Oriented Management of Irrigation Systems	06/04/10-23/04/10	1
Resource Oriented Sanitation	06/04/10-23/04/10	3
Water Resources Planning	06/04/10-23/04/10	5
International Port Seminar	12/04/10-29/04/10	10
Integrated Coastal Zone Management	19/04/10-29/04/10	6
Cleaner Production and the Water Cycle	26/04/10-14/05/10	5
Tracer Hydrology and Flow System Analysis	26/04/10-14/05/10	2
Urban Flood Modelling and Disaster Management	26/04/10-14/05/10	4
Water and Environmental Law and Institutions	26/04/10-14/05/10	6
Water Transport and Distribution I	26/04/10-14/05/10	2
Modelling Wastewater Treatment Processes and Plants	03/05/10-14/05/10	3
Applied Groundwater Modelling	14/06/10-02/07/10	12
Aquatic Ecosystems: Processes and Applications	14/06/10-02/07/10	4
Environmental Systems Modelling	14/06/10-02/07/10	8
Flood Risk Management	14/06/10-02/07/10	7
Industrial Effluents Treatment and Residuals Management	14/06/10-02/07/10	5
Managing Water Organisations	14/06/10-02/07/10	14
Urban Water Systems Modelling	14/06/10-02/07/10	7
Water Treatment Processes and Plants	14/06/10-02/07/10	10
Decentralised Water Supply and Sanitation	05/07/10-23/07/10	8
Public-Private Partnerships in the Water Sector	05/07/10-23/07/10	5
Solid Waste Management	05/07/10-23/07/10	12
Water Transport and Distribution II	05/07/10-23/07/10	7
Watershed and River Basin Management	05/07/10-23/07/10	10
Remediation and Handling of Contaminated Sediments	30/08/10-03/09/10	5
Climate Change in Integrated Water Management	06/09/10-17/09/10	13
Spate Irrigation and Water Management under Drought and Water Scarcity	06/09/10-17/09/10	9
World History of Water Management	13/09/10 – 17/09/10	3
Membranes in Drinking & Industrial Water Treatment	22/11/10-25/11/10	6
GIS Modelling SWAT	01/11/10-12/11/10	7
GIS and Remote Sensing	01/11/10-12/11/10	19
Total		307

# 16

# 237

ONLINE COURSES		
COURSE	DATE	TOTAL PARTICIPANTS
Service Oriented Management of Irrigation Systems	15/01/10-15/05/10	2
Flood Modelling for Management	01/03/10-10/05/10	7
Policy and Management in Developing Countries	01/03/10-21/06/10	30
Ecological Sanitation	01/03/10-02/07/10	10
Integrated Coastal Zone Management	01/03/10-02/07/10	7
Integrated River Basin Management	01/03/10-02/07/10	19
Biological Wastewater Treatment: Principles, Modelling and Design	22/03/10-25/07/10	31
Water & Environmental Law and Policy	01/04/10-14/07/10	8
Biological Wastewater Treatment: Principles, Modelling and Design	01/08/10-30/11/10	24
IWRM as a Tool for Adaptation to Climate Change	30/08/10-26/11/10	29
Public Private Partnerships	01/09/10-17/12/10	11
Cleaner Production and the Water Cycle	01/09/10-31/12/10	3
Constructed Wetlands for Wastewater Treatment	01/09/10-31/12/10	14
Solid Waste Management	01/09/10-31/12/10	11
Water Quality Assessment	01/09/10-31/12/10	12
Water Transport and Distribution I	06/09/10-25/02/11	19
Total		237



# 54

REGIONAL REFRESHER SEMINARS			
SEMINAR	COUNTRY	DATE	TOTAL PARTICIPANTS
Flood Based Farming as Part of River Basin Water Management	Ethiopia	26/07/10-06/08/10	36
Participatory Management of Flood Risk in Changing Climate	Nepal	26/07/10-06/08/10	18
Total			54

### TAILOR-MADE COURSES

Tailor-made courses are developed and implemented on demand. These courses serve to upgrade or refresh the knowledge and skills of experts, or to provide exposure to applications of conventional methods. All tailor made courses of 2010 are listed in Annex 4 - Projects.

## ANNEX 3 | PHD FELLOWS

# 

<b>PROMOTIONS IN 20<sup>-</sup></b>	10			
NAME	PROMOTION DATE	COUNTRY	PROMOTOR	TITLE THESIS
Ms. Latteman	February 9, 2010	Germany	Amy	Development of an environmental impact assessment and decision support system for seawater desalination plants
Mr. Yangali Quintanil	February 9, 2010	Peru	Amy	Rejection of emerging organic contaminants by nanofiltration and reverse osmosis membranes: effects of fouling, modelling and water reuse
Mr. Wegen, van der	May 26, 2010	Netherlands	Roelvink	Modeling morpodynamic evolution in alluvial estuaries
Mr. Makurira	June 23, 2010	Zimbabwe	Savenije/ Uhlenbrook	Water productivity in rainfed agriculture, redrawing the rainbow of water to achieve food security in rainfed smallholder systems
Mr. Maeng	October 29, 2010	South Korea	Amy	Multiple objective treatment aspects of bank filtration
Mr. Alfonso Segura	November 16, 2010	Colombia	Price	Optimisation of monitoring networks for water systems
Mr. Paudel	November 17, 2010	Nepal	Schultz	An improved approach for the design and management of irrigation canals

<b>REGISTERED PHI</b>	D FELLOWS		
NAME	COUNTRY	PROMOTOR	WORKING TITLE THESIS
Mr. Acheampong	Ghana	Lens	Biosorption of Copper, Arsenic and Cyanide from Goldmine Wastewater
Mr. Adeboye	Nigeria	Schultz	Productive and sustainable use of land and water under deficit irrigation in Ogun-Osun River Basin, Nigeria
Ms. Ahmed	Egypt	Uhlenbrook/Solomatine	Climate Change and its Impact on Ground Water in the Nile Delta
Mr. Ali	Sudan	Wright	Effects of erosion control practices in the upper Blue Nile River Basin on downstream sedimentation rates
Mr. Alfonso Segura	Colombia	Price	Optimisation of Monitoring Networks for Water Systems
Mr. Almoradie	Philippines	Solomatine	Virtual environments for stakeholder participation in river and flood management
Mr Abel	Sudan	Amv	Assessment of soil aquifer treatment (SAT) for multiple contaminant removal and applicability in
	Sugar	, uny	developing countries
Ms. Alvarez Mieles	Ecuador	Mynett	Ecological Modelling in Tropical Rivers and Wetlands
Mr. Arias Hidalgo	Ecuador	 Mvnett	Reducing uncertainty in coupled wetland-catchment models
Ms Azab	Eavot	Price	Integration of GIS. Remote Sensing and Modelling for Water Quality Management in an Irrigated Watershe
Mr. Babu	Uranda	Giizen	Effect of Algan Biofilm and Operational Conditions on Nitrogen Removal in Wastewater Stabilization Ponds
Mr. Baghoth	Uranda	- Amv	Characterization of natural organic matter in water using multiple detectors
Ms. Balica	Romania	Wright	Applying the Flood Vulnerability Index as a knowledge base for flood risk assessment
Mr. Barroto Cordoroo	Vapazuola	Price /Selematine	Multi-criteria aptimication in the rehabilitation of urban drainage petworks
Mr. Patria	Ethiopia	- Mupott	
Mr. Phatt			Integrated approach for global changes adoption in agriculture Schwater management practices in Keshi rive
IVII. DIIdtt	мера	Uniendrook	basin of Nepal
Mr. Bin Abdullah	Malaysia	Price	Web-based spatial decision support system for integrated urban water management
Mr. Bin Ab Razak	Malaysia	Roelvink	Modeling of Headland Sediment Bypassing Process & Nearshore Evolution of Embayed Beach
Ms. Bremere	Latvia	Schippers	Saving energy and ater by maximizing the conversion of membrane filtration system
Mr. Bruins	Netherlands	Kennedy	Improved manganese removal from groundwater
Ms. Calderon Palama	Nicaragua		Development of new tracer methods and groundwater and water resources development in Nicaragua
Mr. Demessie	Ethiopia		Past-present-future land use in the Blue Nile and impacts on hydrology
Mr. Disconsulto	 Scillapka	- Declyick	The rele of tidal inlate in exectal erosion
Ma Doposo	Danama	Boolvink	Analyzis of the upper access thermal structure of the pasters tranical Desifies establishing correlations with
Mis. Donoso	Panama	ROEIVINK	precipitation in Latin America
Mr. Dejen	Ethiopia	Schultz	Overall Assessment of Irrigation Systems and Interventions for Enhancing Performance Water Saving and
			Sustinability in Ethiopia
Mr. Delipetrev	Macedonia	Solomatine	Decision Support System for Water Resources Management in the Republic of Macedonia: Case Study of Bregalnica River Basin
Με Ομοησ	Viet Nam	Roelvink	Climate Change Impacts on Seasonally And Intermittently Open Tidal Inlets (CC-SIOTI)
Mr. Delos Reves	Philippines	Schultz	Modernization Strategy for National Irrigation Systems in the Philippines: Linking Design, Operation and
Nis. Delos Reyes			Water Supply
Mr. Ebrahim	Ethiopia	Mynett	Modelling groundwater flow and reactive contaminant transport of chlorinated solvents for assessing risk in a fuzz-probabilistic approach
Ms. Essandoh	Ghana	Amy	Soil aquifer treatment of wastewater: a framework for technology implementation in a developing country
Mr. Feyssa	Ethiopia	l ens	Anaerobic oxidation of methane by sulfate reduction
Mr. Galvis Castano	Colombia	Giizen	Development of a technology selection model for pollution prevention and control in the municipal water cycl
Mr. Gebrekristos	Ethiopia	Uhlenbrook	Impact of impoved Land management practices on hydrology in Blue Nile River Basin / Up-scaling of
			Hydrological model
Mr. Ghasimi	Iran	Lens	Effect of trace metal dosing on anaerobic digestion
Mr. Gichamo	Ethiopia	Solomatine	Adaptive modelling in heterogeneous data environments
Mr. Guo Leicheng	China	Roelvink	Morphodynamic modeling of the river- and tide-dominated Yangtze Estuary, China: processes and mechanism
Mr. Ha	South Korea	Amy	Optimization of the Ceramic Membrane filtration in Surface Water Treatment Applications
Ms. Halem van	Netherlands	Amy / v Dijk	Subsurface arsenic removal: sorption mechanisms and adaptation for rural drinking water supply
Ms. Hoang	Viet Nam	Mynett	under construction
Ms. Hu Yorong	China	Uhlenbrook	Assessment of climate change and its impacts on hydrological processes and water resources in the Yellow River source region. China
Ms Ingahire	Rwanda	Liblenbrook	Impact of land use on nitrogen cycling and water guality in Rwanda - A case of Migina catchmont
			Socio esepantis especto of sustainable societation in slums
	Oganda		Madallia a effecto a filo duna abar ana atta buda la circa inclusiva in Danianular Malausia
Mr. Junaidi	Indonesia	Schultz	Optimisation of the Urban Drainage and Flood Protection of Padang City, Indonesia
Mr. Karımı	Iran	Lens	Nitrogen removal from aquaculture wastewater
IVIS. Kassa	Ethiopia	vd ∠aag	Gender, environment and sustainable development-understanding the linkages. The case of Blue Nile river basi
Mr. Katukiza	Uganda	Lens	Sustainable technical sanitation solutions for urban slums
Mr. Kayastha	Nepal	Solomatine	under construction
Ms. Kayoza	Tanzania	Vairavamoorthy	Integrated infrastructure for sustainable improvement of right-of-way safety in dynamic urban environments
Mr. Keita	Mali	Schultz	Subsurface drainage of valley bottom rice irrigated schemes in the Sudanian climate. Case study of Moutori in Burkina Faso
Mr. Khatri	Nepal	Vairavamoorthv	Risk Assessment of Urban Water Systems for the City of the Future
Ms. Kijjanapanich	Thailand	Lens	Bioremediation of gypsiferous soils
Mr. Kilonzo	Кепуа	Lens/Bauwens	Assessing the impacts of climatic changes on hydrology and water resources of the Mara river basin
Mr. Kiptala	Kenva	vd Zaag	Managing interdependencies: understanding tradeoffs and synergies in the Pangani river basin Tanzania
		5	

REGISTERED PHI	D FELLOWS		
NAME	COUNTRY	PROMOTOR	WORKING TITLE THESIS
Mr. Komakech	Haanda	vd Zaag	Agent-based modelling for collaborative catchment water resources management in the Pagani river basin
NII. KOIMakeen	Oganda	VU 2009	Tanzania
Mr. Kuntiyawichai	Thailand	Schultz/Uhlenbrook	Flood management and land use in the Chi River basin, Thailand
Mr. Lai ko an	China P.R.	v Maarsseveen	An analysis of environmental capacity characteristics of heterogeneous traffic corridors
Mr. Li	China	Mynett	Multi-reservoir-based Flood Control and Management software system
Ms. Liang	China P.R.	v Dijk	Financing and cost recovery of innovations in the urban water cycle in terms of different institutional and technological options
Ms. Lin Yuqing	China	Mynett	Unstructured cellular automata in ecohydraulics modelling
Mr. Love	Zimbabwe	vd Zaag/Uhlenbrook	Land/water/livelihood strategies and water resources availability
Ms. Lugwisha	Tanzania	Leentvaar	Wastewater management institutional performance and change
Mr. Lutterodt	Ghana	Uhlenbrook	Effects of surface characteristics of Escherichia coli on transport in saturated porous media
Mr. Mabiza	Zimbabwe	vd Zaag/Gupta	IWRM, institutions and livelihoods: cases and perspectives from the Limpopo River Basin
Mr. Maeng	South Korea	Amy	Multiple objective treatment aspects of riverbank filtration system
Mr. Makurira	Zimbabwe	Savenije	Smallholder water system innovations for upgrading rainfed agriculture in arid and semi-arid areas
Mr. Masese	Kenya	O'Keeffe	_ Spatio-temporal dynamics in organic matter and its influence on food web architecture in the tropical Mara river
Mr. Masih	Pakistan	Uhlenbrook	Hydrology and water balance analysis for sustaining food security and environmental services in Karkheh River Basin, Iran
Mr. Md. Ali	Malaysia	Solomatine	Flood Risk Mapping Under Uncertainty: Application to Sungai Johor Basin, Malaysia
Mr. Mburu	Kenya	Lens	Modelling studies for optimal design of horizontal subsurface flow constructed wetlands
Mr. Munir	Pakistan	Schultz	Role of sediment transport in operation and maintenance of supply and demand based irrigation canals
Mr. Munyaneza	Rwanda	Uhlenbrook	Space-time patterns of hydrological processes and water resources in Rwanda, with special focus on the meso-scale Migina catchment
Mr. Mutikanga	Uganda	Vairavamoorthy	Decision Support Tools for Water Loss Management in Developing countries
Ms. Mwelwa	Zambia	Wright	Flow, morphology and vegetation in the Middle Zambezi: a Study of spatial and temporal scales
Mr. Narrain	Germany	Wright	Computer modelling for the optimisation of low-head hydropower schemes
Mr. Natumanya	Uganda	Uhlenbrook	Spatial Temporal Dynamics of Flow Regime and Water Resources in the Upper Mara basin, Kenya
Mr. Nyenje	Uganda	Uhlenbrook	Hydrological aspects of alternative sanitation solutions in slum areas in african mega-cities
Mr. Oduro-Kwarteng	Ghana	van Dijk	Managing urban solid waste services: assessment of performance of private companies in five cities in Ghana
Mr. Ofosu	Ghana	vd Zaag/vd Giesen	Developing a catchment management strategy for sustainable irrigation development in the White Volta Sub-Basin
Mr. Orup	Uganda	Uhlenbrook	Surface water and groundwater interactions in the Pangani River basin, Tanzania
Mr. Osman	Sudan	Schultz	Sediment and Water Management in Large Irrigation System, Case Study: Gezira Scheme, Sudan
Mr. Owusu-Ansah	Ghana	vd Zaag/vd Giesen	Near-real time monitoring of flows in the Volta basin using variational data assimilation
Mr. Paudel	Nepal	Schultz	An improved approach for the design and management of irrigation canals.
Ms. Rogelis Prada	Colombia	Wright	under construction
Ms. Rongoei	Kenya	O'Keeffe	Wetland Ecosystem Integrity in Relation to Exploitation for Livelihoods in Nyando Wetlands, Kenya
Mr. Salifu	Ghana	Amy	Fluoride removal from drinking water
Mr. Salinas Rodriguez	Bolivia	Amy	Water characterisation and fouling prediction tools for Seawater Reverse Osmosis Systems
Mr. Sanchez Torres	Colombia	Mynett	The use of agent-based models for integrated urban water management
Ms. Sanz Galindo	Colombia	vd Zaag/Gupta	Developing conflict resolution as a policy tool for small and medium enterprises
Ms. Saraiva Okello	Mozambique	Uhlenbrook	under construction
Mr. Sekomo	Rwanda	Lens	Nechanisms of heavy metals removal in natural wastewater treatment systems "
Mr. Seyoum		Price/Solomatine	Dredicting access systems modelling
Mr. Silva Vipassa	Calambia		- Creachause are emissing from exected palagies for sustainable demostic wastewater management in
	Colonibia	Gijzen	tropical regions
Mr. Simanjuntak	Indonesia	Mynett	Coupled Stress-Seepage Numerical Design of Concrete Lined Pressure Tunnels
Mr. Smit	Netherlands	vd Zaag	Understanding persistence of soil erosion and siltation
Mr. Staicu	Romania	Lens	Biorecovery of selenium from inorganic wastewaters
Mr. Subagadis	Ethiopia	vd Zaag	Water Allocation as a Planning Tool for Sustainable Water Resource Management in Data Scarce River Basin: the case of Tekeze River basin – Ethiopia
Ms. Tabatabai	Iran	to be appointed	Low chemical consuming UF.RO for desalination
Ms. Uwamariya	Rwanda	Amy	Assessment of ground as source of drinking water in Rwanda
Mr. Uwimana	Rwanda	O'Keeffe	Rehabilitation of nutrient and sediment wetland ecosystem functions in Migina Catchment, Rwanda
Mr. Velez Quintero	Colombia	Price	Real time control in integrated urban water management
Mr. Verma	India	vd Zaag	Groundwater recharge movement in India
Ms. Villa Gomez	Mexico	Lens	Biogenic sulfide production and selective metal precipitation in an innovative reactor configuration: the inverse fluidized bed reactor
Mr. Villacorte	Philippines	to be appointed	Anti-(bio)fouling strategy for integrated membrane systems
Mr. Waly	Egypt	Amy/Schippers	Minimize the use of chemicals in sea water reverse osmosis: impact on scaling & concentrate disposal
Mr. Wan Yuanyang	China	Roelvink	under construction
Mr. Wang	China	Uhlenbrook-Mynett	Coupling of meteorological models for hydrological predictions in the Yellow River
Mr. Welles	Netherlands	Brdjanovic	Impact of Salinity on the Biological Phosphorus Removal in Activated Sludge Systems
Mr. Wong	Malaysia	Uhlenbrook	Assessment and modelling of large-scale hydrological variability in Peninsular Malaysia

## ANNEX 4 | PROJECTS

INSTITUTIONA	L STRENGTHENING				
COUNTRY	TITLE	FUNDING	PARTNERS	START	END
Brazil	Educational and administrative capacity building of Hidroex	National Government		Jan-14	Jul-14
China	Partnership for education and research in water and ecosystem interactions	EVD Eijkelkamp, China University of Geosciences (CUG), Beijing, Hohai University, Nanjing, Xi'an Center of Geological Survey Min. of Water Resources CBI		Nov-13	Oct-15
Egypt	The National Water Resources Plan - Coordination Project	Min. of Water Resources	CBI	Mar-13	Dec-16
Ethiopia	Capacity building in Integrated River Basin Management (IRBM) for HEIs to support RBOs	Nuffic-NPT WUR, Meta-Meta, VU, IWMI		Mar-13	Jul-16
Ghana	Development of Joint Masters Programme In Water Supply And Environmental Sanitation Between Knust And UNESCO-IHE	DGIS-DUPC	DGIS-DUPC DCE, Kwame Nkrumah University		Oct-14
Indonesia	Development of Joint Master of Science programme on Water Quality Management and Water Treatment at the UNSRAT University on Sulawesi	EVD	EVD UNSRAT, WLN		Aug-14
Kenya	Module transfer of the Limnology program and Wetlands Ecosystem Specialisation to Egerton Univeristy	DGIS-DUPC			Jan-17
Mongolia	Strengthening Integrated Water Resources Management in Mongolia for the Ministry of Nature and Environment (MNE)	DGIS	Deltaris, Haskoning, The Water Centre	Mar-13	Jan-17
South Africa	Capacity Building for Integrated Water Resources Management in South Africa.	Nuffic-NICHE IRC, ITC		Sep-14	Sep-18
	Enhancing institutional capacity in water and waste water treatment	Nuffic-NICHE	NHL, SWO, TU Delft, WWN	Sep-14	Sep-18
Sri Lanka	Centre of excellence for Adaptation to Climate Change-Sri Lanka	DGIS-DUPC		Apr-14	Apr-18
Tanzania, United	Human Resources and Organisation Development in the Water	EC-EuropeAid IRC, ICLEI		May-13	Aug-15
Republic of Various Countries	Sector Small Scale Water Treatment Facilities for Domestic Use and Artificial Recharge with Surface Water - Middle East	DGIS	Water Commission/mekorot Water Company (Israel); Min. of Water snd	Jan-10	Apr-14
	Technology apphled universal access to cafe water	EC-ED4	Birzeit University (Palestinian Authority)	lan-10	- <u></u>
		EC-FP6 2 T partners including Kiwa, SINTEF, Riga Tech.Uni. EAWAG, NTNU, TZW, LNEC		Jan-10	Jan-13
	A knowledge Network for solving real-life water problems in developing countries	EC-FP6	Dep. Architecture & Urban Planning, LeAF, SMI, IMTA, ENGREF, CSE, IIMA, RSPMU	Apr-11	Mar-14
	Netherlands and Western Balkans Environmental Network	EKN	VU, WUR, LeAF	Oct-12	Jun-15
	IWRM in the Aral Sea Basin	DGIS-DUPC		Jan-13	Jan-17
	Capacity Building project at WASA/WITSS	EC-Edulink	WASA, University of the West Indies, COSTAAT, Univ. of Guyana	Jan-13	Jan-16
	Lake Victoria Region Water and Sanitation Initiative: Training and Capacity Building Components of Utilities management and Urban Catchment management	UN-Habitat	SNV, FCM, GWA	Jan-13	Jul-14
	ENPI (European Neighbourhood Policy Instrument) Mediterranean Environment Programme	EC-EuropeAid		Nov-13	Nov-16
	Anticipating and resolving flood issues, differences and disputes in the Lower Mekong Basin' phase 2	MRC		Apr-14	Apr-15
Viet Nam	Advanced training in modeling and information management applications for water, environmental management and climate change adaptation issues	EVD	Vietnam Nat'l University, Can Tho University, Royal Haskoning	May-14	May-15
Various Countries	Flood Hazard and Vulnerability Assessment	UNDP		Nov-14	Mar-16

TAILOR-MADE	TRAINING				
COUNTRY	TITLE	FUNDING	PARTNERS	START	END
China	EU-CHINA River Basin Management Project	EU		Jun-14	Apr-15
	TM Course on Water Governance MWR China	RWS		Jun-14	Jul-14
	Tailor made training course for the Ministry of Water Resources	National Government		Sep-14	Dec-14
Colombia	Establishing a joint programme in hydroinformatics at univalle and IHE	DGIS		Jan-14	Feb-15
Egypt	Tailor made training course on Integrated Environmental Management in the Industrial Sector	EEAA		Apr-14	May-14
	"Tailor Made Training Course on Climate Change in Water Management	Unesco Office Cairo		Jul-14	Oct-14
Ethiopia	Flood based farming as part of river basin management	Nuffic-NFP	Oromia Water Resource Bureau and Haramaya University	Feb-14	Dec-14
Indonesia	4 MSc fellowships from PU in Municipal Water and Infrastructure	AsDB		Okt-12	May-14
	Short Course on Strategic Environmental Assessmet and Environmental Impact Assessment	RWS		Nov-13	Jan-15
	Blended Wetland Management Planning Course	RWS		May-14	May-15
	Legal and Institutional Aspects to Water Management in Indonesia	RWS	DHV Asia, PT-IHE, WB	Nov-14	Dec-14
Korea, Republic of	Tailor Made Training in River Engineering for K-Water	K-Water		Nov-14	Nov-14
Netherlands	Arsenic Removal with Ferritin	Biaqua/ ICOS Capital		Aug-14	Jan-15
	Mainstreaming spate irrigation in higher education	FAO	UNW-DPC	Sep-14	Okt-14
Sudan	TMT Sanitation Related Groundwater pollution	SWA		Mar-14	Apr-14
	Tailor Made Training in Water Quality Assessment	UNESCO-Chair in Water Resources		Oct-14	Jan-15
	Tailor Made Training Drinking Water Treatment Sudan	SWA		Dec-14	Dec-14
Tanzania, United Republic of	Catchment Modelling using free software and GIS data	UNESCO		Jul-14	Aug-14
United States	IRES: Sustainable clean water technologies for the UN's Millennium Development Goals - a partnership between UNESCO-IHE (Delft, Netherlands) and University of South Florida	NSF		May-13	Jul-15
Zimbabwe	Tailor made Training on Project Financial Management	WaterNet Trust		Apr-14	Sep-14
Various Countries	Group Training for Water Resources Planning & Manangement project of Nile Basin Initiative	UNOPS		Okt-12	May-14
	Environmental Flows Module Development	DGIS-DUPC	Universidad San Francisco de Quito, TNC, IUCN, Deltares	Mar-13	Mar-14
	MTEC Flood Risk Management and the Water Framework Directive	EVD	Witteven+Bos	Jan-14	Jul-14
	Erasmus Mundus Masters Course in Ecohydrology	EC-Erasmus Mundus	Univ. Lodz (poland), Univ. Kiel 9germany), Univ. La Plata (argentina0	Sep-14	Sep-21
	Erasmus Mundus Masters Course in Flood Risk Management	EC-Erasmus Mundus	University Dresden, UP Catalunya, Ljubjana University	Sep-14	Jan-22

POLICY DEVELOPMENT							
COUNTRY	TITLE	FUNDING	PARTNERS	START	END		
Netherlands	Verwijderen Natuurlijk Organisch Materiaal (NOM)	SenterNovem	TUD and others	May-10	May-14		
	MoU between UNESCO-IHE and the Ministry of Transport, Public	V&W	V&W	Jul-11	Jan-15		
	Works and Water Management of the Netherlands, 2007-2010						
	DUPC WWDR4 Water Allocation Subject	DGIS-DUPC		Apr-14	Dec-14		
	DUPC Edication Conference with Partner Institutes	DGIS-DUPC		May-14	Aug-14		
Various Countries	Managing Adaptive Responses to changing floodrisk in the North	EC-Interreg	Watershcap Hollandse Delta,	Jan-12	Apr-15		
	Sea Region		Rijkswaterstaat, DG-Water,				
			WL-Delft, Dura Vermeer, University				
			of Sheffield, etc.				
	DGIS & UNESCO-IHE Programmatic Cooperation	DGIS		Jan-12	Jan-17		
	WWF Chair in Freshwater Ecosystems	WWF		Jan-14	Jan-15		
	Global Water Education Needs Survey	UNESCO		May-14	Jun-15		

<b>RESEARCH AND</b>	DEVELOPMENT				
COUNTRY	TITLE	FUNDING PARTNERS		START	END
Australia	Investigation of Climate Change Driven Variations in Wave	DEC Australia through		Dec-12	Dec-14
	Climate along the NSW Coast	CSIRO			
Australia	Stakeholder Risk Perception Framework	Monash Univ.		Feb-14	Jun-15
Belgium	Sand dynamics project Flanders coast	IMDC	Waterloopkundig Lab.	Aug-14	Aug-16
Colombia	Operational Flood Forecasting Warning and Response for Multi Scale Flood Risks in Developing Cities	DGIS-UPaRF	DPAE, Cinara, Univalle, Deltares, NOAA	Oct-13	Jan-18
Georgia	Integrated Natural Resources Management in Watersheds of Georgia	USAID		Dec-14	Oct-18
Germany	Evaluation of River Engineering and Sediment Management	WVS and HPA		Dec-14	Jul-15
Netherlands	Experimental Investigation of Water Fluxes within the Soil-	IAEA		Oct-12	Apr-15
	Vegetation System Using Isotopes to Improve Water Use Efficiency (WUE)				
	Uncertainty in modelling	Cross-funding Floodsite		Mrt-13	Mrt-14
	Novel Methodologies for Evaluation of Fouling Reduction of	WaterResearch		Aug-13	May-16
	Desalination Membranes	Foundation (WRF)			
	Morphological Acceleration factor Study	DeltaRes		Oct-13	Jan-15
	A novel bioprocess coupling wastewater treatment with electricity	EC-FP7-People		Mrt-14	Feb-16
	production to remediate metal polluted aquatic environment				
	Anaerobic Methane Oxidation	Wageningen University		Jun-14	Jan-15
	Climate Proof Cities	Kennis voor Klimaat	TUD, Deltares, WUR, KWR	Oct-14	Oct-18
	IWRM-NET IMPACT	Leibniz Institut		Nov-14	Aug-16
Saudi Arabia	Center for Soil, Water and Coastal Resources	KAUST-GRP	Many other partners	Jan-13	Jan-16
Serbia	Comparative and Strategic Analysis for Future Water Supply of Vojvodina	EVD	Royal Haskoning, Vitens, AquaDelft	Feb-14	Aug-15
	Arsenic Removal from Drinking Water	SenterNovem	TU Delft,Vitens, Haskoning, 2 Serbia Water Supply companies	Aug-14	Aug-17
Spain	Multi-stakeholder platform for interactive decision making in the Andarax River Basin	Agencia Andaluza Agua	Universidad de Almeria	Jan-13	Jan-15
Tanzania, United Republic of	Development of Resilient Agro landscapes to Climate Change in Tanzania	DGIS-UPaRF	Sokoine University of Agriculture	Oct-14	Jul-16
United States	Master of Science Programme	Government of North		Jan-14	Jan-16
Uzbekistan	Assessment of applicability of an equitable and sustainable	DGIS-LIPaRE	AIT	lul-14	Jul-16
	financing model for agricultural water services in the agricultural sector of Uzbekistan			)	je
Zimbabwe	Emerging Alternative Institutional Forms for Managing Domestic Water in Zimbabwean Urban Areas	DGIS-UPaRF	Univ. of the Western Cape	Oct-14	Jul-16
Various Countries	Sustainable Water management Improves Tomorrow's Cities' Health	EC-FP6	32 in total: UNESCO-IHE (lead), IRC and many others. PoWER partners: Universidad del Valle (Colombia), Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology (Ghana).	Feb-10	Feb-15
	SWAT Development Activities			Jan-12	Dec-14
	Flood Vulnerability Indices in low headed hydropower	EC FP7-Cooperation		Feb-12	Feb-16
	River basin twinning initiatives as a tool to implement EU water initiatives	EC-FP7-Cooperation	VITUKI, Soresma, PIK, BOKU	Jun-12	Jun-15
	In Search of Sustainable Catchments and Basin-wide Solidarities – Transboundary Water Management of the Blue Nile River Basin	NWO-WOTRO	IWMI	Jul-12	Jul-16
	Localised environmental and health information services for all	EC-FP7-Cooperation	Instituto superior tecnico, project automation, BICOCCA, Aria Technologies, Esaproject, etc	Sep-12	Sep-15
	Upscaling small-scale land and water system innovations in dryland agro-ecosystems for sustainability and livelihood improvements	DGIS-UPaRF	USDM, UKZN, IWMI, TUD, SEI, SU	Sep-12	Sep-16
	Partnerships in the Water Supply and Sanitation Sector	DGIS-UPaRF	KNUST, SUEZ, VITENS, NWSC	Sep-12	lun-16
	Integrated approaches and strategies to address the sanitation crisis in unsewered slum areas in African mera cities	DGIS-UPaRF	Makarere University, Kampala city	Sep-12	Sep-16
	The ecology of livelihoods in East African wetlands: wetland conservation and utilization in the context of local and global change	DGIS-UPaRF	UvA, University of Nairobi, Egerton University, VIRED	Sep-12	Sep-16
	Sediment, sediment transport from reservoirs to estuaries Low-cost drinking water treatment in developing countries: use of indigenous materials and affordable adsorbents	DGIS-UPaRF DGIS-UPaRF	NHRI, HRI, Deltares, SKLEC, Hohai Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology, Makarere University	Oct-12 Nov-12	Oct-16 Dec-16
	Risk-based operational water management for the Incomati River Basin	DGIS-UPaRF	Mondlane University, KOBWA	Jan-13	Sep-17

RESEARCH AND	DEVELOPMENT				
COUNTRY	TITLE	FUNDING	PARTNERS	START	END
/arious Countries	Zero chemical UF/RO system for Desalination:Development	SenterNovem	Evides, Membrane Technology	Jan-13	Jan-16
	of the next generation zero chemical consuming UF/RO water		Group, Vitens		
	treatment system for production of drinking and industrial water from salt and brackish waters				
	Hydrologic Impacts of Land Use and Landcover changes in the Kilombero River Basin Tanzania	DGIS-UPaRF	UDSM	Jan-13	Dec-15
	Postdoctoral Research Programme on Adaptation to Climate Change – Special Focus on the Mekong River Basin	DGIS-UPaRF		Mrt-13	Apr-15
	Decentralised Integrated Analysis and Enhancement of Awareness through Collaborative Modeling and Management of Flood Risk	ERA-Net CRUE	Imperial College London	Apr-13	Feb-15
	Collaborative Management System on Watershed Vulnerability (eWaterAbility)	EC-FP7-Cooperation	WMO, C3I, SWAT, EAWAG, JRC, IISD, UN-IIST, CERN, CRS4, Univ. of Geneva	Apr-13	Apr-17
	Development of rehabilitation technologies for degraded waters and the integration of their impact in waterbody management	EC-FP7-Cooperation	Politecnico di Torino, Univ. Sheffield, Recetox, Ben Gurian, University of Wageningen, University of Stuttgart (VEGAS), ISODETECT, Sapion Milieuadvies, TUDelft, CTM Centre Tecnologic, HZM, GEUS,	May-13	Jul-17
	Intelligent Monitoring, control and Security of Critical Infrastructure Systems	COST		Jul-13	Jul-14
	Optimazation of water allocation between off-stream and in-stream competing demands	DGIS-UPaRF	UNPAR	Aug-13	Jan-15
	Impacts of variable oil prices on economic sustainability of water and wastewater facilities	DGIS-UPaRF	KNUST	Aug-13	Jan-15
	Development of an integrated low cost anaerobic/aerobic biological system for grey water treatment	DGIS-UPaRF	Sana'a University;Water and Environment Centre (WEC),	Aug-13	Jan-15
	Environmental flow regime in rivers as a tool for IWRM and RBM and climate change adaptation	DGIS-UPaRF	Birzeit University	Aug-13	Jan-15
	Hydrogeochemical characterization of the presence of arsenic in Argentina, Ghana and Palestine	DGIS-UPaRF	Inst of Environmental and Water Studies, Birzeit University	Aug-13	Jan-15
	Permeable reactive barrier for remediation of acid mine drainage	DGIS-UPaRF		Aug-13	Jan-15
	Water Resources Management Instruments Implementation by Water Basin Committees	DGIS-UPaRF	Fundación Ecuaciencias, UNIVALLE	Aug-13	Jan-15
	Allocation of groundwater to groundwater dependent ecosystems	DGIS-UPaRF	Makarere University	Aug-13	Jan-15
	Environmental Flows for People and Ecosystems in the Mara River Basin	DGIS-UPaRF	UDSM, Egerton, SUA, JKUAT, FIU, WWF	Aug-13	Aug-17
	Conserving Hydrological and Ecological functions through payment for watershed services, with special reference to South- central Bolivia	DGIS-UPaRF	CLAS-UMSS, FNB, VU amsterdam	Sep-13	Sep-17
	Benchmarking for Pro-poor Water Services Provision	DGIS-UPaRF		Sep-13	Jan-17
	Natural Systems for Wastewater treatment and reuse: technology adaptation and implementation in developing countries	DGIS-UPaRF		Sep-13	Aug-17
	Adaptation to Global change in Agricultural practices	DGIS-UPaRF	AIT, DOI	Sep-13	Aug-17
	Hydropower-to-environment water transfers in the Zambezi Basin: balancing eco-systems health with hydropower generation in hydropower dominated basins	DGIS-UPaRF	Waternet, Swiss Federal Inst of Tech, Eduardo Mondlane Univ, WWF	Sep-13	Jan-18
	Financing sanitation in slums: whose responsibility?	DGIS-UPaRF	UDSM	Oct-13	Dec-14
	Adaptation to Climate Change impacts on the Nile River Basin	DGIS-UPaRF	Univ. Dar Es Salaam, Makerere Univ. Addis Ababa Univ. Uni of Nairobi, NBCBN, HRI	Oct-13	Apr-15
	Salt and Brackish Water as Second Quality Water for Urban Environment	IRF	Birzeit Univ., KWR, Hong Kong	Oct-13	Jan-18
	Assessment of Charact of Wastewater flows from unsewered urban slums in African cities	DGIS-UPaRF	Kwame Nkrumah University of Science and Technology	Nov-13	Dec-14
	Development of a tool for flexible model architecture in hydrological modeling	STITPRO		Jan-14	Jan-15
	Climate change impacts on seasonally and intermittently open tidal inlets	DGIS-UPaRF	AIT, Univ of Moratuwa, Univ of Peradeniya, CSRO, FECT, Deltares	Jan-14	Jan-18
	Study of selection water problems in three delta cities within densely populated urban agglomerations.	DG water		May-14	Dec-14
	Impact of Untreated Wastewater on natural Water Bodies: integrated risk assessment	DGIS-UPaRF	Birzeit, WESI	May-14	May-18

<b>RESEARCH ANI</b>	D DEVELOPMENT				
COUNTRY	TITLE	FUNDING	PARTNERS	START	END
Various Countries	Study of selection water problems in three delta cities within	DG Water	Deltares, CPWC	May-14	Jan-15
	densely populated urban agglomerations.				
	Tropical Constructed Wetlands for Wastewater Treatment	DGIS-UPaRF	Bangladesh University of Engineering & Technology	Sep-14	Sep-15
	Constructed wetlands with tropical plants for the treatment of landfill leachate	DGIS-UPaRF	Univeristy of Sao Paulo	Oct-14	Aug-15
	Integrating Social and Natural Systems in Enhancing	DGIS-UPaRF	Univ. of Cape Town, Polytechnic of	Oct-14	Jul-16
	Environmental Sustainability in the Middle Zambezi Valley		Namibia		
	Step Chlorination for Improving Drinking Water Disinfection	DGIS-UPaRF	Birzeit Univ, KNUST	Oct-14	Jul-16
	System in Ghana and Palestine				
	Improved Drought Early Warning and FORecasting to strengthen preparedness and adaptation to droughts in Africa	EC-FP7-Cooperation		Nov-14	Nov-17
	Merging Hydrologic models and EO data for reliable information	EC-FP7-Cooperation	AUT, Hidromod, IST, CPTEC, JRC,	Jan-15	Jan-18
	on Water		Skysoft, UEM		
	"Knowledge-based approach to develop a prevention cULTUre of	EC-FP7-Cooperation	UniBs, ECMWF, UniLj, WSL,	jan-15	Jan-18
	water related Risk"		CORILA, KCL, JRC, AAWA, UniBris,		
			Willis		
	Arsenic Removal for Drinking Water Production Susprise Proposal	SenterNovem	Vitens, TU Delft, Paques		

ADVISORY SER	VICES				
COUNTRY	TITLE	FUNDING	PARTNERS	START	END
Barbados	Studies for the preparation of the Barbados Coastal Risk	IADB		Jun-14	Jan-15
	Assessment and Management Program				
China	EU-China River Basin Management Programme: Membership of	EU	DHV	Oct-11	Jan-16
	the Programme Advisory Group				
Croatia	Development And Application Of Models And Guidelines To	WB		Jul-14	Nov-15
	Facilitate Decision Making In The Extension Of Wastewater				
	Treatment Plants (Wwtps) And To Increase Operational Efficiency				
	Of Existing Wwtps				
Indonesia	Master Plan for Capacity Development for Ministry of Public	WB		Sep-13	May-14
	Works				
Netherlands	Delft Spetterstad Fase 1	HH Haglanden	Deltares, Hoogheemraadschap	Jan-14	Mar-14
			Haaglanden, RO2		
Netherlands Antilles	Flood modelling study of the joint stormwater catchment (Belle-	National Government		Арг-13	Jan-14
	Plaine) on St Maarten				
Sao Tome And	Adaptation to Climate Change: Geomorphology and Coastal	WB	DeltaRes	Dec-14	Sep-15
Principe	Adaptation Study				
Sudan	Operationalize Delft FEWS software for Flood Forecasting and	ENTRO		Jun-14	Dec-19
	Flood Early Warning System in Sudan				
	South Sudan Identification Mission	DGIS-DUPC	Deltares	Nov-14	Feb-15
Turkey	Transposition of the Water Framework Directive and advice on	Agentschap NL		Feb-15	Apr-15
	the organisation of the Ministry of Environment and Forestry in				
	Turkey				
Various Countries	Scaling up micro irrigation systems in India, Madagascar and	EC-Coopernic		Sep-13	Jan-16
	Honduras				
	Facilitator 8th Annual Mekong Flood forum	MRC		okt-13	jul-14
	Development of a Decision Support System for Selection of	AsDB		dec-13	jun-14
	Sanitation Options				
YEMEN	Increasing Water Management and Productivity in the Tiham,	GOPA - Germany		mrt-14	aug-14
	Yemen				

Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs	RNE	Royal Netherlands Embassy
European Commission	SAIL	Capacity building programme through NUFFIC
Inter-American Development Bank	SENTER	SenterNovem, Agentschap voor duurzaamheid en samenwerking
Internal Research Fund IHE		(of Ministry of Economic Affairs)
Netherlands Organisation for International Cooperation in Higher Education	V&W	Ministry of Transport, Public Works and Water Management
Nederlandse Organisatie voor Wetenschappeljk Onderzoek	WB	Worldbank
	Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs European Commission Inter-American Development Bank Internal Research Fund IHE Netherlands Organisation for International Cooperation in Higher Education Nederlandse Organisatie voor Wetenschappeljk Onderzoek	Netherlands Ministry of Foreign AffairsRNEEuropean CommissionSAILInter-American Development BankSENTERInternal Research Fund IHEV&WNetherlands Organisation for International Cooperation in Higher EducationV&WNederlandse Organisatie voor Wetenschappeljk OnderzoekWB

## ANNEX 5 | RESEARCH LINES

# 

RESEARCH LINES		
THEME	CORE	RESEARCH LINE
Environmental Integrity	Freshwater Ecosystems	Planning for integrated river basin management
		Wetland management
		Environmental water allocation
	Pollution Prevention and Control	Cleaner production and pollution prevention
		Solid waste management
		Ecotechnologies (natural treatment systems, photobioreactors)
		Resource recovery (water, nutrients, minerals, energy)
Information and	Hydroinformatics	Modelling paradigms, uncertainty and risk
Communication Systems	,	Systems engineering and optimisation
,		Collaborative decision making and Internet-based computing and learning
		Applications of integrated hydroinformatics systems in water management
Urbanisation	Water Supply Engineering	Water transport and distribution
		Ground water treatment
		Natural treatment systems
		Conventional water treatment technology
		Desalination & membrane related technology
	Sanitary Engineering	Advanced nutrient removal processes
	Santary Engineering	Activated sludge modeling
		Resources-oriented sonitation
		Mombrano bio-reactors
		Optimization of wastewater collection and treatment components
		Intersected urban water infrastructure management
Water Management and	Conscitu Puilding	
		Steep at heaving and developing aggregations
Governance		
	Martin Danaman Martin and	
	water Resources Management	
	water Services Management	
		Establishment and functioning of river basin organisations
		Organisational change in the water sector
		Strategic management of drinking water utilities
		Equity and participation issues in water services management
Water Security	Hydraulic Engineering and River Basin Development	Hydraulic structures and hydraulic processes
		Environmental impact of water-related projects
		Management of floods and droughts
		Flood resilience of urban areas
	Hydraulic Engineering - Coastal Engineering and	Integrated coastal modelling
	Port Development	Performance and reliability of flood defence systems and coastal structures
		Integrated coastal zone management
		Port design
	Hydraulic Engineering - Land and Water Development	Hydraulic structures and hydraulic systems
		Environmental impacts of hydraulic works
		Institutional aspects of system management
		Integrated lowland development
	Hydrology and Water Resources	Global change impacts on hydrology and water resources
		Physical and biogeochemical processes of groundwater systems
		Ecohydrology

### ANNEX 6 | PUBLICATIONS

# 4

### BOOKS

Fransen J, van Dijk MP, Kassahun S (2010)
 Formalization and informalization processes in urban
 Ethiopia: incorporating informality. Shaker, Maastricht.
 Szilágyi J, Szöllösi-Nagy A (2010) Recursive
 Streamflow Forecasting: A State Space Approach. CRC
 Press, Leiden.

 van Dijk MP (2010): The contribution of cities to economic development, An explanation based on Chinese and Indian cities. Lap, Saarbrucken.
 Zhou Y, Li W (2010) Groundwater monitoring, information systems, modelling and sustainable development, China Science Publishing.

# 33

### CHAPTER IN BOOK

■ Blokland MW (2010) Benchmarking Water Services Delivery. In: Kurian M, McCarney P (eds) Peri-urban Water and Sanitation Services: Policy, Planning and Method. Springer Verlag.

■ Brdjanovic D, Meijer B (2010) Modeling as a tool for decision-making: Case study Sarajevo, Bosnia and Herzegovina. In: Price R, Vojinovic Z (ed) Case study in Urban Hydroinformatics.

Gupta J (2010) Climate Change and Shifting Paradigms. In Duncan French (ed.) Global Justice and Sustainability, Martinus Nijhoff/Brill Academic Publishers, Leiden, pp. 167-185.

■ Gupta J (2010) Mainstreaming Climate Change: A Theoretical exploration, in Gupta, J. and N. van de Grijp (eds.). Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 67-96.

 Gupta J (2010) Global governance: development cooperation, in Gupta, J. and N. van de Grijp (eds.).
 Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development
 Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 99-133.
 Gupta J, Persson A, Olsson L et al (2010)
 Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development
 Cooperation: Conditions for Success, M. Hulme and
 H.Neufeldt (eds.) Making Climate Change Work For Us:
 European Perspectives on Adaptation and Mitigation

Strategies, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 319-339.

Gupta J, Thompson M (2010). Development and development cooperation theory, in Gupta J, van de Grijp N (eds) Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 33-66. Gupta J, van Asselt H, van Drunen M (2010) Global governance: climate cooperation, in Gupta J, van de Grijp N (eds) Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 134-168. Gupta J, van de Grijp N (2010) Climate change, development and development cooperation, in in Gupta J, van de Grijp N (eds) Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 1-30.

 Gupta J, van de Grijp N (2010). Prospects for mainstreaming climate change in development cooperation, in Gupta J, van de Grijp N (eds) Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 303-343.
 Helbron H, Palekhov D (2010) Strategic Environmental Assessment to Assess and Monitor Sustainable Resource Use in Progressive Development: Potentials and Limitations. In: Issar, A. S. (ed) Progressive Development: To Mitigate the Negative Impact of Global Warming on the Semi-arid Regions. Series of Environmental Science and Engineering, Springer-

Verlag, Berlin, Heidelberg.

Lattemann S, Kennedy MD, Schippers JC, Amy G

(2010) Chapter 2 Global Desalination Situation. Sustainability Science and Engineering, 2 (C), pp 7-39. ■ Letema, S, van Vliet B, van Lier JB (2010) Reconsidering urban sewer and treatment; facilities in East Africa as interplay of flows, networks and spaces. In: van Vliet B, Spaargaren G, Oosterveer P (eds) Social Perspectives on the Sanitation Challenge. Springer, Dordrecht, The Netherlands, ISBN 978-90-481-3720-6, Chapter 9, p. 145-162.

■ Lucke B, Nikolskii I, Helbron H, Palekhov D (2010) Some Examples of Development in the Desert Belts. In: Issar, A. S. (ed) Progressive Development: To Mitigate the Negative Impact of Global Warming on the Semi-arid Regions. Series of Environmental Science and Engineering, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, Heidelberg, pp. 89-92.

■ Lucke B, Nikolskii I, Helbron H, Palekhov D (2010) Sustainability in the Desert? In: Issar, A. S. (ed) Progressive Development: To Mitigate the Negative Impact of Global Warming on the Semi-arid Regions. Series of Environmental Science and Engineering, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, Heidelberg, pp. 93-94. ■ Lucke B, Nikolskii I, Helbron H, Palekhov D (2010) The Potential of Progressive Development. In: Issar, A. S. (ed) Progressive Development: To Mitigate the Negative Impact of Global Warming on the Semi-arid Regions. Series of Environmental Science and Engineering, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, Heidelberg, pp. 95-96.

■ Lucke B, Nikolskii I, Helbron H, Palekhov D (2010) The Feasibility of Progressive Development. In: Issar, A. S. (ed) Progressive Development: To Mitigate the Negative Impact of Global Warming on the Semi-arid Regions. Series of Environmental Science and Engineering, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, Heidelberg, pp. 97-102.

■ Lucke B, Nikolskii I, Helbron H, Palekhov D (2010) The Socio-Ecomic Framework: What Can be Learned from Earlier Failures? In: Issar, A. S. (ed) Progressive Development: To Mitigate the Negative Impact of Global Warming on the Semi-arid Regions. Series of Environmental Science and Engineering, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, Heidelberg, pp. 115-118.

Maeng SK, Sharma SK, Amy G (2010) Chapter 9 -Framework for Assessment of Organic Micropollutant (OMP) Removals during Managed Aquifer Recharge and Recovery (MAR). In: Shamrukh M (ed) Riverbank Filtration for Water Security in Desert Countries. NATO Science for Peace and Security Series, Springer Dordrecht, The Netherlands.

Plugge CM, van Lier JB, Stams AJM (2010) Syntrophic communities in methane formation from high strength wastewaters. In: Insam H, Franke-Whittle IH, Goberna M (eds) Microbes at Work, From Wastes to Resources, Springer-Verlag, DOI 10.1007/ ISBN: 978-3-642-04043-6\_3, Berlin Heidelberg, p 59-77, total pages 329.

■ Salame L, van der Zaag P (2010) Enhanced knowledge and education systems for strengthening the capacity of transboundary water management. Chapter 12 in Earle A, Jägerskog A, Öjendal J (eds) Transboundary Water Management - Principles and Practice. Earthscan, London; pp. 171-186.

■ Schmidt M, Albrecht E, Helbron H, Palekhov D (2010) The Proportionate Impact Assessment of the European Commission – Towards More Formalism to Backup 'The Environment. In: Bizer, K., S. Lechner & M. Führ (eds.) European Impact Assessment and the Environment. 1st Edition., 200 p., ISBN: 978-3-642-11669-8, pp. 85-102.

■ Sharma SK, Amy G (2010) Chapter 15 - Natural Treatment Systems. In: Edzwald JK (ed) Water Quality and Treatment: A Handbook on Drinking Water. Sixth Edition, American Water Works Association and McGraw Hill Inc., USA.

■ van Asselt H, Gupta J (2010) Mainstreaming climate change in EU member states development cooperation, in Gupta J, van de Grijp N (eds) Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 206-251.

 van der Grijp, N. and J. Gupta (2010). The Need for Climate Assistance, in Gupta, J. and N. van de Grijp (eds.). Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development
 Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 255-280.
 van der Grijp N, Gupta J (2010). The Supply of Aid and the Need-Supply Nexus, in Gupta J, van de Grijp N (eds) Mainstreaming Climate Change in Development
 Cooperation: Theory, Practice and Implications for the European Union, Cambridge University Press, 281-299.
 van Dijk MP (2010) Ecological cities in Asia, examples from China and Singapore. In: Bhatnagar M (ed)

Ecocities, perspectives and experiences.. Icfai University Press, Hyderabad, 174-198.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Financing water management in Asia for achieving sustainable urban development: the example of Singapore. In: del Pilar M, Pachon G (eds) Gestion integrada de recursos hidricos, Instrumentos fiancieros y economicos, Tomo III. Universidade externado de Colombia, Bogota, 81-113.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) In: Fransen J, van Dijk MP, Kassahun S (eds) Incorporating informality: 35 years of research and policies onthe urban informal sector, 1-15. van Dijk MP (2010) In: Fransen J, van Dijk MP, Kassahun S (eds) Changing land rights in Ethiopia and China, How to incorporate informal land markets, 123-136.

■ van Dijk MP, Obo DD (2010) In: Fransen J, van Dijk MP, Kassahun S (eds) From informal lending to Micro finance, 153-171.

van Lier JB, Vashi A, van der Lubbe J, Heffernan B
 (2010) Anaerobic sewage treatment using UASB
 reactors: engineering and operational aspects. In: Fang
 HH (ed) Environmental Anaerobic technology;
 Applications and New Developments, World Scientific,
 Imperial College Press, London, UK, ISBN 978-1 84816-542-7 Chapter 4, p. 59-89.

■ Yangxiao Z, Wenpeng L (eds) (2010) Groundwater monitoring, information systems, modelling and sustainable development, China Science Publishing.

# 184

### **ARTICLE IN JOURNAL**

■ Abbott MB, Vojinovic Z (2010) Realising social justice in the water sector: 1. Journal of Hydroinformatics 12: 97-117

Abbott MB, Vojinovic Z (2010) Realising social justice in the water sector: 2. Journal of Hydroinformatics 12: 225-239

■ Acheampong MA, Meulepas RJW, Lens PNL (2010) Removal of heavymetals and cyanide from gold mine wastewater. Journal of Chemical Technology and Biotechnology 85: 590-613

■ Ahlers R (2010) Fixing and nixing: The politics of water privatization. Review of Radical Political Economics

### 42:213-230

Alfonso L, Jonoski A, Solomatine D (2010)

Multiobjective optimization of operational responses for contaminant flushing in water distribution networks. Journal of Water Resources Planning and Management 136: 48-58

■ Alfonso L, Lobbrecht A, Price R. (2010) Information theory-based approach for location of monitoring water level gauges in polders. Water Resources Research 46: W03528, doi:10.1029/2009WR008101

■ Alfonso L, Lobbrecht A, Price R. (2010) Optimization of Water Level Monitoring Network in Polder Systems Using Information Theory. Water Resources Research 46: W12553, 13 PP., 2010,

doi:10.1029/2009WR008953.

Alhadidi A, Kemperman AJB, Blankert B, Schippers JC, Wessling M, van der Meer WGJ (2010) Silt Density Index and Modified Fouling Index relation, and effect of pressure, temperature and membrane resistance. Desalination

■ Arboleda AM, Crosato A, Middelkoop H (2010) Reconstructing the early 19th-century Waal River by means of a 2D physics-based numerical model. Hydrological Processes 24: 3661-3675

Arthington AH, Naiman RJ, McClain ME, Nilsson C (2010) Preserving the biodiversity and ecological services of rivers: New challenges and research opportunities. Freshwater Biology 55: 1-16

Babu MA, Hes EMA, van der Steen NP, Hooijmans CM, Gijzen HJ (2010) Nitrification rates of algalbacterial biofilms in wastewater stabilization ponds under light and dark conditions. Ecological Engineering 36: 1741-1746

■ Baghoth S, Sharma SK, Amy G (2010) Tracking Natural Organic Matter in a Drinking Water Treatment Plant using Fluorescence Excitation Emission Matrices and PARAFAC. Water Research.

Barreto W, Vojinovic Z, Price R, Solomatine D (2010) Multiobjective evolutionary approach to rehabilitation of Urban drainage systems. Journal of Water Resources Planning and Management 136: 547-554

Bartacek J, Fermoso FG, Catena AB, Lens PNL (2010) Effect of sorption kinetics on nickel toxicity in methanogenic granular sludge. Journal of Hazardous Materials 180: 289-296

Bartacek J, Manconi I, Sansone G, Murgia R, Lens PNL (2010) Divalent metal addition restores sulfide-inhibited N2O reduction in Pseudomonas aeruginosa. Nitric Oxide - Biology and Chemistry 23: 101-105

■ Betrie GD, Mohamed YA, Van Griensven A, Srinivasan R, Mynett A (2010) Sediment management modelling in Blue Nile Basin using SWAT model. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences Discussions 7: 5497-5524

Biermann F, Betsill MM, Gupta J, Kanie N, Lebel L, Liverman D, Schroeder H, Siebenhüner B, Zondervan R (2010) Earth system governance: A research framework. International Environmental Agreements: Politics, Law and Economics 10: 277-298

■ Biermann F, Yanda PZ, Zondervan R, Betsill MM, Vieira SC, Gupta J, Kanie N, Lebel L, Liverman D, Schroeder H, Siebenhuner B (2010) Navigating the anthropocene: The Earth System Governance Project strategy paper. Current Opinion in Environmental Sustainability 2(3): 202-208.

■ Bijmans MFM, de Vries E, Yang C-H, Buisman CJN, Lens PNL, Dopson M (2010) Sulfate reduction at pH 4.0 for treatment of process and wastewaters. Biotechnology Progress 26(4): 1029-1037. ■ Blokland MW, Schouten M, Schwartz K (2010) "Rejuvenating a veteran benchmarking scheme: benchmarking in the Dutch drinking water sector", in Journal of Competition and Regulation of Network Industries, Volume 11 (2010), No.2.

Bohté R, Mul ML, Bogaard TA, Savenije HHG, Uhlenbrook S, Kessler TC (2010) Hydrograph separation and scale dependency of natural tracers in a semi-arid catchment. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences Discussions 7: 1343-1372

Brandimarte L, Di Baldassarre G, Bruni G, D'Odorico P, Montanari A (2010) Relation Between the North-Atlantic Oscillation and Hydroclimatic Conditions in Mediterranean Areas. Water Resources Management: 1-11

Bray M, Han D, Xuan Y, Bates P, Williams M (2010) Rainfall uncertainty for extreme events in NWP downscaling model. Hydrological Processes: 10.1002/ hyp.7905

Brdjanovic D, Perez Wong G, González Díaz OA (2010) Instituto UNESCO-IHE para la educacion relative al agua. Voluntad Hidraulica, 101:57-61.

Carling P, Villanueva I, Herget J, Wright N, Borodavko P, Morvan H (2010) Unsteady 1D and 2D hydraulic models with ice dam break for Quaternary megaflood, Altai Mountains, southern Siberia. Global and Planetary Change 70: 24-34

Castellarin A, Di Baldassarre G, Brath A (2010) Floodplain management strategies for flood attenuation in the River Po, River Research and Applications: 10.1002/ rra.1405

■ Chatterjee A, Blom E, Gujja B, Jacimovic R, Beevers L, O'Keeffe J, Beland M, Biggs T (2010) WWF initiatives to study the impact of climate change on Himalayan highaltitude wetlands (HAWS). Mountain Research and Development 30: 42-52

■ Claeys P, Van Griensven A, Benedetti L, De Baets B, Vanrolleghem PA (2010) On numerical solver selection and related uncertainty terminology. Journal of Hydroinformatics 12: 241-250

■ Clifford NJ, Wright NG, Harvey G, Gurnell AM, Harmar OP, Soar PJ (2010) Numerical modeling of river flow for ecohydraulic applications: Some experiences with velocity characterization in field and simulated data. Journal of Hydraulic Engineering 136: 1033-1041

■ d'Abzac P, Bordas F, Joussein E, van Hullebusch E, Lens PNL, Guibaud G (2010) Characterization of the mineral fraction associated to extracellular polymeric substances (EPS) in anaerobic granular sludges. Environmental Science and Technology 44(1): 412-418.

■ d'Abzac P, Bordas F, van Hullebusch E, Lens PNL, Guibaud G (2010) Extraction of extracellular polymeric substances (EPS) from anaerobic granular sludges: comparison of nine extraction protocols. Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology 85(5): 1589-1599.

■ d'Abzac P, Bordas F, van Hullebusch E, Lens PNL, Guibaud G (2010) Effects of extraction procedures on metal binding properties of extracellular polymeric substances (EPS) extracted from anaerobic granular sludges. Colloids and surfaces. B, Biointerfaces 80(2): 161-168.

■ de Ridder DJ, Villacorte L, Verliefde ARD, Verberk JQJC, Heijman SGJ, Amy GL, van Dijk JC (2010) Modeling equilibrium adsorption of organic micropollutants onto activated carbon. Water Research 44: 3077-3086

■ der Wegen MV, Dastgheib A, Roelvink JA (2010) Morphodynamic modeling of tidal channel evolution in comparison to empirical PA relationship. Coastal Engineering 57: 827-837

■ Di Baldassarre G, Claps P (2010) A hydraulic study on the applicability of flood rating curves, Hydrology Research: 10.2166/nh.2010.098

■ Di Baldassarre G, Montanari A, Lins H, Koutsoyiannis D, Brandimarte L, Blschl G (2010) Flood fatalities in Africa: From diagnosis to mitigation. Geophysical Research Letters 37

■ Di Baldassarre G, Schumann G, Bates PD, Freer JE, Beven KJ (2010) Flood-plain mapping: A critical discussion of deterministic and probabilistic approaches. Cartographie de zone inondable: Un examen critique d'approches déterministe et probabiliste 55: 364-376

■ El-Sayed Mohamed Mahgoub M, Van Der Steen NP, Abu-Zeid K, Vairavamoorthy K (2010) Towards sustainability in urban water: A life cycle analysis of the urban water system of Alexandria City, Egypt. Journal of Cleaner Production 18: 1100-1106

Elshorbagy A, Corzo G, Srinivasulu S, Solomatine DP (2010) Experimental investigation of the predictive capabilities of data driven modeling techniques in hydrology - Part 1: Concepts and methodology.

Hydrology and Earth System Sciences 14: 1931-1941 ■ Elshorbagy A, Corzo G, Srinivasulu S, Solomatine DP (2010) Experimental investigation of the predictive capabilities of data driven modeling techniques in hydrology - Part 2: Application. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences 14: 1943-1961

Essandoh HMK, Tizaoui C, Mohamed MHA, Amy G, Brdjanovic D (2010) Fate of triclocarbon during soil aquifer treatment: Soil column studies. Water science and technology 61: 1779-1785

Etiegni CA, Ostrovskaya E, Leentvaar J, Eizinga F (2010) Mitigation of illegal fishing activities: enhancing compliance with fisheries regulation in Lake Victoria (Kenya). Regional Environmental Change: 1-12

■ Fenu A, Guglielmi G, Jimenez J, Spèrandio M, Saroj D, Lesjean B, Brepols C, Thoeye C, Nopens I (2010) Activated sludge model (ASM) based modelling of membrane bioreactor (MBR) processes: A critical review with special regard to MBR specificities. Water Research 44: 4272-4294

■ Fermoso FG, Bartacek J, Lens PNL (2010) Effect of vitamin B12 pulse addition on the performance of cobalt deprived anaerobic granular sludge bioreactors. Bioresource Technology 101: 5201-5205

■ Fermoso FG, Bartacek J, Manzano R, van Leeuwen HP, Lens PNL (2010) Dosing of anaerobic granular sludge bioreactors with cobalt: Impact of cobalt retention on methanogenic activity. Bioresource Technology 101: 9429-9437

■ Foppen JW, Lutterodt G, Röling WFM, Uhlenbrook S (2010) Towards understanding inter-strain attachment variations of Escherichia coli during transport in saturated quartz sand. Water Research 44: 1202-1212

■ García J, Rousseau DPL, Morató J, Lesage E, Matamoros V, Bayona JM (2010) Contaminant removal processes in subsurface-flow constructed wetlands: A review. Critical Reviews in Environmental Science and Technology 40: 561-661

■ Ghebremichael K, Gebremedhin N, Amy G (2010) Performance of Moringa oliefera as a biosorbent for chromium removal. Water science and technology 62: 1106-1111

■ Ghebremichael KA, Muchelemba E, Petruševski B, Amy G (2010) Electrochemically Activated Water as an Alternative to Chlorine for Decentralized Disinfection. Water Supply: Research & Technology - AQUA. Gleeson T, van der Steen J, Sophocleous MA, Taniguchi M, Alley WM, Allen DM, Zhou Y (2010) Groundwater sustainability strategies. Nature Geoscience 3: 378-379

■ Goor Q, Halleux C, Mohamed Y, Tilmant A (2010) Optimal operation of a multipurpose multireservoir system in the Eastern Nile River Basin. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences 14: 1895-1908

 Goor Q, Halleux C, Mohamed Y, Tilmant A (2010) Optimal operation of a multipurpose multireservoir system in the Eastern Nile River Basin. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences Discussions 7: 4331-4369
 Griffioen J, de Louw P, Orup C, Foppen JW (2010) Variatie in achtergrondbelasting van fosfaat op oppervlaktewater in een polder. H2O 2010/7, p. 35-38

■ Guglielmi G, Chiarani D, Saroj DP, Andreottola G (2010) Sludge filterability and dewaterability in membrane bioreactors for municipal wastewater treatment, Desalination, 250(2):660-665.

■ Gupta J (2010). A history of international climate change policy, Wiley Interdisciplinary Reviews, 1(5): 636-653.

■ Gupta J, Ahlers R (2010). South Asia: Climate Change and Water Challenges, South Asian Journal, 28: 6-13.

■ Gupta J, Lebel L (2010) Access and allocation in earth system governance: Water and climate change compared. International Environmental Agreements: Politics, Law and Economics 10: 377-395

■ Gupta J, Termeer K, Klostermann J, Meijerink S, van den Brink M, Jong P, Nooteboom S, Bergsma E (2010). Institutions for Climate Change: A Method to Assess the Inherent Characteristics of Institutions to Enable the Adaptive Capacity of Society, Environmental Science and Policy 13(6), 459-471.

■ Hamid SH, Adeeb A, Mohamed YA (2010) Towards a performance oriented management for large scale irrigation systems. Case study Rahad Scheme Sudan. Irrigation and Drainage.

Harley MD, Turner IL, Short AD, Ranasinghe R (2010) Interannual variability and controls of the Sydney wave climate. International Journal of Climatology 30: 1322-1335

Hugenschmidt C, Ingwersen J, Sangchan W, Sukvanachaikul Y, Uhlenbrook S, Streck T (2010) Hydrochemical analysis of stream water in a tropical, mountainous headwater catchment in northern Thailand. Hydrol. Earth Syst. Sci. Discuss., 7, 2187-2220.

■ Huo C, Wei W, Zhou Y, Li W (2010) Analysis of sustainable groundwater development scenarios in the north plain of Urumqi River Basin. Journal of Hydrogeology and Engineering Geology, Vol. 37, No. 5, pp 1-7.

Ismail SB, de La Parra CJ, Temmink H, van Lier JB (2010) Polymeric substances in up-flow anaerobic sludge blanket (UASB) reactors operated under high salinity conditions. Water Research, 44(6), 1909-1917.
 Jiang T, Kennedy MD, Schepper VD, Nam SN, Nopens I, Vanrolleghem PA, Amy G (2010) Characterization of soluble microbial products and their fouling impacts in membrane bioreactors. Environmental Science and Technology 44: 6642-6648

■ Jung NC, Popescu I, Kelderman P, Solomatine DP, Price RK (2010) Application of model trees and other machine learning techniques for algal growth prediction in yongdam reservoir, Republic of Korea. Journal of Hydroinformatics 12: 262-274

Kaggwa RC, Van Dam AA, Kipkemboi J, Denny P (2010) Evaluation of nitrogen cycling and fish production in seasonal ponds ('Fingerponds') in Lake Victoria wetlands, East Africa using a dynamic simulation model. Aquaculture Research 42: 74-90

Kassab GH, Halalsheh M, Klapwijk A, Fayyad M, van Lier JB (2010) Sequential anaerobic-aerobic treatment for domestic wastewater – a review. Bioresources Technology. 101, 3299-3310.

■ Katukiza AY, Ronteltap M, Oleja A, Niwagaba CB, Kansiime F, Lens PNL (2010) Selection of sustainable sanitation technologies for urban slums - A case of Bwaise III in Kampala, Uganda. Science of the Total Environment 409: 52-62

■ Kipkemboi J, Kilonzi CM, van Dam AA, Kitaka N, Mathooko JM, Denny P (2010) Enhancing the fish production potential of Lake Victoria papyrus wetlands, Kenya, using seasonal flood-dependent ponds. Wetlands Ecology and Management 18: 471-483

■ Komakech H, van Koppen B, Mahoo H, van der Zaag P (2010) Pangani River Basin over time and space: On the interface of local and basin level responses. Agricultural Water Management

■ Komakech HC, Mul ML, van der Zaag P, Rwehumbiza FBR (2010) Water allocation and management in an emerging spate irrigation system in Makanya catchment, Tanzania. Agricultural Water Management

■ Kumar A, Chilongo T, Dewulf J, Ergas SJ, Van Langenhove H (2010) Gaseous dimethyl sulphide removal in a membrane biofilm reactor: Effect of methanol on reactor performance. Bioresource Technology 101: 8955-8959

■ Kumar A, Ergas S, Yuan X, Sahu A, Zhang Q, Dewulf J, Malcata FX, van Langenhove H (2010) Enhanced CO2 fixation and biofuel production via microalgae: Recent developments and future directions. Trends in Biotechnology 28: 371-380

■ Kuntiyawichai K, Schultz B, Uhlenbrook S, Suryadi FX, van Griensven A (2010) Comparison of flood management options for the Yang River Basin, Thailand. Irrigation and Drainage: 10.1002/ird.596

■ Labite H, Lunani I, Van Der Steen P, Vairavamoorthy K, Drechsel P, Lens P (2010) Quantitative microbial risk analysis to evaluate health effects of interventions in the urban water system of Accra, Ghana. Journal of Water and Health 8: 417-430

Lattemann S, Kennedy MD, Amy G (2010) Seawater desalination - A green technology? Journal of Water Supply: Research and Technology - AQUA 59: 134-151
 Lattemann S, Kennedy MD, Schippers JC, Amy G (2010), pp. 7-39.

■ Lee JW, Lee KH, Park KY, Maeng SK (2010) Hydrogenotrophic denitrification in a packed bed reactor: Effects of hydrogen-to-water flow rate ratio. Bioresource Technology 101: 3940-3946

■ Lee SH, Wright NG (2010) Simple and efficient solution of the shallow water equations with source terms. International Journal for Numerical Methods in Fluids 63: 313-340

■ Li H, Arias M, Blauw A, Los H, Mynett AE, Peters S (2010) Enhancing generic ecological model for shortterm prediction of Southern North Sea algal dynamics with remote sensing images. Ecological Modelling 221: 2435-2446

■ Li H, Mynett A, Penning E, Qi H (2010) Revealing spatial pattern dynamics in aquatic ecosystem modelling with Multi-Agent Systems in Lake Veluwe. Ecological Informatics 5: 97-107

■ Li N, Xie W, Zhou Y, Li W (2010) Analysis of sustainable groundwater development scenarios for the Chaiwopu Basin in the Urumqi River Basin. Journal of Hydrogeology and Engineering Geology, Vol. 37, No.5, pp 8-14.

Liang X, Van Dijk MP (2010) Financial and economic feasibility of decentralized wastewater reuse systems in Beijing. Water science and technology 61: 1965-1973
 Liang X, van Dijk MP (2010), Financial and economic feasibility of decentralized waste water reuse systems in Beijing. In: Water science and technology, 61(8) pp. 1965-1974.

Lopes SIC, Capela MI, Dar S, Lens PNL (2010) Sulfate reduction during the acidification of sucrose at pH 5 under thermophilic (55oC) conditions. I: effect of trace metals. Bioresource Technology 101(12): 4269-4277.
 Lopes SIC, Capela MI, Dar S, Lens PNL (2010) Sulfate reduction during the acidification of sucrose at pH 5

under thermophilic (55 oC) conditions. II: effect of sulfide and COD/SO42- ratio. Bioresource Technology 101(12): 4278-4284.

■ Love D, Uhlenbrook S, Corzo-Perez G, Twomlow S, van der Zaag P (2010) Rainfall-interceptionevaporation-runoff relationships in a semi-arid catchment, northern Limpopo basin, Zimbabwe. Relations précipitation-interception-évaporationécoulement dans un bassin versant semi-aride (nord du Limpopo, Zimbabwe) 55: 687-703

Love D, Uhlenbrook S, Twomlow S, van Der Zaag P (2010) Changing hydroclimatic and discharge patterns in the northern Limpopo Basin, Zimbabwe. Water SA 36: 335-350

■ Love D, van der Zaag P, Uhlenbrook S, Owen RJS (2010) A water balance modeling approach to optimizing the use of water resources in ephemeral sand rivers. River Research and Application, DOI: 10.1002/rra.1408.

 Lubberding HJ, Valencia R, Salazar RS, Lens PNL
 (2010) Release and conversion of ammonia in bioreactor landfill simulators. Journal of Environmental Management
 Lutterodt G, Basnet M, Foppen JWA, Uhlenbrook S
 (2010) Erratum to "Determining minimum sticking efficiencies of six environmental Escherichia coli isolates"

(J. Contam. Hydrol. 110 (3-4), 110-117) (DOI:10.1016/j.jconhyd.2009.09.005). Journal of Contaminant Hydrology 111: 83

■ Lutterodt G, Foppen JWA, Maksoud A, Uhlenbrook S (2010) Transport of Escherichia coli in 25 m quartz sand columns. Journal of Contaminant Hydrology, doi:10.1016/j.jconhyd.2010.09.010.

■ Maeng SK, Ameda E, Sharma SK, Grützmacher G, Amy GL (2010) Organic micropollutant removal from wastewater effluent-impacted drinking water sources during bank filtration and artificial recharge. Water Research 44: 4003-4014

■ Mahgoub MEM, van der Steen NP, Abu-Zeid K, Vairavamoorthy K (2010) Towards sustainability in urban water: A life cycle analysis of the urban water system of Alexandria City, Egypt. Journal of Cleaner Production 18: 1100-1106.

Makurira H, Savenije HHG, Uhlenbrook S (2010) Modelling field scale water partitioning using on-site observations in sub-Saharan rainfed agriculture. Hydrol. Earth Syst. Sci.: 14, 627-638.

■ Mango LM, Melesse AM, McClain ME, Gann D, Setegn SG (2010) A modeling approach to determine the impacts of land use and climate change scenarios on the water flux of the upper Mara River. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences Discussions 7: 5851-5893

Marara M, Okello N, Kuhanwa Z, Douven W, Beevers L, Leentvaar J (2010) The importance of context in delivering effective EIA: Case studies from East Africa. Environmental Impact Assessment Review ■ Masih I, Uhlenbrook S, Maskey S, Ahmad MD (2010) Regionalization of a conceptual rainfall-runoff model based on similarity of the flow duration curve: A case study from the semi-arid Karkheh basin, Iran. Journal of Hydrology 391: 188-201

Masih I, Uhlenbrook S, Maskey S, Smakhtin V (2010) Assessing the impact of areal precipitation input on streamflow simulations using the SWAT model. J American Water Resources Association (JWARA): 10.1111/j.1752-1688.2010.00502.x.

Masih I, Uhlenbrook S, Maskey S, Smakhtin V (2010) Streamflow trends and climate linkages in the Zagros Mountains, Iran. Climatic Change: 10.1007/s10584-009-9793-x.

McCall RT, Van Thiel de Vries JSM, Plant NG, Van Dongeren AR, Roelvink JA, Thompson DM, Reniers AJHM (2010) Two-dimensional time dependent hurricane overwash and erosion modeling at Santa Rosa Island. Coastal Engineering 57: 668-683

Meganck RA (2010) The role of water education in achieving the Millennium Development Goals? Reviews in Environmental Science and Biotechnology 9: 79-80

Meulepas RJW, Jagersma CG, Khadem AF, Stams AJM, Lens PNL (2010) Effect of methanogenic substrates on anaerobic oxidation of methane and sulfate reduction by an anaerobic methanotrophic enrichment. Applied Microbiology and Biotechnology 87: 1499-1506

Meulepas RJW, Jagersma CG, Zhang Y, Petrillo M, Cai H, Buisman CJN, Stams AJM, Lens PNL (2010) Trace methane oxidation and the methane dependency of sulfate reduction in anaerobic granular sludge. FEMS Microbiology Ecology 72: 261-271

Meulepas RJW, Stams AJM, Lens PNL (2010) Biotechnological aspects of sulfate reduction with methane as electron donor. Reviews in Environmental Science and Biotechnology 9: 59-78

Mooij WM, Trolle D, Jeppesen E, Arhonditsis G, Belolipetsky PV, Chitamwebwa DBR, Degermendzhy AG, DeAngelis DL, De Senerpont Domis LN, Downing AS, Elliott JA, Fragoso Jr CR, Gaedke U, Genova SN, Gulati RD, Håkanson L, Hamilton DP, Hipsey MR, t Hoen J, Hülsmann S, Los FH, Makler-Pick V, Petzoldt T, Prokopkin IG, Rinke K, Schep

■ SA, Tominaga K, van Dam AA, van Nes EH, Wells SA, Janse JH (2010) Challenges and opportunities for integrating lake ecosystem modelling approaches. Aquatic Ecology 44: 633-667

■ Mul ML, Kemerink JS, Vyagusa NF, Mshana MG, van der Zaag P, Makurira H (2010) Water allocation practices among smallholder farmers in the South Pare Mountains, Tanzania: The issue of scale. Agricultural Water Management

■ Munyaneza O, Uhlenbrook S, Wenninger J, van den Berg H, Bolt R, Wali UG, Maskey S (2010) Setup of a Hydrological Instrumentation Network in a Meso-Scale Catchment- A case of the Migina Catchment, Southern Rwanda, Journal of Nile Water Science and Engineering, Vol.3, Issue 1, 2010, pp 61-70.

■ Mutikanga H, Sharma S, Vairavamoorthy K, Cabrera Jr E (2010) Using performance indicators as a water loss management tool in developing countries. Journal of Water Supply: Research and Technology - AQUA 59: 471-481

Mutikanga H, Sharma SK, Vairavamoorthy K (2010) Assessment of Apparent Losses in Urban Water Systems. Water & Environment Journal.

■ Nazer DW, Siebel MA, van der Zaag P, Mimi Z, Gijzen HJ (2010) A Financial, Environmental and Social Evaluation of Domestic Water Management Options in the West Bank, Palestine. Water Resources Management 24: 4445-4467

Nazer DW, Tilmant A, Mimi Z, Siebel MA, Van der Zaag P, Gijzen HJ (2010) Optimizing irrigation water use in the West Bank, Palestine. Agricultural Water Management 97: 339-345

■ Neal JC, Fewtrell TJ, Bates PD, Wright NG (2010) A comparison of three parallelisation methods for 2D flood inundation models. Environmental Modelling and Software 25: 398-411

■ Nevatalo LM, Bijmans MFM, Lens PNL, Kaksonen AH, Puhakka JA (2010) The effect of sub-optimal temperature on specific sulfidogenic activity of mesophilic SRB in an H2-fed membrane bioreactor. Process Biochemistry 45(3): 363-368

Nevatalo LM, Bijmans MFM, Lens PNL, Kaksonen AH, Puhakka JA (2010) Hydrogenotrophic sulfate reduction in a gas-lift bioreactor operated at 9oC. Journal of Microbiology and Biotechnology 20(3): 615-621

■ Nyenje PM, Foppen JW, Uhlenbrook S, Kulabako R, Muwanga A (2010) Eutrophication and nutrient release in urban areas of sub-Saharan Africa - A review. Science of the Total Environment 408: 447-455

Oehmen A, Carvalho G, Lopez-Vazquez CM, van Loosdrecht MCM, Reis MAM (2010) Incorporating microbial ecology into the metabolic modelling of polyphosphate accumulating organisms and glycogen accumulating organisms. Water Research 44: 4992-5004

Oehmen A, Lopez-Vazquez CM, Carvalho G, Reis MAM, van Loosdrecht MCM (2010) Modelling the population dynamics and metabolic diversity of organisms relevant in anaerobic/anoxic/aerobic enhanced biological phosphorus removal processes. Water Research 44: 4473-4486

Ofosu EA, van der Zaag P, van de Giesen NC, Odai SN (2010) Productivity of irrigation technologies in the White Volta basin. Physics and Chemistry of the Earth 35: 706-716

Ofosu EA, van der Zaag P, van de Giesen NC, Odai SN (2010) Productivity of irrigation technologies in the White Volta basin. Physics and Chemistry of the Earth

Penna D, Stenni B, Sanda M, Wrede S, Bogaard TA, Gobbi A, Borga M, Fischer BMC, Bonazza M (2010) On the reproducibility and repeatability of laser absorption spectroscopy measurements for 2H and 18O isotopic analysis: 10.5194/hess-14-1-2010. Hydrol. Earth Syst. Sci., 14, 1551–1566, 2010.

■ Phong LT, van Dam AA, Udo HMJ, van Mensvoort MEF, Tri LQ, Steenstra FA, van der Zijpp AJ (2010) An agro-ecological evaluation of aquaculture integration into farming systems of the Mekong Delta. Agriculture, Ecosystems and Environment 138: 232-241

Poff NL, Richter BD, Arthington AH, Bunn SE, Naiman RJ, Kendy E, Acreman M, Apse C, Bledsoe BP, Freeman MC, Henriksen J, Jacobson RB, Kennen JG, Merritt DM, O'Keeffe JH, Olden JD, Rogers K, Tharme RE, Warner A (2010) The ecological limits of hydrologic alteration (ELOHA): A new framework for developing regional environmental flow standards. Freshwater Biology 55: 147-170

■ Popescu I, Jonoski A, van Andel SJ, Onyari E, Quiroga VGM (2010) Integrated modelling for flood risk mitigation in Romania: case study of the Timis-Bega river basin, International Journal of River Basin Management: Vol. 8, Issue 3 and 4: 269-280

Prestininzi P, Di Baldassarre G, Schumann G, Bates PD (2010) Selecting the appropriate hydraulic model structure using low-resolution satellite imagery, Advances in Water Resources: 10.1016/j. advwatres.2010.09.016

Quinn P, Hewet C, Popescu I, Muste M (2010) Towards New Types of Water-centric Collaboration: Instigating the Upper Mississippi River Basin Observatory Process. Water Management: 163, 39–51

■ Ranasinghe R, Larson M, Savioli J (2010) Shoreline response to a single shore-parallel submerged breakwater. Coastal Engineering 57: 1006-1017

 Rickwood CJ, Hes EMA, Al-Zu'bi Y, Dubé MG (2010)
 Overview of limitations, and proposals for improvement, in education and capacity building of
 Ecohydrology. Ecohydrology and Hydrobiology 10: 45-59

Rode M, Arhonditsis G, Balin D, Kebede T, Krysanova V, Van Griensven A, Van Der Zee SEATM (2010) New challenges in integrated water quality modelling. Hydrological Processes 24: 3447-3461

■ Roest K, Brdjanovic D, Chen GH, van Loosdrecht MCM (2010) Zee- en brakwater voor gebruik als tweede kwaliteit water, H20 (11), 43-45.

Ronteltap M, Maurer M, Hausherr R, Gujer W (2010) Struvite precipitation from urine - Influencing factors on particle size. Water Research 44: 2038-2046

■ Sampaio RMM, Timmers RA, Kocks N, André V, Duarte MT, van Hullebusch ED, Farges F, Lens PNL (2010) Zn-Ni sulfide selective precipitation: the role of supersaturation. Separation and Purification Technology 74(1): 108-118.

Sánchez-Martín J, Ghebremichael K, Beltrán-Heredia J (2010) Comparison of single-step and two-step purified coagulants from Moringa oleifera seed for turbidity and DOC removal. Bioresource Technology 101: 6259-6261

Savenije HHG (2010) HESS Opinions "topography driven conceptual modelling (FLEX-Topo)". Hydrology and Earth System Sciences 14 (12), pp. 2681-2692.
 Schouten M, Buyi T (2010) 100-Days rapid change initiatives in African public water utilities. International Journal of Public Sector Management 23: 431-443

Schouten M, Halim RD (2010) Resolving strategy paradoxes of water loss reduction: A synthesis in Jakarta.
 Resources, Conservation and Recycling 54: 1322-1330
 Schouten M, van Dijk MP (2010) European water liberalization scenarios. In: Journal of Water Policy, 12,

pp. 248-259. ■ Schouten M, Van Dijk MP (2010) Regulation and comparative discretion of publicly and privately owned water companies in the Netherlands, England and Wales.

Water Policy 12: 248-259 Schouten MAC, Mathenge RW (2010) Communal sanitation alternatives for slums: A case study of Kibera, Kenya. Physics and Chemistry of the Earth 35: 815-822 Schumann G, Di Baldassarre G (2010) The direct use

of radar satellites for event-specific flood risk mapping, Remote Sensing Letters: 1(2), 75-84 Schumann G, Di Baldassarre G, Alsdorf D, Bates PD

(2010) Near real-time flood wave approximation on large rivers from space: application to the River Po, Northern Italy, Water Resources Research: 46, W05601
 Schumann G, Di Baldassarre G, Bates PD (2010)
 Fuzzy flood mapping, playing it safe? Sensed - Remote Sensing and Photogrammetry Society: 36, 10-11.
 Schwartz K, Sanga A (2010) Partnerships between

utilities and small-scale providers: Delegated management in Kisumu, Kenya. Physics and Chemistry of the Earth 35: 765-771

Sekomo CB, Nkuranga E, Rousseau DPL, Lens PNL (2010) Fate of Heavy Metals in an Urban Natural Wetland: The Nyabugogo Swamp (Rwanda). Water Air and Soil Pollution. 214 (1-4), pp. 321-333.

Shi W, Wang L, Rousseau DPL, Lens PNL (2010) Removal of estrone, 17-ethinylestradiol, and 17ß-estradiol in algae and duckweed-based wastewater treatment systems. Environmental Science and Pollution Research 17: 824-833

■ Shrestha RK, Ahlers R, Bakker M, Gupta J (2010). Institutional Dysfunction and Challenges in Flood Control: A Case Study of the Kosi Flood 2008, Economic and Political Weekly, 45(2): 45-53.

Siek M, Solomatine DP (2010) Nonlinear chaotic model for predicting storm surges. Nonlinear Processes in Geophysics 17: 405-420

■ Steele-Dunne SC, Rutten MM, Krzeminska DM, Hausner M, Tyler SW, Selker JS, Bogaard TA, van de Giesen NC (2010) Feasibility of Soil Moisture Estimation using Passive Distributed Temperature Sensing. Water Resour. Res., 46, W03534: 10.1029/2009WR008272, 2010.

Suprianto H, Ravaie E, Irianto SG, Susanto RH, Schultz B, Suryadi FX, van Den Eelaart A (2010) Land and water management of tidal lowlands: Experiences in Telang and Saleh, South Sumatra. Irrigation and Drainage 59: 317-335

■ Tabatabai SAA, Jin W, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Examining Coagulation and Precoating for Seawater UF/RO System Pretreatment. Desalination & Water Reuse, 2(4), 58-62.

■ Teferi E, Uhlenbrook S, Bewket W, Wenninger J, Simane B (2010) The use of remote sensing to quantify wetland loss in the Choke Mountain range, Upper Blue Nile basin, Ethiopia. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences 14: 2415-2428

■ Teferi E, Uhlenbrook S, Bewket W, Wenninger J, Simane B (2010) The use of remote sensing to quantify wetland loss in the Choke Mountain range, Upper Blue Nile basin, Ethiopia. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences Discussions 7: 6243-6284

■ Tekleab S, Uhlenbrook S, Mohamed Y, Savenije HHG, Ayalew S, Temesgen M, Wenninger J (2010) Water balance modeling of Upper Blue Nile catchments using a top-down approach. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences Discussions 7: 6851-6886

Tesemma ZK, Mohamed YA, Steenhuis TS (2010) Trends in rainfall and runoff in the Blue Nile Basin: 1964-2003. Hydrological Processes 24: 3747-3758

■ Tilmant A, Beevers L, Muyunda B (2010) Restoring a flow regime through the coordinated operation of a multireservoir system: The case of the Zambezi River basin. Water Resources Research 46

■ Tyroller L, Rousseau DPL, Santa S, García J (2010) Application of the gas tracer method for measuring oxygen transfer rates in subsurface flow constructed wetlands. Water Research 44: 4217-4225

Uhlenbrook S, Mohamed Y, Gragne AS (2010) Analyzing catchment behavior through catchment modeling in the Gilgel Abay, Upper Blue Nile River Basin, Ethiopia. Hydrology and Earth System Sciences 14: 2153-2165

van Andel SJ, Price R, Lobbrecht A, van Kruiningen F
 (2010) Modeling controlled water systems. Journal of
 Irrigation and Drainage Engineering 136: 392-404
 van der Ent RJ, Savenije HHG, Schaefli B, Steele Dunne SC, 2010. Origin and fate of atmospheric
 moisture over continents. Water Resources Research 46
 (9): W09525.

van der Wegen M, Dastgheib A, Jaffe BE, Roelvink D
 (2010) Bed composition generation for morphodynamic

modeling: case study of San Pablo Bay in California, USA. Ocean Dynamics: 1-14

■ van der Zaag P (2010) Viewpoint - water variability, soil nutrient heterogeneity and market volatility - why sub-saharan africa's green revolution will be locationspecific and knowledge-intensive. Water Alternatives 3: 154-160

■ van der Zaag P, Juizo D, Vilanculos A, Bolding A, Uiterweer NP (2010) Does the Limpopo River Basin have sufficient water for massive irrigation development in the plains of Mozambique? Physics and Chemistry of the Earth 35: 832-837

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Eco cities, Better cities, Better life? Experiences of European and Asian cities, in particular Beijing and Rotterdam. In: Shelter, HSMI HUDCO New Delhi, Vol. 12, No. 2, October 2010, pp. 122-134.

 van Dijk MP (2010) International trends in city management. In: Journal of Town & City management, Vol. 1, Number 1, June-August 2010, pp. 17-18.
 van Halem D, Olivero S, de Vet WWJM, Verberk JQJC, Amy GL, van Dijk JC (2010) Subsurface iron and arsenic

removal for shallow tube well drinking water supply in rural Bangladesh. Water Research 44: 5761-5769 ■ van Halem D, Vet Wd, Verberk J, Amy G, van Dijk H

(2010) Characterization of accumulated precipitates during subsurface iron removal. Applied Geochemistry

■ van Lier JB, Huibers FP (2010) From unplanned to planned agricultural use: Making an asset out of wastewater. Irrigation and Drainage Systems 24: 143-152

■ Vila-Concejo A, Hughes MG, Short AD, Ranasinghe R (2010) Estuarine shoreline processes in a dynamic lowenergy system. Ocean Dynamics 60: 285-298

■ Villacorte LO, Schurer R, Kennedy MD, Amy GL, Schippers JC (2010) Removal and deposition of Transparent Exopolymer Particles (TEP) in seawater UF-RO system. Desalination & Water Reuse, 2(1), 45-55.

■ Villacorte LO, Schurer R, Kennedy MD, Amy GL, Schippers JC (2010) The fate of transparent exopolymer particles (TEP) in seawater UF-RO system: A pilot plant study in Zeeland, The Netherlands. Desalination and water treatment 13: 109-119

Villacorte LO, Schurer R, Kennedy MD, Amy GL, Schippers JC (2010)Transparent Exopolymer Particles (TEP): A Major Cause of Fouling in Membrane Systems? AMTA Solutions Newsletter, 4th quarter issue. American Membrane Technology Association (AMTA).

■ Virkutyte J, Rokhina E, Lens P, Jegatheesan V (2010) The effect of electrodialytic treatment and Na2H2EDTA addition on methanogenic activity of copper-amended anaerobic granular sludge: Treatment costs and energy consumption. Bioresource Technology

■ Waly T, Munoz R, Kennedy MD, Witkamp GJ, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Effect of particles on the induction time of calcium carbonate in synthetic SWRO concentrate. Desalination and water treatment 18: 103-111

■ Wang L, Liu J, Zhou T, Ye C, Li W, Zhou Y (2010) Analysis of sustainable groundwater resources development scenarios in Beijing Plain, Journal of Hydrogeology and Engineering Geology, Vol. 37, No. 1, pp 9-16.

Wang Q, Duan X, Zhou Y, Li W, (2010) Analysis of sustainable groundwater development scenarios in Jinan karstic spring basin, Journal of Hydrogeology and Engineering Geology, Vol. 37, No. 3, pp 1-5.
 Wenninger J, Beza DT, Uhlenbrook S (2010)

Experimental investigations of water fluxes within the soil-vegetation-atmosphere system: Stable isotope massbalance approach to partition evaporation and transpiration. Physics and Chemistry of the Earth 35: 565-570

■ Westhoff MC, Bogaard TA, Savenije HHG (2010) Quantifying the effect of in-stream rock clasts on the retardation of heat along a stream: 10.1016/j. advwatres.2010.02.006.

Wong CL, Venneker R, Jamil ABM, Uhlenbrook S (2010) Development of a gridded daily hydrometeorological data set for Peninsular Malaysia.

Hydrological Processes: 10.1002/hyp.7654.

■ Yangali-Quintanilla V, Maeng SK, Fujioka T, Kennedy M, Amy G (2010) Proposing nanofiltration as acceptable barrier for organic contaminants in water reuse. Journal of Membrane Science 362: 334-345

■ Yangali-Quintanilla V, Sadmani A, Kennedy M, Amy G (2010) A QSAR (quantitative structure-activity relationship) approach for modelling and prediction of rejection of emerging contaminants by NF membranes. Desalination and water treatment 13: 149-155

■ Yangali-Quintanilla V, Sadmani A, McConville M, Kennedy M, Amy G (2010) A QSAR model for predicting rejection of emerging contaminants (pharmaceuticals, endocrine disruptors) by nanofiltration membranes. Water Research 44: 373-384

■ Zhou Y (2010) A review of research methodologies on groundwater dependent terrestrial vegetations, Earth Science Frontiers, Vol.17, No.6, pp21-30.

■ Zhou Y, Li W (2010) Groundwater sustainability: concepts and approaches, Journal of Hydrogeology and Engineering Geology, Vol. 37, No. 1, pp 1-8.

# 119

### PAPER IN PROCEEDINGS

Abu Ghunmi L, Zeeman G, Fayyad M, van Lier JB (2010) Role of anaerobic digestion in DeSaR applications in rural areas of Jordan with cesspol sanitations. In: Proc. Of 12th IWA World conference on Anaerobic Digestion, November 1-5, 2010, Guadelajara, Mexico.

 Ahmad A, van Bruggen JJA (2010) Purification efficiency and economics of hybrid constructed wetlands, floating wetlands and stabilization pond systems in a parallel treatment of domestic wastewater in Spain. 12th International Conference on Wetland Systems for Water Pollution Control, Venice (Italy), 4-9 October 2010.
 Alfonso L, Lobbrecht A, Price R (2010) Value of Information for locating water level and flow monitors,

9th International Conference in Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China. ■ Alfonso L, Lobbrecht A, Price R (2010e) Mobile

phones for extreme events modelling validation, 9th International Conference in Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China.

 Almoradie A, Jonoski A, Xuan Y, Gichamo T, Solomatine DP, de Ruiter J (2010) Web-Based Solutions for Flood Risk Analysis, Modelling And Management, 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics 2010 Tianjin, Chemistry Industry Press, Beijing, 2491-2498.
 Arias-Hidalgo M, Villa-Cox G, van Griensven A, Mynett A, (2010) Comprehending the wetland-river catchment integrated system: water allocation model. 8th International Symposium on Ecohydraulics 2010. IAHR.

### Seoul, South Korea, IWA. 1:8.

 Ashley RM, Faram MG, Chatfield PR, Gersonius B, Andoh RYG (2010) Appropriate drainage systems for a changing climate in the water sensitive city, pp. 864-877.
 Attari J, Keuls CWH (2010) Knowledge management scan for water and wastewater companies in Iran: experiences from two training courses. In: Memon FA, Ansari AK (Eds) Sustainable Water management in Developing Countries - Challenges and Opportunities, The Print Masters, Karachi Sindh, Pakistan.

Avellan CT, Rousseay DPL, Lens PNL (2010) Adapting to socioeconomic, operational and environmental challenges of dairy farm effluent purification in Uruguay through the use of surface flow constructed wetlands. 12th International Conference on Wetland Systems for Water Pollution Control, Venice (Italy), 4-9 October 2010.

Azab A, Popescu I, Price R, Vekerdy Z (2010) Calibration of 2D water quality models of shalow coastal lakes using remote sensing data (Case study: Edko lake, Western Delta, EGYPT), 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics 2010 Tianjin, Chemistry Industry Press, Beijing, 1539 - 1546.

■ Bartacek J, Fermoso FG, Vergeldt FJ, Gerkema E, Maca J, Van As H, Lens PNL (2010) The impact of metal transport processes on metal bioavailability in methanogenic granular sludge. 12th World Congress on Anaerobic Digestion, 31 October – 4 November, Guadalajara, Mexico.

 Bhattacharya B, Solomatine DP, van Kessel T (2010)
 Surrogate modelling of suspended sediment concentration. 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China, September 2010.
 Bhattacharya B, Van Kessel T, Solomatine DP (2010)
 Surrogate modelling of suspended sediment concentration. 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China. Chifflard P, Kirnbauer R, Zepp H, Tilch N, Didszun J, Zillgens B, Schumann A, Uhlenbrook S (2010) Tracing runoff generation processes through different spatial scales in low and high mountain ranges. In: Status and Perspectives of Hydrology in Small Basins (Proceedings of the Workshop held at Goslar-Hahnenklee, Germany, 30 March–2 April 2009). IAHS Publ. 336, 90-95.

■ Brdjanovic D (2010) Modeling activated sludge wastewater treatment plants: Part 2 - Applications. IWA CIS YWP Conference on Modernization of Wastewater Treatment Plants. Moscow, Russia, June 2010.

Cikurel H, Sharma SK, Jekel M, Kazner C, Wintgens T, Amy G, Ernst M, Guttman Y, Tal N, Kreitzer T, Putschew A, Vairavamoorthy K, Aharoni A (2010) Alternative Hybrid SAT-Membrane Treatments: Short SAT-NF Treatment to Upgrade Effluent Quality. IWA Regional Conference and Exhibition on Membrane Technology and Water Reuse (18-22 Oct), Istanbul, Turkey, 193-205.

■ Corzo GA, Barreto W, Love D, Uhlenbrook S (2010) HBVx: A semi-distributed hydrological modelling tool with multi-criteria calibration. In Liong, Shei-Yui (Ed.): 9th International Conference in Hydroinformatics, HIC 2010, Tianjin, CHINA, World Scientific Publishing Company, 8 pages.

Di Baldassarre G., et al. (2010). Floodplain modelling using uncertain satellite observations of inundation extent, EGU leonardo Conference on Looking at Catchments in Colors. Luxemburg, November 2010.
 Di Baldassarre G, Schumann G, Bates P (2010) Coarse Resolution Satellite Images to Support Hydraulic Modelling: Potentialities and Uncertainties, 9th

International Conference on Hydroinformatics, China, September 2010.

Fernandes TV, Zeeman G, van Lier JB (2010) Inhibition of hydrolysis of lignocellulosic waste; the role of ammonia, humic acids and fulvic acids. In: Proc. Of 12th IWA World conference on Anaerobic Digestion, November 1-5, 2010, Guadelajara, Mexico.

Ghebremichael KA, Gelagay T, Amy G (2010) Enhancing the Ripening and Hydraulic Performance of Slow Sand Filters. Proceedings of IWA World Water Congress 2010 (19-24 Sep), Montreal, Canada.

■ Guglielmi G, Saroj DP (2010) Calibration and validation of an extended ASM3 for long-term modelling in a submerged membrane bioreactor for municipal wastewater treatment. MDIW 2010 - Membranes in drinking and Industrial water treatment, Trondheim, Norway, 27-30 June, 2010.

■ Ha C, Kennedy MD, Amy G (2010) Enhanced Performance of Ceramic Low Pressure Membrane Filtration with Ozonation and/or Coagulation as Pretreatment. 3rd International Desalination Workshop 2010 (3-6 Nov), Jeju, Korea.

Heffernan B, van der Lubbe J, van Lier JB (2010) Performance Review of Large Scale Up-flow Anaerobic Sludge Blanket Sewage Treatment Plants. In: Proc. Of the IWA World Conference, September 19-24, 2010, Montreal, Canada.

Heijman SGJ, Hofs B, Hamad JZ, Kennedy MD, Amy G (2010) Ceramic Microfiltration with a Sub-micron Powdered Activated Carbon Pre-coat for Water Treatment. IWA Regional Conference and Exhibition on Membrane Technology & Water Reuse (18-22 Oct), Istanbul, Turkey.

Hoang L, van Griensven A, van der Keur P, Troldborg L, Nilsson B, Mynett A (2010) Comparison of the SWAT model versus the DAISY-MIKE SHE model for simulating the flow and nitrogen processes, 2010 International SWAT conference, Seoul, Korea.

■ Inchauste-Daza A, Saroj DP, Lopez-Vazquez CM, Brdjanovic D (2010) Ozonation for sludge reduction and improved biological nutrient removal. ECSM 2010 – 2nd European Conference on Sludge Management, Budapest, Hungary, September 2010.

■ Ismail SB, Temmink H, Plugge CM, van Lier JB (2010) Attachment and granulation of anaerobic consortia under high salinity conditions. In: Proc. Of 12th IWA World conference on Anaerobic Digestion, November 1-5, 2010, Guadelajara, Mexico.

■ Jonoski A, Almoradie A (2010) Google Android Mobile Phone Demonstration Applications for Water Quality Information Dissemination, 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics 2010 Tianjin, Chemistry Industry Press, Beijing, pp. 2463-2470.

 Jonoski A, Popescu I, Keuls C (2010) Pilot
 Implementation of On-Line Courses For Competence-Based Learning In Hydroinformatics, 9th International
 Conference on Hydroinformatics 2010 Tianjin,
 Chemistry Industry Press, Beijing, pp. 2483-2490.
 Jonoski A, van Andel SJ, Popescu I, Almoradie A
 (2010) Distributed Information Systems Providing
 Localised Environmental Services for All: Case Study on
 Bathing Water Quality in The Netherlands, BALWOIS
 2010 Conference on Water Observation and Information
 System for Decision Support, Ohrid, Macedonia

■ Kayastha N, Shrestha DL, Solomatine DP (2010) Experiments with several methods of parameter uncertainty estimation in hydrological modeling. 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China, September 2010. ■ Kigobe M, van Griensven A, Shrestha DL, Solomatine D, Di Baldassarre G (2010) Assessing the suitability of two model structures for basin resources estimation in the Mpologoma basin, within the Upper Nile, International Congress on Environmental Modelling and Software, Ottawa, Ontario, Canada, July 2010.

Kigobe M, van Griensven A, Xuan Y, Di Baldassarre G (2010) Assessing hydrological response to change in climate – statically downscaling and hydrological modelling within the Upper Nile, proceedings of the International Environmental Modelling and Software Society (iEMSs), 2010 International Congress on Environmental Modelling and Software Modelling for Environment's Sake, Fifth Biennial Meeting, Ottawa, Canada, David A. Swayne, Wanhong Yang, A. A. Voinov, A. Rizzoli, T. Filatova (Eds.)

Kreminska DM, Bogaard TA, Steele-Dunne SC (2010). On the potential of high temporal and spatial resolution soil temperature monitoring for hazard analysis of rainfall-induced landslide. Proceeding conference on Mountain Risks: bringing science to society (Ed. JP Malet, T. Glade, N. Casagli). Florence 2010. 321-326. ISBN 2-9518317-1-5

 Kuntiyawichai K, Schultz B, Uhlenbrook S, Suryadi FX, Corzo GA (2010) Comprehensive flood mitigation and management in the Chi River Basin, Thailand. 7th International Symposium on Lowland Technology, September 16 - 18, Saga, Japan, 314 - 322.
 Kuntiyawichai K, Schultz B, Uhlenbrook S, Suryadi FX, Werner M (2010) Appropriate flood mitigation framework through structural and non-structural measures for the Chi River Basin, Thailand. Proc. 8th Annual Mekong Flood Forum, May 26 - 27, Vientiane, Lao PDR: paper 3-3-2, 1 - 12 pages.

■ Lindeboom REF, Fermoso FG, Weijma J, Zagt K, van Lier JB (2010) Autogenerative High Pressure Digestion: anaerobic digestion and biogas upgrading in a single step reactor system. In: Proc. Of IWA Int. Water and Energy Conference, November 10-12, 2010, Amsterdam, The Netherlands.

■ Lindeboom REF, Fermoso FG, Weijma J, Zagt K, van Lier JB (2010) Autogenerative High Pressure Digestion: a new concept for biogas upgrading. In: Proc. Of 12th IWA World conference on Anaerobic Digestion, November 1-5, 2010, Guadelajara, Mexico.

■ Li Z, Van Halem D, Verberk JQJC (2010) Review of high arsenic groundwater in China.

■ Lopez-Vazquez CM, Brdjanovic D (2010) Modeling activated sludge wastewater treatment plants: Part 1 -Developments. IWA CIS YWP Conference on Modernization of Wastewater Treatment Plants. Moscow, Russia, June 2010.

■ Maeng SK, Sharma SK, Amy G (2010) Modelling of Removal of Wastewater-derived Organic Micropollutants during Managed Aquifer Recharge. IWA World Water Congress 2010 (19-25 Sep), Montreal, Canada.

Mahmoud N, van Lier JB (2010) Enhancement of a UASB-septic tank performance for decentralised treatment of strong domestic sewage. In: Proc. Of 12th IWA World conference on Anaerobic Digestion, November 1-5, 2010, Guadelajara, Mexico.

 Makurira H, Savenije HHG, Uhlenbrook S, Senzanje A, Rockström J (2010) Application of multiple methods to link field scale moisture dynamics to crop productivity in rainfed systems. 11th International WATERNET/ WARFSA/GWP-SA Symposium, Victory Falls, Zimbabwe, 27-29 October 2010; CD-Rom; 19 pages.
 Mburu N, Rousseau DPL, van Bruggen H, Thumbi G, Llorens E, Lens PNL, Garcia J (2010) Performance evaluation and 2-D mechanistic simulation of a tropical HSSF-CW treating domestic wastewater in Kenya. Proceedings 12th International Conference on Wetland Systems for Water Pollution Control, Venice (Italy), 4-9 October 2010.

Meijer SCF, Brdjanovic D (2010) Upgrading Large Wastewater Treatment Plants: Use of Modeling as a Decisionmaking Tool. IWA Specialist Conference on Water and Wastewater Treatment Plants in Towns and Communities of the XXI Century: Technologies, Design and Operation, Moscow, Russia, June 2010.

■ Metzger LA, Xuan Y (2010) Near Real-time Flood Forecasting System for the Tumbes River in Peru Using Remote Sensing, 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China, September 2010.

Meulepas RJW, Witharanage AUW, Lens PNL (2010) Anaerobic bioleaching of metals from sewage sludge. In: Proceedings 12th World Congress on Anaerobic digestion, 31 Oct - 4 Nov, Guadalajara, Mexico.

Moya V, Popescu I, Solomatine D (2010) Monte Carlo uncertainty analysis of hydraulic models using cloud computing, 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics 2010 Tianjin, Chemistry Industry Press, Beijing, 913 - 921.

Munyaneza O, Uhlenbrook S, Wenninger J (2010) Identification of runoff generation processes during floods and low flows using hydrometric data and tracer methods in the Migina catchment in Rwanda. EGU Leonardo Topical Conference: Looking at catchments in colors, 10-12 November 2010, Luxembourg City, Luxembourg

Muste M, Quinn PF, Hewett CJM, Popescu I, Basu NB, Kumar P, Franz K, Merwade V, Arnold W, Potter K (2010) Initiation of the Upper Mississippi River Basin Observatory, pp. 1270-1281.

Mutikanga HE, Akita CS, Sharma SK, Vairavamoorthy K (2010) Pressure Management as a Tool for Water Leakage Reduction. EWRI-ASCE Conference (5-7 Jan), Chennai, India.

 Mutikanga HE, Akita CS, Sharma SK, Vairavamoorthy K (2010) A Comprehensive Approach for Estimating Non-revenue Water in Urban Water Supply Systems.
 IWA World Water Congress 2010 (19-24 Sep), Montreal, Canada.

Mutikanga HE, Sharma SK, Vairavamoorthy K (2010) Water Demand Profiling as a Tool for Apparent Loss Reduction. IWA Water Loss 2010 conference (6-9 Jun), Sao Paulo, Brazil.

■ Nyenje PM, Foppen JW, Uhlenbrook S, Kulabako R, Muwanga A (2010) Hydrochemical characterisation of contaminated catchments and aquifers in slums sub-Saharan Africa. 11th International WATERNET/ WARFSA/GWP-SA Symposium, Victory Falls, Zimbabwe, 27-29 October 2010; CD-Rom.

■ Oehmen A, Lopez-Vazquez CM, Carvalho G, Reis MAM, van Loosdrecht MCM (2010) Incorporating Microbial Ecology into the Metabolic Modelling of Polyphosphate Accumulating Organisms and Glycogen Accumulating Organisms. Water Research Conference. April 10th-14th, 2010. Lisbon, Portugal.

■ Oehmen A, Lopez-Vazquez CM, Carvalho G, Reis MAM, van Loosdrecht MCM (2010) Modelling PAO & GAO Metabolisms and Microbial Community Dynamics. Workshop on theoretical modelling concepts. 2nd IWA/ WEF Wastewater treatment modelling seminar. March 27th-30th, 2010. Quebec, Canada.

■ Pathirana PDA (2010), Epanet2 Desktop Application for pressure driven demand modeling, Water Distribution Systems Analysis Conference 2010, AZ, USA.  Pathirana PDA, Gersonius B (2010) A Multi-Objective Optimization Approach in Urban Flood Management, Applied to West Garforth, UK, S.W.Delelegn, In proceedings, Urban Flood Conference, Paris, Nov. 2009.
 Peters ET, Malet JP, Bogaard TA (2010) Multi-sensor monitoring network for real-time landslide forecasts in early warning systems. Pp. 335-340. Proceeding conference on Mountain Risks: bringing science to society (Ed. JP Malet, T. Glade, N. Casagli). Florence 2010. ISBN 2-9518317-1-5

■ Petruševski B, Slokar YM, van der Meer W, Schippers JC (2010) Characterization of Different IOCS Media for Adsorptive Arsenic Removal. As 2010 - 3rd International Congress on Arsenic in the Environment (17-21 May), Tainan, Taiwan.

Pfister L, Fenicia F, Uhlenbrook S (2010) How can we create generalizable hypotheses from small basin studies? In: Status and Perspectives of Hydrology in Small Basins (Proceedings of the Workshop held at Goslar-Hahnenklee, Germany, 30 March–2 April 2009). IAHS Publ. 336, 201-208.

Pianosi F, Shrestha DL, Solomatine DP (2010) ANNbased Representation of Parametric and Residual Uncertainty of Models. International Joint Conference on Neural Networks, Barcelona, Spain, July 2010.

■ Rietveld LC, Brandão D, Shang R, van Agtmaal J, van Lier JB (2010) Possibilities for reuse of treated domestic waste water in the Netherlands. In: Proc. Of the IWA World Conference, September 19-24, 2010, Montreal, Canada.

Ronteltap M, Sirait N (2010) Urine separation opportunities for developing countries, Decentralized Waste Water Treatment Solutions in Developing Countries Congress - Surabaya, Indonesia, March 2010.

■ Salinas Rodríguez SG, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Flux Dependency of Particulate Fouling in Seawater Reverse Osmosis Systems. Membranes in Drinking Water Production and Waste Water Treatment (27-30 Jun), Trondheim, Norway.

■ Salinas Rodríguez SG, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Flux Dependency of Particulate Fouling by MFI-UF Measurements in Seawater Reverse Osmosis Systems. EuroMed 2010: Desalination for Clean Water and Energy (3-7 Oct), Tel-Aviv, Israel.

■ Santos Almoradie AD, Jonoski A, Xuan Y, Gichamo T, Solomatine DP, de Ruiter J. Web-based solutions for flood risk analysis, modelling and management. 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China, September 2010.

 Saraiva AML, Tilmant A, Uhlenbrook S, van der Zaag P (2010) Risk-based operational water management for the Incomati River Basin. 11th International WATERNET/WARFSA/GWP-SA Symposium, Victory Falls, Zimbabwe, 27-29 October 2010; CD-Rom; 11 pages.

■ Saraiva ML, Wenninger J, Uhlenbrook S, Ndlovu L (2010) Experimental investigation of water fluxes in irrigated sugarcane in Swaziland using environmental isotopes. 11th International WATERNET/WARFSA/ GWP-SA Symposium, Victory Falls, Zimbabwe, 27-29 October 2010; CD-Rom; 18 pages.

Schurer R, Janssen A, Villacorte LO, Kennedy MD (2010) Evides Pilot Seawater Desalination: Efficacy of Coagulant in Ultrafiltration Pre-treatment in Integral UF-RO Membrane Desalination. IWA-EDS Conference on Membranes for Drinking and Industrial Water (27-30 Jun), Trondheim, Norway.

■ Sharma SK, Chinokoro H (2010) Estimation of ELL

and ELWL for Lusaka Water Distribution System. IWA Water Loss 2010 conference (6-9 Jun), Sao Paulo, Brazil. Sharma SK, Chaweza D, Bosuben N, Amy G (2010) Framework for Feasibility Assessment and Performance Analysis of Riverbank Filtration Systems for Water Treatment. ISMAR 7 Conference (9-13 Oct), Abu Dhabi, UAE.

Sharma SK, Hirpa HI, Kahawita, KI, Amy G (2010) Removal of bulk organic matter from different wastewater effluents during soil aquifer treatment. IWA World Water Congress 2010 (19-24 Sep), Montreal, Canada.

Sharma SK, Sheriff SH, Amy G (2010) Soil Aquifer Treatment Using Primary and Advanced Primary Effluents. ISMAR 7 Conference (9-13 Oct), Abu Dhabi, UAF

■ Siek MBA , Solomatine DP (2010) A mixture of multimodels in phase space reconstruction. Proc. 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China, September 2010.

■ Siek MBA, Solomatine DP (2010) Multi-model Ensemble Forecasting in High Dimensional Chaotic System. International Joint Conference on Neural Networks, Barcelona, Spain, July 2010.

Siek MBA , Solomatine DP (2010) Phase error correction for chaotic storm surge model. 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China, September 2010.

Shrestha DL, Solomatine DP (2010) Ranking of pareto solutions in multi-objective model calibration and uncertainty analysis. 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China, September 2010. Tabatabai SAA, Jin W, Kennedy MD, Amy G,

Schippers JC (2010) Pretreatment Options to Reduce Biofouling Potential in Seawater Reverse Osmosis Systems. EDS EuroMed 2010: Desalination for Clean Water and Energy (3-7 Oct), Tel-Aviv, Israel.

Tabatabai SAA, Jin W, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Role of Coagulants in Seawater Reverse Osmosis Pretreatment. 3rd Oxford Water and Membranes Research Event (12-15 Sep), Oxford, England.

Tabatabai SAA, Jin W, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Coagulation or Precoating for Seawater Reverse Osmosis Systems? IWA-EDS Conference on Membranes for Drinking and Industrial Water (27-30 Jun), Trondheim, Norway. Tabatabai SAA, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) (Inline) Coagulation or Precoating for Seawater

UF/RO Systems? AMTA Annual Conference & Exposition (12-15 Jul), San Diego, USA. Trifunovi N, Odai SN (2010) Capacity Building

Experiences from Collaboration between KNUST and UNESCO-IHE. Regional Workshop on Integrated Water Resources Management (2-3 Feb 2009), Accra, Ghana. ■ Tseganeh GZ, Jonoski A, Popescu I, (2010) Web

based demonstrator for the HR breach model, 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics 2010 Tianjin, Chemistry Industry Press, Beijing, 679-686.

■ Tyroller L, Garcia J, Santa, Rousseau D (2010) Application of a Tracer gas Method for the Measurement of Oxygen Transfer in a Subsurface Flow Constructed Wetland. Proceedings 6th International Symposium on Gas Transfer at Water Surfaces (GTWS-6), Kyoto, Japan, 17-21 May, 2010.

■ Tyroller L, Garcia J, Santa, Rousseau D (2010) Application of a Tracer gas Method for the Measurement of Oxygen Transfer in a Subsurface Flow Constructed Wetland. Proceedings Spain National Young Water

Professionals Conference, 16-18 June 2010, Barcelona, Spain.

■ Tyroller L, Garcia J, Santa, Rousseau D (2010) Application of a Tracer gas Method for the Measurement of Oxygen Transfer in a Subsurface Flow Constructed Wetland. Proceedings 5th IWA International Young Water Professionals Conference, 5-7 July 2010, Sydney, Australia.

Uhlenbrook S, Douwen W, Bresser T, Ranasinghe R (2010) PRoACC - An integrated Post-doctoral Research Programme on Adaptation to Climate Change in the Mekong River Basin. Meeting Climate Change Challenges in Transboundary Basins: Role of Sciences, UNU-ISP, CECAR series 4, Pg. 155-162

Uhlenbrook S, Venneker R, Wong CL, Jamil ABM (2010) Current and future challenges for hydrology in the humid tropic, In: Postgraduate Seminar on Water Sustainability, Yusop Z, Ali MMY, Azman S (eds), Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 20 January 2010. Water Research Alliance, UTM, page 69-75.

■ van Andel SJ (2010) How to Make Optimal Use of Ensemble Hydrological Predictions, 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, Tianjin, China.

van Andel SJ, Assefa KA, Jonoski A, Popescu I (2010) Decision Making for Operational Management of Water Related Risks, BALWOIS 2010 Conference on Water Observation and Information System for Decision Support, Ohrid, Republic of Macedonia.

van den Brand TPH, Roest K, Hofman JAMH, Chen G-H, Brdjanovic D, van Loosdrecht MCM (2010) Sulphate reduction in an innovative concept for saline wastewater treatment with seawater as alternative for toilet flush water. IWA Water and Energy. Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

■ van der Lubbe J, Heffernan B, van Lier JB (2010) Engineering and operational flaws in UASB reactors treating municipal sewage. In: Proc. Of 12th IWA World conference on Anaerobic Digestion, November 1-5, 2010, Guadelajara, Mexico.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) The contribution of Chinese cities to economic development: Are enterprises going west  ${\mathcal S}$ possible effects on migration flows, IHS conference on urban patterns, Rotterdam, 14 pages.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Decentralization in Tanzania, ECSC Conference, Addis Ababa, 2-7-2010.

van Dijk MP, Laryea G (2010) Changing water governance in Ghana through decentralization. ECSC Conference, Addis Ababa, 2-7-2010.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Are bio-fuels from Tanzania and Zambia competitive without subsidy? WICaNem Conference, Wageningen, 28-5-2010, 13 pages.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) China using companies to increase its presence in Africa, some evidence on win-win partnerships. Conference Anthropology & Business, Hong Kong, August 13, 20 pages.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Sacred places in Europe: A second life for churches? Anthropologists and business, Osaka, July, 12 pages.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Urban management to deal with environmental and climate changes in Chinese and European cities, Panel on Urban management for an urban future, Ljubljana, Slovenia, October, 15 pages.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Criteria for a classification of ecological cities, A contribution to a conference in Shenzhen November 2010, 15 pages.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Beijing and Rotterdam eco cities? Using 100 criteria for a classification of ecological cities, ERSCP-EMSU conference, Delft, October, 23 pages.

■ van Lier JB, Raap J (2010) Druk op afvalwater. In: van

Dijk JC, Verliefde ARD, van der Laan H (Eds) 62e vakantiecursus, sectie Gezondheidstechniek TU Delft, Energie uit water: hype of kans pp. 57-68, Enschede: Gildeprint.

■ van Lier JB, Jeison D (2010) Low permeate flux: intrinsic constraint of anaerobic membrane bioreactors for wastewater treatment? In: Proc. of the IWA regional conference and exhibition on membrane technology and water reuse (IWA-MTWR 2010), 18-22 october 2010, Istanbul – Turkey.

Venneker R, Wong CL, Jamil ABM, Uhlenbrook S (2010) Water resources assessment in Peninsular Malaysia using a hydrological land surface model, In: Postgraduate Seminar on Water Sustainability, Yusop Z, Ali MMY, Azman S (eds), Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 20 January 2010. Water Research Alliance, UTM, page 13-27.

■ Villacorte LO, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Filtration Resistance of Foulant Layers Containing transparent Exopolymer Particles (TEP) during Membrane Filtration. EDS EuroMed 2010: Desalination for Clean Water and Energy (3-7 Oct), Tel-Aviv, Israel.

■ Villacorte LO, Duraisamy R, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Transparent Exopolymer Particles: A Promising Tool for Organic/Biological Fouling Studies in Membrane Systems? IWA-EDS Conference on Membranes for Drinking and Industrial Water (27-30 Jun), Trondheim, Norway.

■ Villacorte LO, Schurer R, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Organic Fouling of Ultrafiltration  $Membranes \ by \ Transparent \ Exopolymer \ Particles \ (TEP)$ in Seawater. IWA World Water Congress and Exhibition (19-24 Sep), Montreal, Canada.

■ Villacorte LO, Schurer R, Kennedy MD, Amy G, Schippers JC (2010) Fouling of Ultrafiltration Membranes by Transparent Exopolymer Particles (TEP) in Seawater. AMTA Annual Conference & Exposition (12-15 Jul), San Diego, USA.

■ Villa-Gomez DK, Papirio S, van Hullebusch ED, Farges F, Nikitenko S, Lens PNL (2010) A study of the metal removal mechanisms in sulfate reducing bioreactors: kinetics, speciation and solid phase characterization. In Proceedings of the 12th World Congress on Anaerobic Digestion, October 31 - November 4, Guadalajara, Mexico

Werner, MGF, HC Minsemius, YA Iglesias, Y Morales, S Maskey & D Love (2010). DEWFORA: Drought forecasting and Early Warning in Africa. Procs. 11th WaterNet/WARFSA/GWP-SA symposium, 27-29 Oct, Victoria Falls, Zimbabwe.

■ Wong CL, Venneker R, Jamil ABM, Uhlenbrook S (2010) A daily high-resolution gridded hydrometeorological data set in Peninsular Malaysia, In: Postgraduate Seminar on Water Sustainability, Yusop, Z., Ali, M.M.Y. and Azman, S. (eds), Universiti Teknologi Malaysia, 20 January 2010. Water Research Alliance, UTM, page 28-46.

Wong CL, Venneker R, Jamil ABM, Uhlenbrook S (2010) Hydrological modelling of the Pahang and Kelantan River Basins, Malaysia, The 1st IWA Malaysia Young Water Professional Conference, Kuala Lumpur, 2-4 March 2010. Water Research Alliance, UTM, Paper No.247.

■ Wong CL, Venneker R, Uhlenbrook S (2010) Analysis and modelling of runoff from two distinct river basins in Peninsular Malaysia. Conference Proceedings of the HydroPredict Conference, 20-24 September 2010, Praque, Czech Republic; 11 pages.

■ Yalew SG, van Griensven A, Kokoszkiewicz L (2010) Parallel computing of a large scale spatially distributed

model using the Soil and Water Assessment Tool (SWAT), International Environmental Modelling and Software Society (iEMSs), 2010 International Congress on Environmental Modelling and Software, Modelling for Environment's Sake, Fifth Biennial Meeting, Ottawa, Canada, July 2010.

■ Yang J, Spanjers H, van Lier JB (2010) Pulse shear for anaerobic membrane bioreactor fouling control. In: Proc. Of 12th IWA World conference on Anaerobic Digestion, November 1-5, 2010, Guadelajara, Mexico.

■ Yaya Beas RE, Zeeman G, Dengremont M, van Lier JB (2010) Pathogen removal in Upflow Anaerobic Sludge Blanket Reactors. In: Proc. Of 12th IWA World conference on Anaerobic Digestion, November 1-5, 2010, Guadelajara, Mexico.

■ Xu Z, Vélez C, Solomatine DP, Lobbrecht A (2010) Use of cloud computing for optimal design of urban wastewater systems. 9th International Conference on Hydroinformatics, China, September 2010.

### PHD THESES

■ Alfonso Segura JL (2010) Optimisation of Monitoring Networks for Water Systems. CRC Press, Leiden.

■ Lattemann S (2010) Development of an environmental impact assessment and decision support system for seawater desalination plants. CRC Press, Leiden.

■ Yangali Quintanilla VA (2010) Rejection of emerging organic contaminants by nanofiltration and reverse osmosis membranes : effects of fouling, modelling and water reuse. CRC Press , Leiden.

■ Makurira H (2010) Water productivity in rainfed agriculture. CRC Press, Leiden.

Maeng SK (2010) Multiple objective treatment

aspects of bank filtration. CRC Press, Leiden.
Paudel KP (2010) Role of sediment in the design and

management of irrigation canals. CRC Press, Leiden. Wegen M van der (2010) Modeling Morphodynamic

Evolution in Alluvial Estuaries. CRC Press, Leiden.

# 5

### **TECHNICAL REPORT**

■ Verma S (2010) Understanding interstate virtual water trade and its determinants in India. In Jan Lundqvist (ed.), On the Water Front: Selections from the 2009 World Water Week in Stockholm, Stockholm International Water Institute (SIWI), Stockholm.

■ van Dijk MP, Liang X (2010) Water governance in Beijing, SWITCH report, 16 pages.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Financing of and Cost Recovery in Urban Water and Sanitation, SWITCH report, 30 pages.

■ van Dijk MP, Liang X (2010) The Use of Economic Science in SWITCH: A case study of Beijing, China, SWITCH report, 64 pages.

■ van Dijk MP, Kurian M (2010) Urban sanitation and the MDGs. technical report, DGIS, The Hague, 50 pages.

# 4

### OTHER

■ Blokland MW (2010) Building capacities in the water sector through specialized education and research. In: Background document on UN-Water members and Partners Capacity Development Activities on water Supply and Sanitation in Africa. Published by UNW-DPC, Bonn.

■ Lopez-Vazquez CM, Hooijmans CM, Chen GH, van Loosdrecht MCM, Brdjanovic D (2010) Use of saline water in sanitation : change of paradigm in water resources management in urban environments. La Gestión Integrada del Recurso Hídrico Frente al Cambio Climático. Universidad de Cali, Colombia.

■ van Dijk MP (2010) Sanitation in developing countries, integrated solutions, including financial options. In: Verhagen J (eds) Sanitation services for the urban poor. IRC, The Hague.

■ van Dijk MP, Kurian M (2010) Urban sanitation and the MDGs, Policy initiatives, DGIS, The Hague, 3 pages.

### ANNEX 7 | COMMITTEES

### UNESCO-IHE GOVERNING BOARD

Margreeth de Boer, Chair Abdel Afouda Bob Pietrowsky Ian White John Verbakel Kyol-Ho Kwak Louis de Quelerij Maria Pilar Cornejo de Grunauer Ognejen Bonacci Paul Reiter Walid Abdelrahman Wim Deetman (*until 1.11.2010*) Wim Kuijken (*per 1.11.2010*)

### IHE DELFT FOUNDATION BOARD

Henk Vonhoff, Chair (*until 25.7.2010*) Wim Deetman, Chair (*per 1.9.2010*) Chris Kalden Louis de Quelerij Wim Kuijken

### RECTORATE

András Szöllösi-Nagy, Chair Joop de Schutter Stefan Uhlenbrook

### ACADEMIC BOARD

András Szöllösi-Nagy, Chair Arthur Mynett Bart Schultz Chris Zevenbergen Damir Brdjanovic Dano Roelvink Dimitri Solomatine Gary Amy Guy Alaerts Han Ligteringen Huub Gijzen Huub Savenije lan Leentvaar Joyeeta Gupta Jules van Lier Kala Vairavamoorthy Maria Kennedy Meine-Pieter van Dijk Nigel Wright Piet Lens Pieter van der Zaag Stefan Uhlenbrook

### MANAGEMENT TEAM

András Szöllösi-Nagy, Chair Arno Heins Erik de Ruyter van Steveninck Erwin Ploeger Jan Herman Koster Jan Luijendijk Joop de Schutter Juliëte Terlaak Maarten Blokland a.i. Michael McClain Robert de Bruijn Stefan Uhlenbrook Wilmar Ceton

### EXAMINATION BOARD

Bart Schultz, Chair Stefan Uhlenbrook, Vice Chair Erick de Jong Erik de Ruyter van Steveninck Maarten Blokland Nemanja Trifunovic

### EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMME EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Stefan Uhlenbrook, Chair Arno Heins Henk Lubberding Ioana Popescu Jan Herman Koster Marloes Mul

### WORKS COUNCIL

Abraham Mehari Haile, Chair Guy Beaujot Mariska Ronteltap Nemanja Trifunović Wim Glas, Secretary

### STUDENT ASSOCIATION BOARD

Patrick Sandikie, Chair Barun Karna, Vice-Chair Vivian Juliette Cortes , Secretary Susma Bhattarai, Treasurer

### CULTURAL AMBASSADORS

Artists, events and cultural institutions appointed as Cultural Ambassadors of UNESCO-IHE to call for good water management and advocate the urgent need for well-trained water managers throughout the world.

### Catherine Massin performance/visual art/writing DeSingel International Arts Centre Festival van Vlaanderen - OdeGand Gastprogrammering Het Muziektheater Handelsbeurs Concertzaal Gent Les Ballets C de la B Lucien den Arend sculptor Marjorie Ryerson photographer and orchestrator Rotterdam Philharmonisch Orkest Slagerij van Kampen Troubleyn | Jan Fabre performing arts

### HONORARY FELLOWS

The UNESCO-IHE Honorary Fellowship award is bestowed in recognition of persons of distinction who have either made major contributions to the work of IHE or earned distinction for activities associated more widely with the context of IHE's mission, 2010 Prof. D.P. Loucks
2004 W.J. Cosgrove
1999 Prof. M. Abu Zeid, PhD
1998 Prof. W.A. Segeren, MSc
1998 R. Moochtar, MSc
1996 Prof. J.W.M. la Rivière, PhD, MSc
1993 M.F. Strong, PhD
1992 Prof. J.C.I. Dooge
1990 Prof. L. Huisman, PhD, MSc
1985 Prof. L.J. Mostertman, MSc
1976 Prof. W.F.J.M. Krul
1968 Prof. J.Th. Thijssen, MSc

### ANNEX 8 UNESCO-IHE & NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATIONS

UNESCO-IHE alumni perform a vital role as 'ambassadors' to the world. The establishment and strengthening of the UNESCO-IHE Alumni Network is essential to promoting and facilitating knowledge dissemination, including the exchange of professional expertise and personal experience between alma mater as well as amongst Alumni. These independent Associations organise various activities in their country.

Prospective candidates are suggested to contact the local Alumni Association before they leave their own countries. UNESCO-IHE fervently encourages all its Alumni to partake in the Institute's aim to deepen and strengthen Alumni networking world-wide.

### ARGENTINA

### ASOCIACIÓN CULTURAL ARGENTINO -NEERLANDESA DE EX-BECARIOS (ACANEB) President: Ing. Gabriel Pardi

Representing UNESCO-IHE: Ing. Miriam Solis Edificio Porteño II, Olga Cossenttini 831, piso 3 1107 BvA Ciudad Autonoma de Buenos Aires T/F +54.11.4345.4399

- E info@acaneb.org.ar
- I www.acaneb.org.ar

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Mrs. Eugenia Alaniz Caseros 1180, 7piso dto D 5000 Cordoba, Argentina T + 54.351.414.4555 (int 401)

- F + 54.351.414.4400
- E eugeniaalaniz@arnet.com.ar

### AUSTRALIA AND NEW ZEALAND

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Mr. Sasha Vlastelica Industry & Environmental Consultants P/L PO Box 1165, Lane Cove 2066 NSW Australia T +61.2.9879.6059 | 5095

- F +61.2.9879.6059
- E inencons@netro.com.au

### BANGLADESH

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION – BANGLADESH

President and UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Dr. M.A. Quassem, Convener Ad-hoc Committee Former Director General, Water Resources Planning Organization, Government of Bangladesh Flat# 3A1, House# 8, Road# 6, Banani (Block-C) Dhaka-1213, Bangladesh

- T +880.2.8827007 / +880.2.8822065
- E drquassem@gmail.com

### BRAZIL

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Mr. Arnaldo Augusto Setti SCS Quadra 06 Edificio Jose Severo Sala 403 CEP 70326-900-Brasilia -DF Brazil T +61.33214373 / +61.96547482 cell

E arnaldosetti@uol.com.br

### CANADA

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Ing. Frank Feng 7 Broomfield Drive Toronto Ontario Canada M1S 2W2 T +1.416.298.6156 E fengjiande@hotmail.com

#### CHILE

### CORPORACIÓN CULTURAL CHILENO -HOLANDESA

President: Mr. Enrique Roman Julia Bernstein, 1963, La Reina Santiago de Chile Chile T + 56.2.946.2790 F + 56.2.946.2798

- E eroman@cepri.cl
- I www.ccchh.cl

### CHINA

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI NETWORK IN CHINA C/o Neso Beijing

Attn. Ms. Grace Fu, Alumni Officer Beijing New World Center South Office Tower 615 3 Chongwenmenwai Street Beijing 100062

P.R. China

- T + 86.10.6708.9311 / 12 ext. 202
- F + 86.10.6708.4087
- E secretariat@nanc.org.cn
- l www.nanc.org.cn

### COLOMBIA

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF COLOMBIA

Presidente: Mr. Renan Eduardo Piñeiros

- T 31 4 300 5886
- E renanpineros@gmail.com info@naacolombia.com
- I www.naacolombia.com

### CZECH REPUBLIC

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Ms Eliska Poupova-Marsalkova Kunesova 6, 643 00 Brno Czech Republic T/F +42.05.4522.0587 +42.06.0551.0954 (cell) E eliska.marsalkova@centrum.cz

### ECUADOR

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF ECUADOR

President: Marco Albarracin Rodas Embajada del Reino de los Paises Bajos Edificio World Trade Centre, Torre A Piso 1 Av. 12 de Octubre 1942 Quito – Ecuador

- T +59 3 9 9064458
- E naaecuador@gmail.com
- l www.naae.com.ec

### **ETHIOPIA**

### ALL ETHIOPIANS TRAINED IN THE NETHERLANDS HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS (AETNHEI)

*Contact persons*: Sisay Zenebe, Abiot Mindaye P.O. Box 55519

Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

- T + 251.11.1239721 (office)
  - + 251.911.401432 (cell)
- E s\_zenebe@yahoo.com abimindaye@yahoo.com

### GHANA

## NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF GHANA (GNAA)

Contact persons: Mr. Francis Babongte Avura, Ms. Maria Don-Chebe

032 Spintex Road, Baatsonna Accra, Ghana

- Accra, Gnana
- T + 233.22413086, cell + 223.208137505
- E avurafrancis@hotmail.com, wgd0214@yahoo.com

### GREECE

### **DUTCH ALUMNI NETWORK OF GREECE**

Contact persons: A. Dijk, A. Armaos, W.Ledeboer c/o Netherlands Institute in Athens Makri 11, 11742 Athens, Greece

- T +30 210 9210760 / +30 210 9210770
- E agnesdijk@gmail.com, armaos@dsa.gr, alumni@nia.gr

### HUNGARY

- UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: (Hungary, Czech Republic, Latvia, Poland, Slovakia) Ms. Zsuzsanna P. Magosanyi Advanced Environmental Sanitation Management (AESESM) Kakukkhegyi u.8/b H-1224 Budapest
- T +36.20.937.0744
- E zsu@linux.co.hu

### INDIA

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF INDIA

Contact: M. Mahavir A-26, Rohit Kunj P.O. Rani Bagh Delhi 110034, India T/F +91-9810326582 / + 91.11.6196571 E mahavir57@yahoo.com

UNESCO-IHE India alumni representative: Mr Asit Nema, General Secretary Foundation for Greentech Environmental Systems D-208, Sarita Vihar New Delhi 110 076, India T/F +91 (0) 11 41054084 +91 9810608145 (cell) E asitnema@gmail.com

greentech@touchtelindia.net I www.green-ensys.org

### INDONESIA

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF INDONESIA (IKANED) Erasmushuis JI. H.R. Rasuna Said Kav. S 3

Jakarta 12950 Indonesia T/F + 62.21.5241079 / + 62.21.5270908 E info@ikaned.com I www.ikaned.org

### JORDAN

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Treq A. KH. Al Jazar Amman Jordan Postal code 11196 P.O. Box 962360 T + 962.6.5680873 (R), + 962.79.5863268 (m) E taljazar@yahoo.com; ihealumni@yahoo.com

### KENYA

## NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF

Contact persons: Mr. Laurence Sewe-Oloo, Okero Otieno, Grace Obeda c/o Royal Netherlands Embassy Riverside Drive Box 41537 GPO 00100 Nairobi, Kenya T + 254.722513248 or + 254.724.292.320

- + 254.428.8242 or + 254.20.3502494
- F + 254.20.554280
- E iotieno@gmail.com; sewe-oloo@swiftkenya.com, grace.vuhyaobeda@minbuza.nl
- I www.naak.co.ke

### LATVIA

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Mr Aldis Viduzs Waste Management Association of Latvian Kursu str 9-2 LV-1006 Riga T/F + 371.7551381 / + 371.7551361 E lasa@edi.lv I www.lasa.lv

### HOLLAND ALUMNI PLATFORM LATVIA

Contact Person: Dzintra Irisa Poritere NLCC, Elizabetes str. 51 Riga, LV-1010 Latvia E education@nlcc.lv I www.nlcc.lv

### MACEDONIA

### MAK HOL NUFFIC ALUMNI

President: Dimo Todorovski Ul. Leninova 73/10, 1000 Skopje Macedonia T +38922630409 / +38970461450 (cell) E mhnalumni@yahoo.com

### MALAYSIA

# NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF MALAYSIA

President: Ir. Dato, Hj. Keizrul bin Abdullah Secretary: Mr. Tan Teow Soon c/o Royal Netherlands Embassy 7th Floor, the Ampwalk (South Block) 218 Jalan Ampang 50450 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia T/F + 60.3.2698.7254 / + 60.3.2694.8268 E tstan@nahrim.gov.my

### MEXICO

### HOLLAND ALUMNI NETWORK MEXICO

Contact person: Martha Márquez Oropeza Av. Homero 407 piso 11, Col. Chapultepec Morales México, D.F. 11570, Mexico T +52.55. 5254-4013

- E info@hanmexico.org
- www.hanmexico.org

### MYANMAR

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Prof. Dr Khin Ni Ni Thein E aiweb.lead@gamail.com

### CLUB OF UNESCO-IHE ALUMNI IN MYANMAR

E aiweb.lead@gamail.com

### NEPAL

## NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF NEPAL (NAAN)

President & UNESCO-IHE alumni representative:

- Mr. Naresh Pradhan
- G.P.O. Box 8975
- E.P.C. Box 1224
- Kathmandu, Nepal
- $T \quad + \, 977.1.5525472 \, (R); + \, 977.1.543142 \, (O)$
- F + 977.1.5543144
- E naan69@hotmail.com
- l www.naan.org.np

### PALESTINE

UNESCO-IHE alumni representative: Dr Maher Abu-Madi Birzeit University, P.O. Box 14, Birzeit, West Bank, Palestine T/F +972.2.298 2120 E abumadi@birzeit.edu

### PERU

### ASOCIACIÓN PERUANA DE EX-BECARIOS DE HOLANDA

President: Ms Dora Guillen de Arce Urb.Buganvillas A-3 (esq. Paz Soldan con Tronchadero) Yahahuara, Arequipa, Peru

- T +51.54.9384542
- E arceguillen@gamil.com arceguillen2005@yahoo.com apebho@groposyahoo.com

I http://apebho.com http://espanol.groups.yahoo.com/group/ APEBHO

### PHILIPPINES

### NETHERLANDS FELLOWS FOUNDATION OF THE PHILIPPINES INC. NFFPI

President: Mrs. Grace Plazo-Freires University of the Philippines Institute of Small-Scale Industries UP ISSI Building Room 43, 4th Floor Enrique Virata Hall, Emilio Jacinto Street UP Campus, Diliman, Quezon City 1101 T/F + 63.2.926.6316 / + 63.2.927.1034

E manfrei2004@yahoo.comgraceplazofreires@yahoo.com.ph.I www.nffpi.com

### POLAND

### E w\_jarosinki@gapp.pl

### RUSSIA

RUSSIAN-DUTCH ALUMNI ASSOCIATION President: Ms. Elena Konopleva c/o Royal Netherlands Embassy Moscow, Russia E rdaa@yandex.ru

### SLOVAKIA

### UNESCO-IHE ALUMNI REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Jozef Richtarcik Vazovova 9/B 81107 Bratislava T + 421.2.5542.3376 / +421.905.478.127 F + 421.2.5542.3376

E jr@slovanet.sk; ihe@openforum.hu https://openforum.hu/mailman/listinfo/ihe

### **SRI LANKA**

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF LANKA, NAAL

President: Mr. S.P.C. Kumarasinghe 95 Prince Street Colombo 11, Sri Lanka T +94.11.2695550 T/F + 94.11.2447002 F +94.11.5361423 E naal2007@sltnet.lk, kumar4@sri.lanka.net

### **SYRIA**

### ASSOCIATION OF SYRIAN ALUMNI FROM THE NETHERLANDS UNIVERSITIES AND INSTITUTIONS

Contact person: Khaldoun Bitar (IHE alumnus) PO Box 11484 Damascus, Syria T 963 933 334017 / +963 888169 (cell)

E naa.syria@yahoo.com; k.bitar@unrwa.org

### TAIWAN

### NUFFIC NETHERLANDS EDUCATION SUPPORT OFFICE (NUFFIC NESO TAIPEI)

Artist Construction Building, Room D, 7th floor, 133, Minsheng E. Road, Section 3 Taipei. Taiwan

- T/F +886 2 8770 7621 / +886 2 27160775
- E nesotpe@neso-taipei.org.tw
- I www.neso-taipei.org.tw

### TANZANIA

## NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF TANZANIA, NAAT

 President: Dr. Joshua Malago &

 Mr. Wambura M.S.R. Wambura

 Alykhan Road Plot no D714/1 Upanga Area

 P.O. Box 19669

 Dar-es-Salaam

 T
 + 225.22.2151613 / +225.744.458270 (cell)

 F
 + 225.22.2110044

E thenaat@yahoo.com

### THAILAND

## NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF THAILAND, NAAT

c/o Department of Groundwater Resources, 75/10 Rama VI Road, Rajchathevee Bangkok 10400, Thailand T/F +66(0)-2660-2517 I www.naat.or.th

### TURKEY

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION OF TURKEY (NAATR)

President: Mrs Nuran Akdogan Koza Sokak, 111, GOP 06700 Cankaya, Ankara, Turkey T/F +90 312 437 3347 / +90 312 437 3342 E info@naatr.com

### UGANDA

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION -UGANDA (NAAU)

President: Mrs Monica Emiru Enyou c/o Royal Netherlands Embassy Rwenzori Courts 4th floor, plot nr 2 Nakasero Road

- P.O. Box 7728, Kampala
- T + 256.77.630589 (cell)
- E emiruenyou@hotmail.com memiru@unicef.org

### VIETNAM

### NETHERLANDS ALUMNI NETWORK IN VIETNAM

Contact Person: Ms .Bui Thi Thuy Chi NANV secretariat p/o NESO Vietnam 35 Le Thanh Ton St. District 1, HCMC, Vietnam T/F +84-8-822 0713/24 / +84-8-822 0691 E alumni@nesovietnam.com

www.nanc.com.vn

## ANNEX 9 | LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

AIT	Asian Institute of Technology (Bangkok, Thailand)
DGIS	Directorate General of International Cooperation, Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs
DUPC	DGIS - UNESCO-IHE Programmatic Cooperation
DUWO	Housing Corporation in Delft
EC	European Commission
FP6 / FP7	6 th/7th Framework Programme (EC research programme)
Fte	Full-time equivalent
ICT	Information and Communication Technology
IHP	International Hydrology Programme (UNESCO)
IWRM	Integrated Water Resources Management
JJWBGSP	Joint Japan-World Bank Graduate Fellowship Programme
KNUST	Kwame N'Kruma University of Technology (Kumasi, Ghana)
коѕ	Knowledge Innovation and Research Strategy (DGIS policy document)
MDGs	Millennium Development Goals
MoU	Memorandum of Understanding
MSc	Master of Science
MT	Management Team (of UNESCO-IHE)
NBCBN-RE	Nile Basin Capacity Building Network for River Engineering
NFP	Netherlands Fellowship Programme
NICHE	Netherlands Institutional Cooperation in Higher Education programme (NUFFIC)
NUFFIC	Netherlands Federation for International Cooperation in Higher Education
NVAO	Netherlands / Flemish Accreditation Organisation
NWO	Netherlands Organisation for Scientific Research
NWP	Netherlands Water Partnership
OCW	Netherlands Ministry of Education, Culture and Science
PCCP	From Potential Conflict to Cooperation Potential (UNESCO-IHP programme)
PhD	Doctor of Philosophy
PoWER	Partnership for Water Education and Research
SENSE	Socio-Economic and Natural Sciences of the Environment (Research School)
SWITCH	Sustainable Water Management Improves Tomorrow's Cities Health (EC-sponsored project)
TTIW	Technological Top Institute – Water technology (Netherlands' Government funded initiative)
DUT	Delft University of Technology, The Netherlands
UN	United Nations
UNESCO	United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization
UNESCO-IHE	UNESCO-IHE Institute for Water Education
UniValle	Universidad del Valle (Cali, Colombia)
UPaRF	UNESCO-IHE Partnership Research Fund
UTQ	University Teaching Qualification (agreed standard for Dutch university teaching staff)
VAT	Value Added Tax
V&W	Dutch Ministry of Transport, Public Works and Water Management
WaterNet	Capacity Building Network for IWRM (Southern and Eastern African Region)
WOTRO	Science Division within NWO

**Text** Laura Kwak

**Design** Peter Stroo

**Illustrations** Hans Emeis

**Printing** Prints & Proms



UNESCO-IHE PO Box 3015 2601 DA Delft The Netherlands

T +31 15 215 1715 F +31 15 212 2921 E info@unesco-ihe.org I www.unesco-ihe.org